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Business Overview

Delivering Future-Ready Spaces Responsibly:

Tata Realty a wholly owned subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited, is in the business of
design, development and management of commercial assets and few residential projects.
Your Company serves a large spectrum of customers across premium office spaces, retail
properties, residential hubs and infrastructure assets. As a truly diversified developer of
choice, your Company has a strong presence across the country.

Currently, the Company and its subsidiaries own and operate 7.5 mn. sq. ft. across 5 projects
in 3 cities (which includes 4 office developments (IT/SEZ/Commercial), a Retail asset in
Gurgaon & Hospitality asset in Chennai). The Company has concluded 1.37 mn. sq. ft. of
leasing (New & Renewals) in FY 2023 in the Operational Portfolio.

Intellion is now well established as exclusive office spaces vertical, reimagining the workplace
to deliver Smart, Secure, Sustainable and Social work environments. Our infrastructure
portfolio covers critical projects in different parts of the country, spanning across roads,
ropeways and metro rails.

During the year the Company has Partnered with CPPIB to secure Rs. 3,417 Crore including
1,900 Crore debt raised in Ramanujan Intellion Park via equity dilution and divested certain
portion of its shareholding in the erstwhile SPV's owning to assets i.e. Chennai & Gurgaon
Intellion Edge which resulted in a loss of control and the residual stake was recognised as
investment in joint ventures accounted using equity method.

The Company is also exploring various opportunities in the coming year, which are at various
level of discussion.

Sustainability has always been core tenet of our operations and we are fully committed to
maintaining our leadership position in this critical aspect for our futures. We strive to embody
the TATA values in how we engage with customers, employees and vendor partners. Our
ethos of delivering value with utmost transparency makes us focused on excellence, empathy
and innovation across the customer journey. Phase 1 & Phase 2 of Ramanujan Project has
achieved the EDGE Zero Carbon Certificate and it is 1st EDGE Zero Carbon project in India.

1l il
1l 1l
1l 1l
1l 1l
1l il
100 1l

0
0
]

[
[

—] 3 3 3 3 /3

(0 AN anaon

(Ao

i}
00
i}

I HWMW

I HWWWM

nnnnn




Sustainability

Leading The Change With Purpose:

Our ESG strategy focuses on achieving business objectives, while ensuring that the needs
of the environment and all stakeholders are taken care of. It encompasses a purpose-driven
leadership approach, rooted in responsible action and sustainable building practices that
ensure collective progress through our 5R sustainability strategy which includes Responsible
value creation governance, Resilient structures, Replenish nature, Reap talent and Respect
lives.

Our 5R sustainability framework coupled with our
comprehensive Environmental, Health and Safety strategy

serves as a blueprint to establish responsible real estate. It
also includes our duty to nurture the planet that grants us
the land and resources for our projects, especially in light
of India’s proactive stance and commitment to achieve net-
zero carbon emissions by 2070 at the COP26 summit in
Glasgow.

We are striving hard to reduce our dependence on fossil fuels as well as to find better, more
effective ways to dispose off and recycle our waste products. Our comprehensive EHS policy
guarantees the safety of all our employees and stakeholders and also empowers individuals
who engage with us as employees, customers, and partners to create enduring value for our
stakeholders who have placed their trust in us.

We endeavour to erect enduring structures that stand the test of time, meticulously crafting
projects that exhibit resilience in the face of climate change. As we forge ahead, the paradigm
surrounding green buildings is rapidly shifting from being discretionary to becoming the
prevailing choice, as we endeavour to balance our requirements that may tax the planet’s
limited natural resources, while keeping the well-being of individuals in mind, and at the same
time, ensuring our financial gains. We see a growing trend among customers who perceive
responsible real estate as a means to rejuvenate and revitalize the planet — a manifestation
of an expanding consciousness that recognizes the need to embrace sustainable lifestyles.




IFC EDGE Zero Carbon Certified Asset

We are deeply committed to sustainability and
responsible business practices. We are fully
committed to the recently proposed Nationally
Determined Contribution (NDC) which seeks to
enhance India’s contributions towards
strengthening of global response to the threat of
climate change. Our ESG startegy can be
summerised as-our commitment at achieving all
our future business growth objectives, while
ensuring that the needs of the environment and all
stakeholders are taken care of. The strategy is
based on five strategic pillars that focus on
conceptualization, execution and management of
our real estate projects. Thirteen focus areas define
our transition pathway to a sustainable future. By
adhering to these principles and focusing on
sustainable development, we aim to created
long-term value for all our stakeholders while
minimizing our impact on environment and
society.
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Responsible Value Chain Governance
¢ Supply Chain Management

® Tenant Engagement

¢ Community Development

Reap Talent
e Training and Development
e Diversity, Equity and Inclusion

Resilient Structures
e Climate Change

e Green Building

* Wellness

Respect Lives
e Health and Safety Management
¢ Human Rights

Replenish Nature

o Water Positive Assets
e Biodiversity

e Zero Waste to Landfill

Ramanujan Intellion Park was awarded
the IFC EDGE Advanced Certification for
achieving:

>40% energy savings
33% water savings
26% reduction in
embodied energy




Award and Recognition

Year 2022-23
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Directors Information

MR. SANJAY DUTT
(MD & CEO)

Mr. Sanjay Dutt is the MD & CEO for Tata Realty
& Infrastructure Ltd and Tata Housing
Development Company Ltd. He has been the
key architect in transforming TATA Realty
become a pioneer in Real Estate sector. With a
contagious level of energy and an undying
passion for challenges, Mr. Dutt is responsible
for directing TATA Realty’s business vision and
managing the business operations with the
over-arching strategic planning and execution.

Mr. Dutt holds a Post-Graduate in Marketing &
HR from the International Management
Institute. He is Chairman APREA Asia -
Advocacy Committee, President Elect
NAREDCO Maharashtra and Co-Chairman of
ASSOCHAM and a member of CoreNet Global.

MR. PRABHAKAR PANDA
(INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR)

Mr. Prabhakar Panda is M.A in political science
from Utkal University, Bhubaneswar. He has
completed Postgraduate diploma in Human
Resources Management/MBA from Osmania
University. He also has a Ph. D in Economics
(Political Governance of Public Funds) from
Delhi University.

Mr. Prabhakar Panda was also associated as
Director with Hitech-Medical College and
Hospital, Bhubaneswar for past 15 years. He is
currently involved with selection/recruitment &
organizing and attending seminars and
meetings, bringing up new projects and
research programs and deal with problems
linked with Government and Government
Organizations.

He has also being co-authored to a book
named as “Political Economy” published by
Asish publication house, New Delhi. He has also
received an Award in field of Cultural and
Organizational work from ‘Chinta-O-Chetana’
in 1998.

MR. BANMALI AGRAWALA
(CHAIRMAN)

Mr. Banmali Agrawala is the President,
Infrastructure and Defence & Aerospace at Tata
Sons Private Limited.

An active member of the Confederation of
Indian Industries (CIl), Banmali has held several
official positions within Cll such as Chairman of
the Western Regional Council, and currently is
also a Member of ClI’s National Council.

Banmali is a Mechanical Engineering graduate
from Mangalore University and an alumnus of
the Advanced Management Programme of
Harvard Business School.

MRS. SANDHYA KUDTARKAR
(INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR)

Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar is a Commerce
graduate, qualified Chartered Accountant &
Company Secretary and has worked with
the Tata Group since March 1982. Having
held various positions in the Secretarial
function with Tata Steel, she was the
Company Secretary of Tata Steel from June
1994 till October 2001 when she moved to
the Group Legal Department. She retired
from Tata Services Ltd from the position of
Sr. Vice President - Legal Services in April
2018. She currently holds directorship in
many Companies.

MR. ANKUR DALWANI
(DIRECTOR)

Mr. Ankur Dalwani is Senior Vice President,
Group CFO Office at Tata Sons Private Limited.
Mr. Dalwani has more than 25 years of
experience in Corporate Finance & Strategy,
Investment Banking & M&A and Lending roles
across sectors including the real estate sector.
He has worked at leading investment banks -
DSP Merrill Lynch, IDFC Securities & Jefferies
India advising clients on several marquee
transactions. Prior to joining the Tata Group, he
was Business Head for Real Estate Lending at
L&T Finance where he successfully grew the
loan book in a difficult macro environment. By
qualification, he is MBA (Finance) from S.P. Jain
Institute of Management & Research, Mumbai
and Bachelor in Engineering from National
Institute of Technology, Rourkela.

MR. SUDIP MULLICK
(INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR)

Mr. Sudip is a Partner in Khaitan & Co. in the
Real Estate and Construction Practice
Group in the Mumbai office. His expertise
amongst others lies in real estate matters,
construction contracts and disputes arising
out of construction contracts and in matters
relating to the hospitality industry. Mr. Sudip
Mullick has often appeared before various
courts and in arbitration proceedings for
developers, contractors, corporate and
institutional clients on disputes pertaining
to real estate, construction contracts and
other commercial contracts. Mr. Sudip
Mullick is an independent Non-Executive
independent director on the Board of many
Companies.




MD & CEO Message

Dear Stakeholders,

| am pleased to share our Annual Stakeholder Report,
encapsulating the narrative of Tata Realty in FY 2023 -
a year characterized by resilience, transformation, and
unprecedented growth. The Indian real estate sector
is witnessing an uptick, propelled by urbanization,
improved affordability, evolving consumer aspirations
and favourable market sentiment.

Anticipated to reach a market size of $1 trillion by
2030, we are perfectly positioned to capitalize on
this wave of growth. As the sector shows promising
growth, our tenants and consumers continue to place
their confidence in us. Coupled with our solid balance
sheet and commitment to creating high-quality, safe,
and sustainable ecosystems, we are well-positioned
for a strong FY 2024.

Unprecedented Financial Performance

Despite a global atmosphere of volatility, Tata Realty
demonstrated remarkable resilience, resulting in one
of our strongest performances to date. We were
privileged to serve customers across our commercial, residential and retail segments,
reflecting growth in all areas. In FY 2023, we recorded a growth of 6% on revenue while
also emphasizing on enhancing free cash flows from partial stake sale in few subsidiaries,
which allowed us to markedly reduce debt at holdco level.

Residential Real Estate

Despite the turbulent times, our teams worked tirelessly to meet our commitments and
exceed our customers’ expectations. We accomplished robust growth across all segments,
serving more than 23000 consumers through our residential properties. | am proud to
report that our Company has exhibited a high level of resilience, leading to one of the
strongest performances in our history. We also placed a stronger emphasis on generating
free cash flow, which has allowed us to significantly reduce our debt.

Commercial Real Estate

This year, we have amplified our presence in the commercial real estate sector, with a 1.37
million sqg ft area leased (including renewals) to various corporate entities across cities. We
have a portfolio of 7.5 million square feet while 11 million square feet is under various stages
of design and development from our existing land bank.

A remarkable achievement was the launch of Intellion Park, Navi Mumbai, being developed
in partnership with our joint venture partners. Intellion Park, located opposite the Ghansoli
station, is one of the fastest-growing suburbs in Navi Mumbai. The project, sprawled across
471 acres, boasts a development potential of over 9-10 million square feet of leasable area,
promising to be the preferred IT destination for corporates. The project emphasizes health,
wellness and work-life balance with the aim to enhance employee productivity.
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We attained stronger market positioning by:

. Achieving an Annual Gross revenue (including JV) of Rs. 652 Crore and Annual Asset NOI
of Rs. 531 Crore

. Partnered with CPPIB to secure 3417 Crore towards future growth, by sale of partial stake
in few subsidiaries

. Enhanced Leasing/ Building efficiencies to increase Ramanujan IT Park valuation by
500 Crore.

. Our entire Portfolio is Edge Certified which is the largest in India.

. First full year of Operations of Taj Wellington Mews, with average annual occupancy of
62%.

Retail Real Estate

In the retail sector, we have consistently strived to create a seamless and superior experience
for consumers and retailers alike. Our commitment to scaling up operations in this segment is
driven by the need to cater to a rapidly evolving digital consumer base.

Sustainability: Towards a Greener Future

At Tata Realty, our commitment to sustainability remains at the core of our business ethos.
We strive to conduct our business responsibly, with a focus on creating safe and sustainable
ecosystems across our properties. Tata Realty has always endeavored to exceed its ESG goals
and has placed sustainability on high significance.

According to the International Energy Agency (IEA), by 2050, buildings and the construction
sector combined will be responsible for 30% of total global energy consumption and 27%
of total energy sector emissions. As a part of our ESG journey, we’'re committed to the local
community and environment and therefore as responsible real estate developers, plan to
develop green buildings with LEED platinum certification, WELL certification and IFC EDGE
certification.

We are proud to share that Ramanujan Intellion Park has become the first Indian campus to be
recognized with the EDGE Zero Carbon certification by the International Finance Corporation
(IFC).

The certification recognizes the Company’s efforts to construct green commercial buildings
that have negligible impact on the environment. Ramanujan Intellion Park has achieved a
complete reduction of emissions through renewables or carbon off-sets, saving more than
20% on water and embodied energy in materials while attaining over 40% energy savings
on-site.

A Great Place to Work

We are thrilled to be recognized as a Great Place to Work for the second consecutive year.
This recognition validates our efforts to create a supportive, inspiring and rewarding work
environment and cements our position as an employer of choice.

The Changing Real Estate Dynamics

As | conclude, | extend my heartfelt gratitude to our Board members for their continued
guidance, our employees for their unwavering dedication and our stakeholders, for unwavering
support and faith in us. We eagerly look forward to your continued partnership on this exciting
journey.

Yours sincerely,
Sanjay Dutt

MD & CEO
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To the Members,

The Directors are pleased to present the Annual Report of Tata Realty and Infrastructure
Limited (the “Company” or “TRIL”) along with the audited financial statements for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023. The consolidated performance of the Company and its
subsidiaries has been referred to wherever required.

Financial Results

Key highlights of standalone and consolidated financial performance for the year ended

March 31, 2023, are summarized as under:
(Rs. in Crores)

FY - 22-23 | FY - 21-22 | FY - 22-23 | FY - 21-22
Revenue 127.46 127.01 864.55 1,324.59
Other income 81.03 283.30| 3,496.16 493.08
Total income 208.49 410.31| 4,360.71 1,817.67
Expenses
Operating expenditure 193.32 142.68 445,31 607.73
Depreciation and amortization 2.28 212 181.00 303.33
expenses
Total Expenses 195.60 144.80 626.31 911.06
Profit before finance cost and tax 12.89 265.51| 3734.40 906.61
Finance cost 162.03 216.96 524.09 688.62
Share of (loss) (net) from - -1 (349.87) (46.70)
Associates and Joint Ventures
Profit before tax (PBT) (149.14) 48.55| 2,860.44 171.29
Tax expense 2.97 (53.79)| (446.65) (88.38)
Profit / (Loss) for the year (146.17) (5.24)| 2,413.79 82.91
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the company 146.17) (5.24) 2,416.27 83.34
Non-Controlling Interest - - (2.48) (0.43)
Opening Balance of retained (826.44) | (831.89)| (1,569.16) | (1,652.50)
earning
Profit/(Loss) for the Year (146.17) (5.24) 2,416.27 83.34
Other comprehensive income / - - - -
(losses)
Total comprehensive income - - - -
Transferred from OCI to Retained 2,816.81 10.69
earnings on derecognition of
equity instruments
Closing balance of retained 1,844.19| (826.44) 84711| (1,569.16)
earnings

In view of the losses incurred during the year under review, the Directors do not recommend

any dividend for the year 2022-23.
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Transfer to Reserves

Your directors do not recommend transferring any funds to reserves of the Company.

Company’s Performance

On a standalone basis, the revenue from operations for FY 2022-23 was Rs. 127.46 crores
which is consistent with the previous year’s revenue of Rs. 127.01 crores. The loss after tax
attributable to shareholders for FY 2022-23 was Rs. 146.17 crores vis-a-vis loss after tax of Rs.
5.24 crores in the previous year as it does not include one-time capital gain on investments
of Rs. 152.41 crores in FY 2022-23.

State of the Company’s Affairs:

Commercial:

As a truly diversified developer of choice, we have a strong presence across the country.
Intellion is now well established as our exclusive office spaces vertical, reimagining the
workplace to deliver Smart, Secure, Sustainable and Social work environments.

TRIL, a wholly owned subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited, is in the domain of design,
development and management of commercial assets and few residential projects. Currently,
the Company and its subsidiaries own and operate 7.6 mn. sqg. ft. of Commercial projects
across 5 projects in 3 cities (which includes 4 office developments (IT/SEZ/Commercial), a
Retail asset in Gurgaon & Hospitality asset in Chennai). The Company has concluded 1.37 mn.
sq. ft. of leasing (New & Renewals) in FY 22-23 in the Operational Portfolio.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company divested certain portion of its shareholding
in the erstwhile subsidiaries i.e TRIL Infopark Limited, Infopark Properties Limited, Arrow
Infraestate Private Limited, Gurgaon Construct Well Private Limited and Gurgaon Realtech
Limited which resulted in aloss of control and the residual stake was recognised as investment
in joint ventures accounted using equity method.

The Group has recognised the residual stake at its fair value on the date of loss of control and
consequently, recognised the gains realised on such divestment and fair valuation impact on
residual stake of INR 3,396.98 Crore resulting in a Gain attributable to shareholders and non-
controlling interests for FY 2022-23 of Rs. 2,413.79 Crore.

Sustainability has always been core tenet of our operations and we are fully committed
to maintaining our leadership position in this critical aspect for our futures. We strive to
embody the TATA values in how we engage with customers, employees and vendor partners.
Our ethos of delivering value with utmost transparency makes us focused on excellence,
empathy and innovation across the customer journey.

The Company is also exploring various opportunities in the coming year, which are at various
level of discussion.

Infrastructure:

Dharamshala Skyway commenced commercial operations amidst the Omicron wave in
January 2022. The response of locals & tourists has been encouraging since inauguration.
During FY 2022-23, the Project achieved a topline in excess of Rs. 10 Crore & positive EBITDA
of ~ Rs 4 Crore despite facing headwinds especially due to major diversion of tourists to
Kashmir which has opened up recently. Further, extreme weather events like thunderstorms
& landslides are quite common in the area. The Company has deployed an experienced team
that manages ropeway operations in house & has received a letter of commendation from
the National Disaster Relief Force (NDRF) on the successful trails of vertical rescue in case




of emergencies. The Users of the ropeway have continued to give positive ratings for their
experience in Google & Trip advisor. The Company expects to further stabilize in the current
year with phenomenal response from tourists during peak season between May & July 2023.

In the financial year 2022-23, the execution of the Pune Metro Line 3 project from Shivajinagar
to Hinjewadi picked up pace. Metro Right of Way (RoW) to the extent of 99.75% is now
available with RoW for some Entry / Exit structures now pending. In terms of Overall Project
Progress, 27% of the project is now complete. The Project Milestone of expending 20% of
Project Cost within the first year, as per the Concession Agreement, has been achieved. The
diversion of Overhead High-Tension lines impacting about 4 kms of the alignment has also
been completed. The design process has moved forward with 70% of Civil design completed.
On the Systems side, 96% of Basic design and 60% of Final Design has been completed.

On the execution front, 71% of the foundations have been completed, de-risking the project
to an extent. Nearly 50% of the piers and 25% of pier caps have been completed. All the
plant & machinery required for the project, such as moulds and shutters, batching plants and
Launching Girders have been mobilised and approx. 2.7 kms of the viaduct, which forms the
base for the tracks has been erected in the current year.

Work has been taken up in all the 23 stations and superstructure works in 3 stations is in
progress. Similarly work has been taken up in key depot buildings like Sub-station & Operation
Control Centre as well as in the areas where tracks are to be laid.

Procurement of various long-lead items such as Rails and Lifts & Escalators is progressing with
Depot Rails and Sleepers having been completed. On the systems front, the manufacturing
of the trains has commenced with the first train scheduled to be delivered by Nov-23. 6 train
sets are expected to be delivered by Mar-24. Manufacturing clearances for long-lead items
such as transformers and cables have also been placed.

In the coming financial year, Engineering for Civil & System works will be completed as will
the Construction of Pile, Pile caps, Piers and Pier caps. Additionally, 19 kms of viaduct is likely
to be completed and 15 station priority rooms will be handed over to the Systems Contractor
for executing the works. All Major Depot building like the Operations Control Centre, Sub-
station, Inspection Bay, Workshop office and Central store will be completed. The Receiving
sub-stations will be fully operational. The entire Depot track is also planned to be completed.

Rolling stock production has commenced in Sricity, Andhra Pradesh & delivery of first coach
is expected soon. Trial runs on test track are expected to commence soon. The company has
finalized look & feel for rolling stock & stations to provide best in class experience for users.
As on date construction is in full swing & expected date of completion is Q1 FY 2024-25.

Subsidiary Companies

As on March 31, 2023, the Company has 25 subsidiaries, 1 associate and 1 joint venture
companies.

The Company had entered into a Joint Venture arrangement with Canada Pension Plan
Investment Board (“CPP Investments”) to develop and own commercial office space across
India. The joint venture shall target to stabilise and develop assets, aiming to reach over INR
50 billion (C$800 million) in assets under management. As on date, the joint venture had
seeded in two assets, Intellion Park Chennai and Intellion Edge Gurgaon, National Capital
Region of Delhi which were owned and managed by TRIL.

Pursuant to Share Purchase Agreement between Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited (TRIL),
Infopark Properties Limited (IPL) and TRIL Infopark Limited (TIL), TRIL had sold 99.99%
equity Shares of TIL to IPL, pursuant to which TIL has become the Subsidiary Company of
IPL w.e.f June 27, 2022.
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In terms of the Shareholders Agreement (SHA) and Securities Subscription and Purchase
Agreement (“SSPA”) executed amongst TRIL, IPL, CPP Investment Board Private Holdings
(4) Inc (“CPPIB”), TRIL IT4 Private Limited and TIL, dated 08 April, 2022 and as amended
from time to time, the Company had divested 49% stake in IPL, Subsidiary of the Company
in favour of CPPIB.

Also, pursuant to SHA and SSPA executed between the Arrow Infraestate Private Limited,
Gurgaon Construct Well Private Limited and Gurgaon Realtech Limited (“TCG Companies”),
TRIL and CPPIB, dated 08 April, 2022, as amended from time to time, the Company had
divested 49% stake in TCG Companies, Subsidiaries of the Company, in favour of CPPIB
during the year.

During the year under review, the Company had acquired 18,24,81,751 Equity shares of Tata
Housing Development Company Limited (“THDC”). As on March 31, 2023, the Company
owns 43% in THDC.

The Company has also divested its investment in TRIL Bengaluru Real Estate Three Private
Limited, wholly owned subsidiary and has sold 100% stake held by the Company to Tata
Electronics Private Limited. As on May 09, 2023, TRIL Bengaluru Real Estate Three Private
Limited ceased to be wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Except as stated above, there were no other companies which have become or ceased to
be the subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies of the Company, during the year
under review.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act 2013 (“Act”), a statement
containing the salient features of financial statements of the Company’s subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture companies in Form AOC-1is attached to the financial statements
of the Company.

Update on Merger:

With respect to the Scheme of Amalgamation between TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects
Private Limited and Acme Living Solutions Private Limited with Tata Realty and Infrastructure
Limited and their respective members and creditors (1 April 2019 being the Appointed date)
filed with Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Delhi Bench (“NCLT”), has being approved
by NCLT on March 17, 2022.

However, the Scheme of Amalgamation between Wellkept Facility Management Services
Private Limited and MIA Infrastructure Private Limited with Tata Realty and Infrastructure
Limited and their respective members and creditors (1 April 2019 being the Appointed date)
filed with Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, (“NCLT”), is awaiting
approval from NCLT.

The Subsidiaries of the Company i.e. TRIL Infopark Limited (“Transferor company”) and
Infopark Properties Limited (“Transferee Company”), at their meeting held on September
29, 2022, had approved the Scheme of Merger by Absorption of TRIL Infopark Limited
with Infopark Properties Limited and filed the Scheme with the Hon’ble National Company
Law Tribunal, Chennai Bench, (“NCLT”). Further, NCLT vide it's order dated June 21, 2023
approved the said scheme.
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Update on NBFC matter:

The Company along with its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, (“the Group”) remains
exclusively engaged in principal business of real estate and infrastructure development
(including purchase, construction or sale of immovable property, project management
consultancy services and investment advisory services). These business activities of the
Company are mainly carried out through Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) in the form of
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. In carrying out such activities through the SPVs,
the Company funds the SPVs through a judicious mix of equity investments, loans or advances
basis the requirement of each of the entities.

Considering the nature of the business, while the Investments in SPVs constitute more than
90% of its total assets, however, the majority portion of its total income is generated from
operations. Therefore the Company would not fall within the definition of a non-banking
financial company as per the provisions of Section 451 (f) of the RBI Act, 1934. The Company
expects this trend to continue in future years also.

The Company prepares its standalone financials in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS). During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, a significant amount of
interest income and unrealized gains was credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss on
account of revaluation of the investments (issued by SPVs) in compliance with Ind AS 109
requirements.

This resulted in income from financial assets exceeding by more than 50% of the gross
income, which was purely temporary in nature. The slowdown in the economy due to adverse
conditions and temporary low residential sales in its projects, coupled with non-recurring fair
valuation gains had resulted in skewed operating income which in management'’s view was
transient and temporary in nature.

Therefore the Company had made a written representation in May 2022 to the Reserve Bank
of India (RBI) seeking clarifications and that registration as an NBFC may not presently
be insisted upon. This was based on ‘Principal business Test’ as per the RBI Press Release
No. 1998- 99/1269 dated 08.04.1999. The Company had further represented that it does
not intend to carry on the business as a NBFC and will undertake appropriate measures to
increase its operating income.

Covid-19 Pandemic Situation - Update on Operations

A. Impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on business:

During FY 22-23, unlike previous years, there were low to medium spikes of Covid-19
strains in the country at different times of the year with varying intensities across various
geographies. The office sector continued to witness newer work models including WFH
(Work from home), RTO (Return to Office), Hybrid/ Flexible as organizations continued to
test workforce resilience and productivity under various work cultures.

As the situations normalized in second half of 2022, many tenants decided to bring their
employees back with various hybrid work models while many of their employees continued
to choose work from home for business operations. By the end of the year, there was
increased focus by occupiers to bring employees back in a phased manner. Occupancy
levels at our parks rose from below 20% in June 2022 to 41% in March 2023. Almost all
corporate tenants have continued to pay rentals including maintenance charges during
the year, a testament to and acknowledgement of all the efforts to provide services in
these uncertain times. The retail tenants however continued to suffer due to limited
business activity and footfall due to limited return to office.
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The Company was also able to renew 100% of its portfolio tenants due for renewal during
FY 22-23. Committed occupancy levels have been at 89% with minimal churn. Construction
activities have also fully continued at all sites.

B. Ability to maintain operations including the factories/units/office spaces functioning:

Construction sites: Construction has since then stayed resilient during the subsequent
Covid-19 waves and have continued seamlessly in FY 22-23.

Commercial office spaces: Services were kept functioning during with uninterrupted
access to tenants throughout the year.

Residential sales offices: Currently, the sales offices are functioning with 100% occupancy
and following Covid-19 safety protocols.

Corporate offices: Precautionary and proactive work from home was encouraged during
Covid-19 waves. In the present scenario, offices are operational with 100% occupancy
owing to reduction of cases.

C. Steps taken to ensure smooth functioning of operations:

Clear SOPs continue to be implemented for construction activities and office complexes,
covering transport, social distancing, hygiene, and basic do’s & don’ts. Necessary
arrangements have been made to provide sanitizers, spare face masks, PPE kits etc. for
all personnel. Checklists are being adhered to and regular reports circulated to leadership
teams.

Contingency measures are in place for any detected cases, in collaboration with healthcare
facility providers. Regular planning meetings helped in reacting to changing situations and
taking rapid decisions. With the start of vaccination, measures are being taken to facilitate
vaccination for on-site eligible labour. In order to bring additional confidence to tenants
about our commitment to sustainability, wellness and safety the Company undertook
measures and achieved the following certifications:

i. Ramanujan Intellion Park became Indian’s first and Globally 9th Net Zero Carbon
Rated Asset by International Finance Corporation (IFC)

ii. Ramanujan Intellion Park, Intellion Park, Gurgaon and Intellion Edge, Gurgaon also
achieved EDGE Advanced Certification by International Finance Corporation

iii. Your company is also one of the pioneers in India to subscribe to WELL Enterprise by
International WELL Building Institute (IWBI) towards its commitment to wellness

D. Estimation of the future impact of Covid-19 on operations:

Covid-19 and associated strains continue to be a threat to employee safety and wellbeing.
While your company continue to take precautions to ensure health and safety of the
employees operating from its office assets, any such threats bring significant uncertainties
in work environments and need to be dealt accordingly. However, Hybrid Work Models
and Flexible Space Operators may continue to contribute as one of the key demand
drivers for the medium term.

E. Impact of Covid-19 on capital and financial resources, profitability, liquidity position, ability
to service debt, assets and internal financial reporting and control:

The Company has adequate liquidity in the form of cash and cash equivalents and
undrawn facilities. Given its well capitalised balance sheet and strong business profile, the
Company does not envisage any issues in raising additional funds during the year as and
when required.
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The Company has sound internal control measures for all its processes and there has been
no impact on the internal financial reporting and controls of the Company.

. Existing contracts/agreements where non-fulfilment of the obligations by any party will
have significant impact on the listed entity’s business:

The Company is well positioned to fulfil its obligations and does not foresee any significant
impact on the business due to non-fulfilment of the obligations by any party.

Industry Outlook and Future Prospects:

Overview of Real Estate Sector in India:

The Indian economy with its sound fundamentals will remain a hot spot on the global map
in the 21st century, primarily driven by the attractive demographics of 1.3 billion population,
both from a supply and demand perspective. Younger population (median age in 2030 of
31.4 years v/s 40 years in US and 42 years in China) acts as a great talent pool and will
be the largest consumer segment. With ~10 million people migrating to cities every year,
the urban population will contribute 75% to the GDP by 2030.

All these factors will boost the demand for real estate in India across segments. By 2030,
India is likely to need 25 million affordable housing units to meet the urban population’s
demand. The growing economy will drive the demand for commercial and retail space.

As per India Brand Equity Foundation (IBEF), the contribution of real estate sector was
expected to increase from current 6% to 13% of GDP by 2025 and the sector was expected
to reach US$ 1 Trillion by 2030 from US$ 120 Billion in 2017 at an expected CAGR of 19.5%
- however the current economic downturn due to Covid-19 may push growth by 1-2 years.

Indian real estate is expected to attract a substantial amount of FDI over the next two
years, with US$ 8 billion capital infusion by FY22.

Commercial real estate:

The resumption of economic activity in Calendar Year (CY) 2022 post pandemic relaxations
led to the release of pent-up demand and a gradual acceleration of return-to-office plans
by occupiers, which propelled leasing momentum. Office space absorptionin India touched
56.5 million sqg. ft. in CY 2022, surpassing the 40.5 million sq. ft. leasing levels observed
in CY 2021 by about 40%. The leasing activity in CY 2022 was led by Bangalore, Delhi
NCR, Mumbai and Hyderabad with a cumulative share of almost 75%. Technology
corporates (32%) drove the leasing demand followed by Flexible space operators (11%),
Engineering & Manufacturing (10%) and BFSI (9%). Flex space operators emerged as the
second strongest leasing driver with 11% share in leasing activity (6.2 Mn sq. ft.). In a first,
Domestic firms (51%) overtook American firms (37%) in terms of annual leasing.

Supply marginally increased from 49.7 million sq. ft. in CY 2021 to touch 50.6 million sq.
ft. in CY 2022. Thus, gross absorption surpassed development completions during the
year, leading to improving vacancy levels across major cities. Hyderabad, Bangalore and
Delhi NCR drove supply during the year with a cumulative share of about 67%. Several
micro markets in Delhi NCR, Bangalore, Mumbai, Chennai, Hyderabad and Pune witnessed
a quoted rental growth of 1-9% Y-o0-Y.

2023 Office Market Outlook:

Continued macroeconomic uncertainty due to monetary tightening, inflation, potential
downturns in developed economies and geopolitical challenges may impact occupiers’
expansion plans and decision-making in 2023. Even though the full impact of these




challenges on global corporates’ leasing decisions is yet undetermined, absorption may
face downward pressures during the year (-15%) with estimated absorption of 47-49 million
sq. ft. Bangalore, Delhi NCR and Hyderabad would remain the biggest demand drivers
while sustained leasing activity is also expected in Chennai, Mumbai, Pune and Kolkata.

A steady supply pipeline of quality assets is expected to result in around 51-53 million sq.
ft. of space getting delivered in 2023. Bangalore, Delhi NCR and Hyderabad would continue
to dominate completions followed by Chennai, Pune, Mumbai and Kolkata. The share
of large sized transactions (more than 1 million sqg. ft.) is expected to grow in the coming
year, driven by upcoming completions in Hyderabad, Bangalore, Chennai and Mumbai.
The possibility of de-notification of SEZs may lead to more non-SEZ supply entering the
market in coming years.

Demand outstripped supply in 2022, causing vacancy rates to marginally dip across few
cities by end of year. Vacancy rates are thus anticipated to remain range bound in 2023.

In-line with global and APAC trends, hybrid working would continue to be the norm going
forward in India. Occupiers would continue to offer flexibility to their employees as holistic
hybrid working strategies are key to attracting and retaining talent.

Residential Real Estate:

In FY23, more than 6.5 lakh units were sold across India with a ~25% growth in absorption
over the last financial year. Markets have rebounded to much higher levels than pre-
Covid-19 and stayed there, with Q3 witnessing highest ever absorption in several years.
More than 5 lakh units were launched in FY23, an almost ~5% growth in new launches over
last year.

Inventory overhang ~17 months in Q4 FY23, is at one of the lowest levels in several years.

The move towards higher transparency and accountability has continued, evidenced by
the continued consolidation in the market towards reputed, trust-worthy developers with
strong processes & fiscal positions. While higher traction is seen in high-end and premium
segments, government’s policy push to affordable housing with its efforts under Housing
for All as well as infrastructure status will continue to drive traction in the affordable
housing segment as well.

*Sources: RBI Annual report, IBEF, Anarock, JLL, CBRE, PropEquity, Media reports, Press
articles

Infrastructure:

In the financial year 2022-23, the Company is happy to report a full year of operations for
all Road projects and Dharamshala Ropeway after second wave of Covid-19 pandemic.

Overall FY 22-23 has witnessed better traffic growth than expected across all corridors.
Overall, Toll income achieved of Rs. 659.5 Cr which is 29% increase from FY 22 (Rs. 509.4
Cr) with Overall traffic growth of 17%.

There are clear signs that India’s road infrastructure has a bright future and the government
has strived diligently to find new solutions and boost the transportation infrastructure
and connectivity. Between 2023 and 2030, the demand for freight transportation services
will rise in pace with economic expansion. Road transport will continue to be the key mode
of land transportation and despite improvements in rail freight development projects, the
proportion of road freight is anticipated to remain between 65-70%. Due to smaller trucks’
access to distant fulfilment centres, the growing demand for road freight from industries
like retail, fast-moving consumer goods and e-commerce is anticipated to increase. Real-
time cargo tracking, cargo condition monitoring, computer vision and telematics are some
of the digital technologies likely to see increased adoption trends, facilitating the seamless
movement of freight.
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India’s infrastructure outlook over the next decade presents a bright picture. It is lined with
attractive government schemes and a pipeline of major projects - supported by significant
funding and financing. Infrastructure development has been a major focus area for the
government so much so that it is slated to be instrumental in meeting the government’s
aim to become a $5 trillion economy by 2025. According to the Department of Economic
Affairs, Gol, the country needs to inject $4.5 trillion in infrastructure development through
2030 to realize its $5 trillion economy plan by 2025 and to continue growing at a fast
pace.

In the past few years, several schemes have been announced to drive the sector’s growth.
These include the National Infrastructure Pipeline (NIP), the National Monetisation Plan
(NMP), Gati Shakti and the National Single Window System (NSWS).

NIP is an aggregation of social and economic infrastructure projects, both greenfield
and brownfield. It gathers information from the stakeholders and creates a harmonized
list of projects - proposed, conceptualized or under construction. This is aimed at
enhancing investor confidence by ensuring better access to financing resources and better
management of projects, which will lead to lower rates of failure in project delivery.

The NMP transfers the operation of brownfield assets in sectors like railways, roadways,
airports, energy etc from the government to private players. The initiative aims to unlock
the value of public sector assets by leasing them and bringing in private sector money and
efficiency. This practice of asset recycling is not uncommon for governments to raise
money to undertake further construction.

While NIP and NMP look at projects individually, there is also the requirement for
coordinated planning for seamless infra development - a need that is being fulfilled by
Gati Shakti - India’s masterplan for multi-modal connectivity. Gati Shakti brings together
16 ministries to coordinate infrastructure development to ensure last mile connectivity and
network between the various modes of transportation.

Gati Shakti aims to address issues that have prevailed in Indian governance for a long time:
disjointed planning and asynchronized implementation. This has given an impetus to move
towards a logistics policy for ensuring efficient movement and minimum disruption. Large-
scale programs like Bharatmala and Sagaramala, seaports, dry ports, Special Economic
Zones etc will now be planned in sync with each other for maximum utilization.

The NSWS is another strategic policy for implementation of NIP and NMP. NSWS serves
as an online platform where investors can apply for clearances. It addresses issues of
delays in getting approvals and provides information on all the required clearances. The
portalis likely to come online this year. Gati Shakti and NSWS together provide a framework
for the implementation of NIP and NMP.

The Road and Highway sector has traditionally received the most significant attention
among other transport infrastructure in India. The government’s ambitious plans under the
Bharatmala program entail construction of 22 greenfield expressways including the Delhi-
Mumbai Expressway, 23 tunnels and bridges and 35 multi-modal logistics parks. Lastly,
the Company is well poised to participate in these opportunities and in the coming year
Company would also be focusing on acquiring new projects.

Share Capital and Other Securities:

A. Share Capital:

During the year under review, the Company has issued and allotted 50,00,00,006 fully
Paid-Up Equity Shares to its existing Shareholders on Rights Issue Basis.
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As on March 31, 2023, the issued, subscribed and Paid-Up Equity Shares Capital of the
Company stands at Rs. 2117,30,76,980/- divided into 2,11,73,07,698 Equity Shares of Rs.
10/- each.

B. Debt Management:

The Outstanding Debt as of March 31, 2023 stood at Rs. 1525 Crore. During FY23, the
Company achieved significant reduction in Debt to the tune of Rs. 2,555 Crore over March
31,2022. This was achieved mainly through Divestment of stake in some of its Subsidiaries.

The Company raises debt through various sources such as Non-Convertible Debentures,
Commercial Papers, Short term loans, Overdraft facilities and Inter-Corporate Deposits.

C. Credit Ratings:

Your Company has been offering itself to be rated by rating agencies as per following:

‘ Instrument Rating Agency Rating Amount Remarks
Commercial Paper ICRA ICRA Al+ % 2200 crore | Reaffirmed
(Short term) CRISIL CRISIL A1+ 21800 crore | Reaffirmed

CARE Ratings CARE A1+ % 2200 crore | Reaffirmed

Non-Convertible ICRA ICRA AA+ (Stable) T 3000 crore | Upgraded

Debenture CRISIL CRISIL AA+ (Stable) |2195 crore [Py one
notch from
AA (stable)

Short term Bank CARE Ratings CARE A1+ 275 crore Reaffirmed

Facilities - Fund Based

Short term Bank CARE Ratings CARE A1+ %190 crore Reaffirmed

Facilities - Non-

Fund Based - Bank

Guarantee

Short term Bank CARE Ratings CARE A1+ % 135 crore Reaffirmed

Facilities - Non-Fund

and Fund Based

Depository System

Your Company’s Equity Shares are in dematerialization (Demat) form done through National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). The International Securities Identification Number
(ISIN) assigned to the Equity Shares of the Company under the Depository System is
INE371K0O1016. In case of any query, you may please get in touch with the Company or the
Registrar & Transfer Agent i.e. Kfin Technologies Limited, Address: Karvy Selenium Tower
B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad - 500 032, Phone:
+91 040 6716 2222 and +91 40 6716 1602. As on March 31, 2023, 100% of Equity Shares of
your Company were held in dematerialized form.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established
and maintained by the Company, the work performed by the internal, statutory, cost and
secretarial auditors including the audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
by the statutory auditors and the reviews performed by management and the relevant board
committees including the audit committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s
internal financial controls were adequate and effective during FY 2022-23.




Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors to the best of its knowledge and
ability, confirm that:

i. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed and there are no material departures;

ii. They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and of the loss of the
Company for that period,;

ii. They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv. They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

v. They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such
internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively;

vi. They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The Company’s composition of Board is adequate blend of Executive, Non-executive and
Independent Directors. In addition to provisions of the Act, the governance guidelines
adopted by the Board set out the role and responsibility of the Board, composition of the
Board and code of conduct.

The provisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) (“Listing Regulations”) became applicable to
the Company with effect from September 7, 2021 on a ‘comply or explain’ basis until March 31,
2024 and on a mandatory basis thereafter, pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing Obligation
and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with SEBI PR No.
6/2023 dated March 29, 2023.

To comply with the said Listing Regulations, the Company re-constituted the composition of
its Board of Directors and Committees.

As on March 31, 2023, Board of your Company consists of following Members:

1. Mr. Banmali Agrawala - Chairman and Non- Executive Director;

2. Mr. Sanjay Dutt - Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer;
3. Mr. Ankur Dalwani - Non- Executive Director

4. Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar - Non- Executive and Independent Director;

5. Mr. Prabhakar Panda - Non- Executive and Independent Director and
6. Mr. Sudip Mullick - Non- Executive and Independent Director

Mr. Farokh Nariman Subedar (DIN: 00028428) and Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal (DIN: 00057333)
Directors of the Company, had resigned as Directors of the Company with effect from the close
of business hours on March 30, 2023. The Board appreciated contribution and commendable
services provided by Mr. Farokh Nariman Subedar and Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal as Directors of the
Company and acknowledge their professional knowledge and expertise shared during their
tenure and upholding the Tata values.

The members at its Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on June 15, 2022, regularized and
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approved the appointment of Mrs. Sandhya Shailesh Kudtarkar and Mr. Prabhakar Panda as
Independent Directors of the Company for term of 3 years.

Mr. Ankur Dalwani (DIN: 10091697) was appointed as Additional Non-Executive Director of
the Company, liable to retire by rotation with effect from March 29, 2023 to hold the office
till ensuing General Meeting of the Company.

During the year under review, the Board after considering the professional knowledge and
expertise, appointed Mr. Sudip Mullick (DIN: 06942241) as Non-Executive and Independent
Director of the Company with effect from March 29, 2023 for a term of 3 years, subject
to members’ approval. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors possess the
requisite expertise and experience and are persons of high integrity and repute. They fulfill
the conditions specified in the Act as well as the Rules made thereunder and are independent
of the management.

At the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 21, 2018, the Members
of the Company had appointed Mr. Sanjay Dutt (DIN: 05251670), as Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer (MD & CEO) of the Company for a period of 5 years commencing
from April 01, 2018 to March 31, 2023. In view of Mr. Dutt’s experience and exposure in real
estate Sector, the Board vide its resolution dated February 10, 2023, re-appointed Mr. Dutt
as MD & CEO and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company for a further period of 5 years
commencing from April O1, 2023 to March 31, 2028, subject to members approval.

Pursuant to the Regulation 17(1C) of the Listing Regulations, approval of Shareholders was
required for appointment of a person as Director on the Board at the next general meeting
or within a time period of three months from the date of appointment, whichever is earlier.
Accordingly, the members at its Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on June 16, 2023,
regularized and approved:

a -Appointment of Mr. Sanjay Dutt (DIN: 05251670), as MD & CEO of the Company for a
period of 5 years commencing from April O1, 2023 to March 31, 2028;

b -Appointment of Mr. Ankur Dalwani as Non- Executive Director; and

c -Appointment of Mr. Sudip Mullick as Independent Director of the Company for term of 3
years.

Mr. Banmali Agrawala, Director of the Company who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment. A resolution seeking shareholders’ approval for his re-
appointment forms part of the Notice of ensuing Annual General Meeting (“AGM”).

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act, the Independent Directors have
submitted Declarations that they meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section
149(6) of the Act along with Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing
Regulations. There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as
Independent Directors of the Company. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of Listing Regulations,
they have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists
or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their
duties.

During the year under review, the Non-Executive Directors of the Company had no pecuniary
relationship or transactions with the Company other than sitting fees and reimbursement of
expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the Board/Committees
of the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of
the Company as on March 31, 2023 is Mr. Sanjay Dutt, MD & CEO of the Company, Mr. Aravind
Maiya, Chief Financial Officer and Ms. Rashmi Jain, Company Secretary.
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The details of KMP’s appointed and resigned during the period are mentioned below:

Sr. Name of KMP’s Designation Appointment/

No. Resignation
1 | Mr. Bhavesh Madeka |Interim Chief Financial Officer | Appointment | May 10, 2022

2 | Mr. Bhavesh Madeka | Interim Chief Financial Officer| Resignation May 31, 2022
3 | Mr. Aravind Maiya Chief Financial Officer Appointment | June 1, 2022
4 | Mr. Aravind Maiya Chief Financial Officer Resignation | April 25, 2023
5 | Ms. Rashmi Jain Company Secretary Appointment | April O1, 2022

Number of Meetings of the Board

There were 7 (Seven) meetings of the Board, held during the year under review. The said
meetings were held on May 10, 2022, May 28, 2022, June 15, 2022, August 10, 2022, November
9, 2022, February 10, 2023 and March 10, 2023.

Details of the Directors’ attendance are given herein below:

Sr. No. Name of the Board Member Board Meeting Attendance
1 Mr. Banmali Agrawala 7 out of 7
2 Mr. Sanjay Dutt 6 out of 7
3 Mr. Farokh Subedar 7 out of 7
(Resigned w.e.f. March 31, 2023)

4 Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal 7 out of 7
(Resigned w.e.f. March 31, 2023)

5 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar 7 out of 7

6 Mr. Prabhakar Panda 7 out of 7

7 Mr. Ankur Dalwani NA
(Appointed w.e.f. March 29, 2023)

8 Mr. Sudip Mullick NA
(Appointed w.e.f. March 29, 2023)

Board Evaluation

The Board of Directors had carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board
committees and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act.

The performance of the board was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from all the
directors on the basis of criteria such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness
of board processes, information and functioning etc.

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from
the committee members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees,
effectiveness of committee meetings etc.

The above criteria are broadly based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by
the Securities and Exchange Board of India on January 5, 2017.

The Independent Directors held a separate meetings of Independent Directors on March 28,
2023 for FY 22-23 and on May 24, 2023 for FY 23-24 and shared their views for evaluation
amongst themselves over the performance of Non-Independent Directors, the Board as a
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whole and the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive Directors
and Non-Executive Directors.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of
individual directors on the basis of criteria such as the contribution of the individual director
to the board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed,
meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings etc. The Chairman also
had one on one meeting with Chairperson of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
discussing the performance of the Board.

In the Board meeting and meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the
performance of the board, its committees and individual directors was also discussed.
Performance evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire board excluding
the independent director being evaluated.

Committees of the Board:

a) Audit Committee:

As per the provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors at its meeting
held on March 22,2022, constituted the committee with effect from April 01,2022. However,
owning to the resignation of Mr. Farokh Nariman Subedar, Director of the Company and
appointment of Mr. Sudip Mullick (DIN: 06942241) as Additional Director as also
Independent, the Board vide its resolutions dated March 31, 2023, re-constituted the Audit
Committee of the Board as follow with effect from March 31, 2023:

Name of Committee member Designation
1 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Chairperson
2 Mr. Prabhakar Panda Member
3 Mr. Sudip Mullick Member
4 Mr. Sanjay Dutt Member

Further, the Committee meeting dates and attendance details form part of Corporate
Governance Report.

b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

As per the provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors at its meeting
held on March 22,2022, constituted the committee with effect from April 01, 2022. However,
owning to the resignation of Mr. Farokh Nariman Subedar, Director of the Company and
appointment of Mr. Sudip Mullick (DIN: 06942241) as Additional Director as also
Independent, the Board vide its resolutions dated March 31, 2023, re-constituted the
Committee as follow with effect from March 31, 2023:

‘ Sr. No. Name of Committee member Designation
1 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Chairperson
2 Mr. Banmali Agrawala Member
3 Mr. Sudip Mullick Member

Further, the Committee meeting dates and attendance details form part of Corporate
Governance Report.
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The Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration and other matters
provided in Section 178(3) of the Act has been annexed to this report at “Annexure A” and
is also available on www.tatarealty.in.

c) Stakeholder Relationship Committee:

As per the provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors at its meeting
held on March 22, 2022, constituted the committee with effect from April O1, 2022. The
constitution of the Committee as follow with effect from March 31, 2023:

Name of Committee member Designation
1 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Chairperson
2 Mr. Sanjay Dutt Member
3 Mr. Prabhakar Panda Member

Further, the Committee meeting dates and attendance details form part of Corporate
Governance Report.

d) Risk Management Committee:

As per the provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors at its meeting
held on March 22,2022, constituted the committee with effect from April O1,2022. However,
owning to the resignation of Mr. Farokh Nariman Subedar, Director of the Company and
appointment of Mr. Sudip Mullick (DIN: 06942241) as Additional Directorasalsolndependent,
the Board vide its resolutions dated March 31, 2023, re-constituted the Committee as
follow with effect from March 31, 2023:

Name of Committee member Designation
1 Mr. Sanjay Dutt Chairman
2 Mr. Sudip Mullick Member
3 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Member

Further, the Committee meeting dates and attendance details form part of Corporate
Governance Report.

The Company’s Risk Management policy is also available on the website of the Company
i.e. www.tatarealty.in.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy of the Company is set
out as in Annexure C. However, owing to the losses as per the calculation of net profit under
Section 198 of the Act, no contribution was made during the year under review towards CSR
activities. The disclosures as required under the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014 are set out in Annexure D of this report.

The CSR policy is available on website of the Company i.e. www.tatarealty.in.

Internal Financial Control Systems and their Adequacy

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established
and maintained by the Company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial
auditors and external consultants and the reviews performed by management and the




relevant Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that
the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. During the year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable
material weakness in the design or operation was observed. In the opinion of the Auditors of
the Company, there exists an adequate internal control procedure commensurate with the
size of the Company.

The Shareholders of the Company at their Fifteen Annual General Meeting held on
September 14, 2022, had appointed M/s. B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm
Registration No.:101248W/W-100022) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term
of 5 years till the conclusion of Twentieth AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2027.
The Auditors has conveyed their eligibility and willingness to continue as Statutory Auditors
for FY 2023-24.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors had appointed
M/s. D. A. Kamat & Co, a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial
Audit of the Company for FY 2022-23.

Auditor’s Report and Secretarial Audit Report

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by
M/s. B S R & Co. LLP, Statutory Auditors of the Company in their Reports on the Financial
Statements of the Company for FY 2022-23.

The Secretarial Audit Report, in the prescribed Form No. MR-3, is annexed as Annexure B.
There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by M/s. D.
A. Kamat & Co in their Secretarial Audit Report on the Secretarial and other related records
of the Company, for FY 2022-23.

Risk Management

The Company is governed by the Risk Management Charter and Policy Documents. An
integrated Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Charter & Policy has been developed with
the objective of establishing a common understanding and methodology for identifying,
assessing, responding, monitoring and reporting to provide management, the board of
directors with the assurance that key risks are being effectively managed. As per the said
Policy, a Risk Management Steering Committee ('lRMSC') comprising of MD & CEO and
Functional Heads has been formed. The charter and policies provide the overall framework
for Risk Management process which includes risk identification, assessment, evaluation,
treatment and other related process. The RMSC is the Apex Committee inthe RM Organization
structure comprising of key decision makers within the Organization. It is responsible for
adopting and implementing the RM Framework across the Organization. They are charged
with the responsibility of taking decisions to manage the risks and also report about various
initiatives to the Risk Management Committee (RMC) and other stakeholders on a regular
basis.

Based on said ERM framework, the risks identified by the Company are reviewed by the
executive team comprising of employees of the Company including the top management.
Risk identification is a continual process and appropriate mitigation plans are deployed as
required. All the risks are evaluated on the count of occurrence and impact. Based on the
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risk ranking, high risk areas are identified and presented to the Risk Management Committee.

In order to comply with the provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on March 22, 2022, constituted Risk Management Committee with effect from
April 01, 2022. Owing to changes in the Board i.e. the appointment of Mr. Sudip Mullick (DIN:
06942241) as Additional Director as also Independent Director and resignation of Mr. Farokh
Nariman Subedar (DIN: 00028428) as the Director of the Company, the committee was re-
constitute by Board with effect from March 31, 2023.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

Your Company falls within the scope of the definition “Infrastructure Company” as provided
by the Act. Accordingly, the Company is exempt from the provisions of Section 186 of the Act
(except Section 186(1) of the Act) with regard to Loans, Guarantees and Investments.

Related Party Transactions

In line with the requirements of the Act and Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated
a Policy on Related Party Transactions (Policy), to ensure due and proper compliance with
the applicable provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations. The said Policy also provides
guidance for entering into transactions with related parties to ensure that a proper procedure
is defined and followed for approval / ratification and reporting of transactions as applicable
between the Company and its related parties.

During the year under review, all contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into by
the Company during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of
business and on an arm’s length basis and did not attract the provisions of Section 188 (1)
of the Act. Given that all the transactions entered by the Company during the year under
review were at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business and that none of the
transactions were material in nature, the disclosure of related party transactions as required
under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act in Form No. AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company for
financial year 2022-23 and hence does not form part of this report.

Further, the said policy has been modified by the Audit Committee with effect from May 28,
2022 to meet the additional requirement of Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, which
were made applicable to the Company with effect from June 15, 2022.

The RPT policy is available on website of the Company i.e. www.tatarealty.in.

Annual Return

As per the requirements of Section 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Act and Rules framed
thereunder, the Annual Return for FY 2022-23 in the prescribed Form No. MGT-7 shall also
be placed on the website of the Company at www.tatarealty.in.

Particulars of Employees:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs on February 19, 2021, had notified the amendments to
the Companies (Specification of definitions details) Rules, 2014, pursuant to the which the
Company will not be considered as Listed Company as per the provisions of the Act, read
along with Rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, the disclosure pertaining to remuneration
and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 will not
be applicable to the Company during the year under review.
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Disclosure Requirements

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Deposits from Public

During the year under the review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from public
and as such, no amount on account of principal or interest on deposits from public was
outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet.

Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings

and Outgo

The particulars relating to the Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Act, read with the Rule 8(3)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in the “Annexure E” to this report.

Cost Auditors

Your Board has appointed M/s. Kishore Bhatia & Associates, (Firm Registration No 00294),
Practicing Cost Accountant as Cost Auditors of the Company for conducting cost audit
for the FY 2022-23. A resolution seeking ratification of the members for the remuneration
payable to the Cost Auditors for FY 2023-24 is provided in the Notice to the ensuing AGM.

As required under Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company confirms
that it has prepared and maintained cost records as specified by the Central Government
under of Section 148(1) of the Act for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

Details of significant and material orders passed by the Regulator or Courts or Tribunals

impacting the Going Concern Status and Company’s Operations in Future

During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by any
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company’s
operations in future.

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and to which
the financial statements relate and the date of the report:

During the year under review, there were no significant and material changes affecting the
financial position of the Company.

Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and

Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a
policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at workplace in line
with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under for Prevention and Redressal of
complaints of Sexual Harassment at workplace.
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Prevention of Sexual Harassment Committee (POSH) (“Internal Complaints Committee”) is
in place as per the policy and provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. There were no complaints relating to
sexual harassment, pending at the beginning of financial year, received during the year and
pending as on the end of the Financial Year 2022-23.

Vigil Mechanism

The Company has formulated a Vigil Mechanism Policy (“the Policy”), under Section 177 of
the Act with a view to provide a mechanism for employees and Directors of the Company
to approach the Ethics Counsellor to ensure adequate safeguards against victimisation. This
policy is also placed on the website of the Company at www.tatarealty.in and would help to
create an environment where individuals feel free and secure to raise an alarm where they
see a problem. It will also ensure that complainant(s) are protected from retribution, whether
within or outside the organization and makes provision for direct access to the chairperson
of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. We confirm that during the
financial year 2022-23, no employee of the Company was denied access to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee. Further, no Whistle-blower complaint was received by the Company
during the FY 2022- 23.

Corporate Governance Report

The Corporate Governance Report, with the Practicing Company Secretaries’ Certificate
thereon, for the year under review prepared in accordance with the Part C of Schedule V of
the Listing Regulations, forms part of this Annual Report as “Annexure F”.

During the year under review, no fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit
Committee or the Board. There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.
There has been no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. Further, there has been no details, which shall be required to be
given as regard to difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions
along with the reasons thereof, as no such events have occurred.
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Annexure A

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER
EMPLOYEES

[Pursuant to Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 read along with
Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations]

The remuneration policy of the company is designed to create a high performance culture
andisin alignment to the core values of Tata Group. This Policy sets out the guiding principles
for the Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration Committee for recommending to
the Board the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees
of the Company.

The remuneration philosophy is aimed to provide market competitive remuneration to our
executives and employees, in order to attract and retain the most talented and qualified
individual to the company.

The remuneration policy recognises the size, scope and complexity of the company and the
role, the market standing, skills and experience, Company’s capacity to pay in compliance to
the related regulatory compliance requirements.

This remuneration policy has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(3) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule Il of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”). In case of any inconsistency between the provisions
of law and this remuneration policy, the provisions of the law shall prevail and the Company
shall abide by the applicable law.

While formulating this policy, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) has
considered the factors laid down under Section 178(4) of the Act, which are as under:

“(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate directors of the quality required to run the company successfully;

(b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks; and

(c) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves
a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance
objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals”

Key principles governing this remuneration policy are as follows:

A. Remuneration for independent directors and non-independent non- executive directors

(i) Independent directors (“ID”) and non-independent non executive directors (“NED”)
may be paid sitting fees (for attending the meetings of the Board and of committees
of which they may be members) and commission within regulatory limits.

(i)  Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and commission
will be recommended by the NRC and approved by the Board.

(iii) Overallremuneration(sittingfeesand commission) should bereasonableand sufficient
to attract, retain and motivate directors aligned to the requirements of the Company
(taking into consideration the challenges faced by the Company and its future growth
imperatives).

(iv) Quantum of sitting fees may be subject to review on a periodic basis, as required.




(v) Theaggregatecommissionpayabletoallthe NEDsandIDswillberecommendedby the
NRC to the Board based on Company performance, profits, return to investors,
shareholder value creation and any other significant qualitative parameters as may be
decided by the Board.

(vi) The NRC will recommend to the Board the quantum of commission for each director
based upon the outcome of the evaluation process which is driven by various factors
including attendance and time spent in the Board and committee meetings, individual
contributions at the meetings and contributions made by directors other than in
meetings.

(vii) In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the Company may pay to any
director such fair and reasonable expenditure, as may have been incurred by the
director while performing his/her role as a director of the Company. This could include
reasonable expenditure incurred by the director for attending Board / Board
committee meetings, general meetings, court convened meetings, meetings with
shareholders / creditors / management, site visits, induction and training (organized
by the Company for directors) and in obtaining professional advice from independent
advisors in the furtherance of his/her duties as a director.

B. Remuneration payable to Director for services rendered in other capacity

The remuneration payable to the Directors shall be inclusive of any remuneration payable for
services rendered by such director in any other capacity, unless:

(i) The services rendered are of a professional nature; and

(i) The NRC is of the opinion that the director possesses requisite qualification for the
practice of the profession.

C. Remuneration for Managing Director (“MD”), Executive Directors (“ED”) and Key
Management Personnel (“KMP”)

In accordance with the policy, the Managing Director, Executive Director, KMPs, Senior
Management and employees are paid fixed salary which includes basic salary, allowances,
perquisites and other benefits. Remuneration also covers contribution towards social security
benefits / retirement benefits in accordance with statutory provisions as applicable.

In addition to above, they may also earn annual incentive remuneration / performance linked
incentive / annual performance linked bonus subject to achievement of certain defined
qualitative and quantitative performance criteria and such other parameters as may be
considered appropriate from time to time by the NRC and the Board. The performance
linked incentive is driven by the outcome of the performance appraisal process and the
performance of the Company.

Remuneration of MD/ED is as per the contract approved by the shareholders. In case of any
change, the same would require the approval of the shareholders.

The NRC may recommend and provide MD/EDs such remuneration by way of commission,
calculated with reference to the net profits of the Company in a particular financial year, as
may be determined by the Board, subject to the overall ceilings stipulated in Section 197 of
the Act. The specific amount payable to the MD/EDs would be based on performance as
evaluated by the Board or the NRC and approved by the Board.

D. Remuneration for other employees

The policy relating to employees would be as per the remuneration policy of the company
as approved by the Managing Director in consultation with the Head of HR within the overall
framework of above remuneration philosophy and guidelines.
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E. Exclusion

Excludes employees covered by any long term settlements or specific term contracts. The
remuneration for these employees would be driven by the respective long term settlements
or contracts.

F. Policy implementation

The NRC is responsible for recommending the remuneration policy to the Board. The Board
is responsible for approving and overseeing implementation of the remuneration policy.

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Sd/-

Sanjay Dutt
MD & CEO
DIN: 05251670
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Annexure C

PREAMBLE:

At Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited (“TRIL” or “the Company”), we are committed
to Tata Group’s vision of Integrating environmental, social and ethical principles into the
core business, thereby improving the quality of life of the communities we serve and
enhancing long-term stakeholder value. At TRIL, we are sensitive and concerned about the
communities and region we are operating. Thus believing that through sustainable measures,
we would actively contribute to the Social, Economic and Environmental Development of the
Community.

CSR VISION AND MISSION:

The Company recognizes its responsibility towards the society and contributes significantly
towards the betterment of the local communities it serves.

We believe in creating value for the community we work and empowering our stakeholders
by touching the lives of one lakh people by 2025. The said vision- mission is proposed to be
achieved by implementing CSR programs in the key areas of Livelihood and Skill development,
Healthcare, Environment protection, Social development, Education and relief.

Activities undertaken in the past:

The Company and its subsidiaries have a wide geographical stretch covering throughout the
nation and has voluntarily initiated numerous CSR activities during its recent past like;

Health:

- Organizing awareness sessions on health and hygiene, free health check-ups and blood
donation camps in and around the project site.

- Installation of water purification plants at schools near project sites.

- Rural development programs like support on providing a garbage vehicle and providing
ambulance support.

Environment Protection:

- Undertaking plantation drives within the communities and schools to bring about an
awareness on environmental issues and creating balance ecosystem.

Livelihood:

- Entrepreneurship Development program (EDP) for socio-economically backward youth
involved in the construction sector.

- Skill development program for the construction workers.

- An onsite welfare facilitation program for construction workers to improve access to social
protection schemes.

- Working towards women empowerment by introducing scholarship program for girls
coming from socio-economically challenged backgrounds.




Education:
- Supporting educational institutes and universities in the conducting academic research.

Social Development and Relief:

- Support to Informal Workers of Urban Areas to Combat Covid-19.

- Support on improving medical infrastructure as a response to the Covid-19 crises in the
nation.

DEFINITION - CSR POLICY:

This CSR Policy is a statement containing the approach and direction given by the Board of
a company, taking into account the recommendations of the CSR Committee, and includes
guiding principles for selection, implementation and monitoring of activities as well as
formulation of the annual action plan.

OBJECTIVES OF THE POLICY:

- Define the operational framework and to provide a pathway for undertaking CSR initiatives
for the company.

- The Policy sets out the rules that need to be adhered to while taking up and implementing
CSR activities.

- To lay down effective guidelines in carrying out CSR programs by aligning them to the
areas mentioned under the schedule 7 of companies Act 2013 and contribute efforts
towards meeting larger SDGs (Sustainable Development Goals) 2030.

The Company shall timely ensure appropriate utilization of contribution viz financial and
human resources to the benefit of the community at large.

CSR THRUST AREAS AND FRAMEWORK:

The programs designed towards integrating wider perspectives of SDGs 2030 will reflect on
doing a responsible business and invest in Social good.

The CSR Framework developed for the next 3 years, focuses on the following areas of
intervention, which are in line with Schedule VIl of Companies Act 2013 and beyond business
as usual.
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COMPOSITION OF THE CSR COMMITTEE:

The Committee shall be constituted with following members only if the CSR expenditure
amount to be spent by a company exceeds fifty lakh rupees:

D With minimum three directors of which at least one director shall be an Independent
Director from the Board of the Company; or

2) With minimum two directors from the Board of the Company, in case the company is
not required to appoint an independent director under sub-section (4) of section 149
of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”).

If the CSR committee is not required to be constituted by the Company as per provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, the Responsibility of CSR Committee as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, be discharged by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Mandate of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

As per provisions of Section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 (as amended), the CSR Committee shall:

i) Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company in the areas or
subject specified in Schedule VII;
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ii) Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities;
iii) Monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time;

iv) To formulate and recommend to the Board an Annual Action Plan in pursuance of the
CSR policy, which shall include the following, namely:-

a) the list of CSR projects or programs that are approved to be undertaken in areas or
subjects specified in Schedule VII of the Act,

b) the manner of execution of such projects or programs,

c) the modalities of utilization of funds and implementation schedules for the projects
or programs,

d) monitoring and reporting mechanism for the projects or programs, and

v) details of need and impact assessment, if any, for the projects undertaken by the
company

ADDITIONAL MANDATE:

i) Oversee the company’s conduct with regard to its corporate and societal obligations
and its reputation as a responsible corporate citizen;

ii) Oversee activities impacting the quality of life of various stakeholders;

iii) Monitor the CSR Policy and expenditure of the material subsidiaries (material
subsidiary” means a subsidiary whose income or net worth exceeds ten percent of the
consolidated income or net worth respectively of the Company and its subsidiaries in
the immediately preceding financial year).

IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURE/ ANNUAL ACTION PLAN:

The CSR programs will be designed systematically with defined timelines, objectives and
deliverables. All the CSR initiatives will have well-defined KPIs to measure impacts on target
groups.

Every year Company review the existing programs and will come out with Action Plan for
implementation of each of the CSR projects or programs, which were approved by the CSR
Committee.

The company will collaborate with select NGO/ voluntary organization for the implementation
of the programs. The engagement with the partner will be based on thorough due diligence
process and assessing the credibility of the organization.

The Company shall during the financial year i.e. any time between 1st April to 31st March
every year, carry out its above listed CSR activities. The CSR Committee shall, from time to
time, decide on the schedule.

The modalities of utilization of funds and implementation schedules for the projects or
programs:

The funds required for utilization on CSR activities shall be allocated out of the profits of the
Company. The Company shall spend on CSR activities an amount of at least two percent of
the average net profits, made during the three immediately preceding financial years. The
average net profit shall be reckoned in accordance with the provisions of Section 198 of the
Act.




However, in the absence of any profits, the Company may still volunteer to undertake/spend
on CSR activities.

The Company shall implement the CSR activities either on its own or by contributing in
form of donation to a registered trust / society. The Committee may from time to time
recommend selecting and implementing any of the CSR activities enumerated above and to
encourage employees to voluntarily participate in such activities toward society’s betterment
and overall well-being.

MONITORING AND REPORTING MECHANISM:

The Committee may from time to time monitor proper implementation of its CSR activities,
either by itself or through appointed authorized representative or by appointing independent
agency or as it may deemed fit. The concerned person shall supervise and submit a report,
containing details on implementation of the CSR activities to the CSR Committee of the
Board.

Details of Impact Assessment, if any, undertaken by the Company:

The Company may on its own or engage the services of professional / independent agency
in order to do the impact assessment of selected or applicable projects or programs on a
periodic basis, as may be required from time to time.

POLICY GUIDELINES AND REVIEW

This CSR Policy has been formulated as per prevailing provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (as amended), the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) and after taking into considerations of Clarifications / FAQ issued by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (MCA) from time to time. However, if, due to subsequent changes in
the law, a particular part thereof may become inconsistent with the law, in such case the
provisions of the law will prevail.

This CSR policy document will be reviewed from time to time. Any changes, if necessary will
be approved by the CSR Committee of the Board.

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

sd/-

Banmali Agrawala
Chairman

DIN: 00120029
Date: July 21, 2023
Place: Mumbai




Annexure D

THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and
projects or programs:

The CSR policy outlines the objectives, composition of the Committee, CSR scope, activity
schedule, monitoring and reporting methods. The CSR policy can be viewed on the web-
site of the Company www.tatarealty.in

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee:

The MCA on January 22, 2021, also notified the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020,
pursuant to which Section 135(9) was inserted in the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), wherein
if the amount required to be spent by a company as CSR Expenditure does not exceed
fifty lakh rupees, the requirement for constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee shall not be applicable and the functions of CSR Committee provided under
this section shall, in such cases, be discharged by the Board of Directors of the company.

Considering the aforesaid relaxation provided by MCA, the Board at its meeting held on
May 24, 2021, dissolved the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company
with effect from April 01, 2021.

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: www.tatarealty.in

4. Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable
(attach the report):

The Company was not required to implement, monitor and report any CSR activities,
during the year under review.

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required
for set off for the financial year, if any: N.A.

Sr. No. | Financial Year | Amount available for set-off from | Amount required to be
preceding financial years (in Rs.) |setoff for the financial
year, if any (in Rs.)

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) of the Act: Not applicable, as
Company have incurred losses (based on calculations made as per Section 198 of the
Act) in last three financial years.

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5):

The Company was not required to spend mandatory 2% CSR expenditure for the year
ended March 31, 2023, due to reasons mentioned in item 6 above.

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: N.A.

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: N.A.
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): N.A.




8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: N.A.

Spent for

Year.(in Rs.)

Total Amount

the Financial

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent
CSR Account as per section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund
specified under Schedule VIl as

per second proviso to section
135(5).
Amount Date of Name of Amount Date of
transfer the Fund transfer

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: N.A.

m | @ @ | @ (5) ® | @
Amount Location of the Project duration.
Name of the Project. project. Amount allocated
[tem from the list of activities in Schedule VII State District for theproject (in
to the Act. Rs.)
Local area (Yes/No).
(8) 9 (10) n
Amount spent in the Amount transferred to Mode of Mode of
current financial Year | Unspent CSR Account for | Implementation mplementation
(in Rs.). the project as per Section | -Direct (Yes/No) - Through
135(6) (in Rs.). Implementing Agency
Name. CSR
registration
number

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial

year: N.A.

M| @ (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sr. | Name |ltem from | Local area Location of Amount Mode of Mode of

No.| of the | thelist of | (Yes/No). the project. spent implementation Implemen-

Project. | activities for the -Direct tation
in project (Yes/No) Through
Schedule (in Rs.). Impleme-nting
VIl to the Agency
Act.

State | District Name | CSR
regis-
tration
number
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(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: N A.

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: N.A.

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): N.A.
(g9) Excess amount for set off, if any: N.A.

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (in Rs.)

©) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sec- -
tion 135(5)

D) Total amount spent for the Financial Year -

@i Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] -

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmesor activ- -
ities of the previous financial years, if any

) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)- -

(iv)
9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: N.A.
Sr. Preceding Amount transferred | Amount | Amount transferred Amount
No. | Financial Year to Unspent CSR spent to any fund specified | remaining
Account under in the under Schedule VII to be
section 135 (6) (in | reporting | as persection 135(6), spent in
Rs.) Financial if any. succeeding
Year (in financial
Rs.) years. (in
Name | Amount | Date of Rs.)
of the | (in Rs) transfer
Fund

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the
preceding financial year(s): N.A.

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset
so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details): N.A.

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital Asset

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital
asset is registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address
and location of the capital asset).

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per section 135(5): Not applicable, as Company have incurred losses
(based on calculations made as per Section 198 of the Act) in last three financial years.

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

sd/-

Sanjay Dutt

MD & CEO

DIN: 05251670
Date: July 21, 2023
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE E

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The particulars relating to the Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as under:

A. Conservation of Energy

At Tata Realty, our mission goes beyond building physical structures that become desirable
homes and workplaces. It is about leading with a purpose and acting responsibly, building
sustainably, and progressing collectively. Our ESG strategy is based on 5R sustainability
approach - Responsible Value Chain Governance, Resilient Structures, Replenish Nature,
Reap Talent & Respect Lives. Currently, Tata Realty and Infrastructure limited operates five
assets in Mumbai, Chennai, and Delhi-NCR. In all these assets, significant measures have been
undertaken to Energy Conservation, Energy Efficiency and Enhanced Renewable Energy.

The scale and complexity of operations require a considerable amount of energy. We
incorporate energy-saving interventions in the design, construction, and maintenance
operations to reduce our energy consumption and increase the share of renewable energy
in the mix to limit our GHG emissions. The construction industry is dependent on several
inputs, and we lean on our supply chain to partner with us in reducing our energy usage. We
measure and monitor our carbon footprint and take action to regulate and minimize it.

Steps taken or Impact on Conservation of Energy -

Energy Meters * Smart energy meters are provided for all major equipment,
common areas, and tenant areas.

* Smart BTU meters are also installed to monitor energy usage
for the HVAC

Energy-efficient |+ All pumps greater than 3 HP have at least 75% efficiency. Other

Equipment pumps selected on ISI ratings to deliver standard performance.

* Intelligent group controls in elevators to optimize energy use

* Water level controllers to avoid overflows and water and energy
wastage.

* Energy-efficient LED light fixtures

» BEE 5-star rated air conditioners.

» Series Counter flow chillers

* EC Motors for AHUs

Electric Vehicles |+ At least 5% of parking slots across all projects have charging
facilities
for electric vehicles

Health and Safe- | ¢ Project designs allow optimal use of natural air and light to

ty reduce daytime energy consumption.

* Well health safety rated buildings.

* South and north direction facing walls of apartments and common
areas are provided with glazed windows to allow natural sunlight

and heating
Low loss * All projects have Level 2 transformers with little or no full load
Transformers losses




Smart * Common area lights fitted with timers and other energy-saving

Automation devices

* Smart home automation in apartments optimizes the consumption
of electrical devices .

« Command Centers for efficient energy usage

» ML/Al-based preventive maintenance systems

Our employees use energy-saving electronic gadgets and commute using carpooling. At our
corporate office, we switch off 50% of our air conditioning plant for an hour every day during
lunchtime. Smart systems help automatically turn off lights in offices where employees leave
by 6.30. The common areas and gardens in our projects have solar lights installed to increase
our usage of renewable power.

Installation of energy efficient equipment - Aluminum composite panels (ACP) are commonly
used for providing the external cladding of building facades. Although ACP is lightweight yet
strong, one disadvantage is its moderate performance in keeping out the heat. We introduced
an alternative application called Exterior Insulation Finishing System (EIFS) for the first time
at our Intellion Edge Centre project in Gurugram. The basic component of EIFS is expanded
polystyrene (EPS), which provides both durability and strength. The 50 mm thick EPS layer is
overlaid with cementitious coatings. Using EIFS has enhanced operational efficiency as it can
be installed faster. Additionally, it provides better thermal insulation, allowing us to reduce
the costs of internal cooling, which has given us significant energy savings.

To save the energy, Solar Power Plant on Uchit Toll Plaza at Km. 261.600, 6-laning of Udaipur
-Chittorgarh section of NH-48 in the state of Rajasthan has been installed on July 26, 2022
that has resulted in great financial and environmental benefits.

Use of maximum daylight - Use of maximum Day light in Offices and common areas by
providing glazed windows facing South /North Direction. Smart systems help automatically
turn off lights in offices where employees leave by 6.30 pm. The common areas and gardens
in our projects have solar lights installed to increase our usage of renewable power.

Renewable Energy Enhancement - We have achieved India’s first IFC Certified Zero Carbon
building i.e. Ramanujan Intellion Park, Chennai. Ramanujan Intellion Park runs on 93%
renewable energy. With rooftop solar plant installed, it uses 1 kwh renewable energy per
Sqa.ft. There have been 45% energy savings for lift operations through regenerative drive
systems. Ramanujan Intellion Park, Chennai is LEED and IFC Edge Advanced certified. At
Uchit Highway, subsidiary Company has planted approx. 5000 avenue plants along the
national Highway in FY 22-23. On 17th July 22 plantation drive conducted by inhouse staff
along with NHAI and |IE and planted 1000 Nos plants in a single day.

B. Technology Absorption

(i) Efforts made towards technology absorption and Benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution:

The Company has invested in various technologies from design to delivery to improve
quality and project timelines. Out of which the below technologies contribute to
sustainability by minimizing waste, optimizing energy/resource usage, reducing
environmental impact and promoting long-term operational efficiency.

* Drone usage in Construction Monitoring: Drones monitor our construction progress,
identifying inefficiencies and potential areas for improvement resulting in the
optimization of construction resources and processes.

* QA checklist using Autodesk Build ensures that construction activities meet specific
quality standards and prevent errors and defects and avoids unnecessary material
and resource consumption.
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* Design collaboration identifies clash detection and eliminates the need for rework.

* Our Command Centre monitor, control and coordinate various systems and
processes allowing for efficient resource management, proactive maintenance, and
effective incident response.

« The adoption of Cloud computing and SaaS improved energy efficiency and
resource optimization and reduced e-waste generation.

« Our Digital customer onboarding platform provides a sustainable alternative to
traditional, paper-based processes. It reduces paper waste and minimizes the need
for physical travel.

* HR digitization of the entire employee lifecycle from "hire to retire” including
employee awards and mental health and wellness and Digital Learning platforms
which reduces the usage of paper, prints and travel requirements in the complete
process lifecycle.

- Digital signatures, Online Vendor Portal and Management Dashboards eliminate
the need for physical paper documents, reducing paper waste and promoting a
paperless workflow hence reducing carbon emissions by eliminating the need for
physical transportation of documents for signing.

* Remote construction monitoring reduces the need for frequent on-site visits,
minimizing travel-related carbon emissions, optimizing resource utilization and
improving project efficiency and reducing environmental impact.

We have adopted Microsoft technologies like Teams and Office collaboration facilities
which help us to do virtual meetings, reduce paper waste, optimize processes and promote
sustainable work practices. These facilities enhance productivity and reduce environmental
impact by reducing travel, minimum paper usage and e-waste and energy.

(ii) Imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year)- The Company has not imported any technology
during the last three years immediately preceding the FY 2022-23.

(iii) Expenditure incurred on Research and Development. The Company has not incurred
any expense on Research and Development during the FY 2022-23.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo

Below mentioned is the information relating to Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo for the
year ended March 31, 2023:

Foreign Exchange Earned: NIL
Foreign Exchange Spent: INR 99,16,863/-

By order of the Board
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Sd/-

Banmali Agrawala
Chairman

DIN: 00120029
Date: July 21, 2023
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure F

Effective corporate governance practices constitute the strong foundation on which successful
commercial enterprises are built to last. The Company’s philosophy on corporate governance
oversees business strategies and ensures fiscal accountability, ethical corporate behaviour and
fairness to all stakeholders comprising regulators, employees, customers, vendors, investors
and the society at large. Strong leadership and effective corporate governance practices
have been the Company’s hallmark inherited from the Tata culture and ethos. The Company
has a strong legacy of fair, transparent and ethical governance practices. The Company
has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the Managing Director and the
Executive Directors. In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its non-
executive directors which includes Code of Conduct for Independent Directors which suitably
incorporates the duties of independent directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”). The Company’s corporate governance philosophy has been further strengthened
through the Tata Business Excellence Model, the Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited’s
Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and the Code of Corporate Disclosure
Practices (“Insider Trading Code”). To the extent possible, the Company had complied
with the requirements stipulated under Regulation 15 to 27 of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI
Listing Regulations”). Pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with SEBI PR No. 6/2023 dated
March 29, 2023, the applicability of the said regulations/provisions has extended the ‘comply
or explain’ period for High Value Debt Listed Entities in respect of Corporate Governance till
March 31, 2024.

Board of Directors

i. As on March 31, 2023, the Company has 6 Directors. Out of the 6 Directors, 3 are
Independent Directors, 2 are Non-Executive Directors and 1 is Executive Director. The
profiles of Directors is placed on the website of the Company https://www.tatarealty.in/
board-of-directors. The present strength of the Board meets the requirement of
Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

ii. None of the Directors on the Board holds directorships in more than 10 public companies.
None of the Independent Directors serves as an independent director on more than
7 listed entities. Necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions in other public
companies as on March 31, 2023 have been made by the Directors. None of the Directors
is related to each other.

iii. Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b)
of the SEBI Listing Regulations, read with Section 149(6) of the Act along with rules
framed thereunder. Interms of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, confirmations
from Independent Directors have been received confirming that they are not aware
of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that
could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. Based on the declarations
received from the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors has confirmed that
they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the
SEBI Listing Regulations and that they are independent of the management. Further, the
Independent Directors have included their names in the data bank of Independent
Directors maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of Section




150 of the Act, read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014.

iv. There were seven Board Meetings held during the year under review and the gap
between two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The said meetings
were held on May 10, 2022, May 28, 2022, June 15, 2022, August 10, 2022, November
9, 2022, February 10, 2023 and March 10, 2023. The necessary quorum was present for
all the meetings.

v. Web link of familiarization programmes imparted to independent directors: https:/www.
tatarealty.in/investor-info

vi. The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board
Meetings held during the year under review and at the last Annual General
Meeting (“AGM”), names of other listed entities in which the Director is a director and
the number of Directorships and Committee Chairmanships / Memberships held by them
in other Public Limited Companies as on March 31, 2023 are given herein below. Other
directorships do not include directorships of Private Limited Companies, foreign
companies and companies registered under Section 8 of the Act. Further, none
of Director is a member of more than ten committees or chairman of more than
five committees across all the public companies in which he/she is a Director.
For the purpose of determination of limit of the Board Committees, chairpersonship
and membership of the Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
has been considered as on March 31, 2023, as per Regulation 26(1)(b) of SEBI Listing
Regulations.

Name of the Category Number | Whether Number of Number of Directorship
Director of Board | attended Directorships Committee positions | in other listed
(DIN) Meetings | last AGM in other Public held in other Public | entity (Category
attended | held on Companies Companies of Directorship
during 14/09/ -
FY 2022 All
2022- (Yes/No) professional)
2023
Chairman | Member | Chairman | Member
Mr. Banmali | Non- 7 out Yes 5 2 2 The Tata Power
Agrawala Indepen- of 7 Company
Designation: | dent, Limited (Equity
Chairman Non- Listed);
DIN: Executive and Tata
00120029 Housing
Development
Company
Limited (Debt
Listed)
Mr. Sanjay Non- 6 out Yes 6 0] 3 Tata Housing
Dutt Independent, | of 7 Development
Designation: | Executive Company
MD & CEO Limited (Debt
05251670 Listed)
And
Infopark
Properties
Limited
(Debt Listed)

55




Mrs.
Sandhya
Shailesh
Kudtarkar
Designation
Independent
Director
DIN:
00021947

Independent,
Non-
Executive

7 out
of 7

Yes

Tata Housing
Development
Company
Limited

(Debt Listed);

Mr.
Prabhakar
Panda
Designation:
Independent
Director

DIN:
02860918

Independent,
Non-
Executive

7 out
of 7

No

Mr. Ankur
Dalwani**
Designation:
Non-
Executive
Director
DIN:
10091697

Non-
Independent,
Non-
Executive

NA

NA

Tata Housing
Development
Company
Limited (Debt
Listed)

Mr. Sudip
Mullick**
Designation:
Independent,
Non-
Executive
Director

DIN:
06942241

Independent,
Non-
Executive

NA

NA

Tata Housing
Development
Company
Limited (Debt
Listed)

vii. During FY 2022-23, to the extent possible, information as mentioned in Part A of
Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations, has been placed before the Board for its
consideration.

viii. During FY 2022-23, 1 (one) meeting of the Independent Directors was held on
March 28, 2023.

ix. The Board periodically reviews the compliance reports of all laws applicable to the
Company.

X. The Board periodically reviews the compliance reports of all laws applicable to the
Company.

xi. The Board has identified the following skills/expertise/ competencies fundamental for
the effective functioning of the Company which are currently available with the Board:
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Skills

Detailing of such skills

Name of Directors, who have such
skills/expertise/competence

Global Business Understanding, of  global business | Mr. Banmali Agrawala, Mr. Sanjay Dutt
dynamics, across various geographical | and Mr. Ankur Dalwani
markets, industry verticals and regulatory
jurisdictions.

Strategy, Finance Appreciation of long-term trends, strategic | Mr. Banmali Agrawala, Mr. Sanjay Dutt

and Planning choices and experience in guiding and | Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar, Mr. Prabhakar
leading management teams to make | Panda, Mr. Sudip Mullick and Mr. Ankur
decisions in uncertain environments. Dalwani

Governance Experience in developing governance | Mr. Banmali Agrawala, Mr. Sanjay Dutt
practices, serving the best interests of | Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar, Mr. Prabhakar
all stakeholders, maintaining board and | Panda, Mr. Sudip Mullick and Mr. Ankur
management accountability, building long- | Dalwani
term effective stakeholder engagements
and driving corporate ethics and values.

Legal With expertise in compliance regulations | Mr. Sudip Mullick and Mrs. Sandhya
and dispute resolution mechanisms Kudtarkar

*Mr. Farokh Nariman Subedar and Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal had resigned w.e.f. 31-03-2023
**Mr. Ankur Dalwani and Mr. Sudip Mullick were appointed w.e.f. 29-03-2023

xii. Detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director who resigns before the
expiry of his/her tenure along with a confirmation by such director that there are no other
material reasons other than those provided: None

Committees of the Board

The Board has constituted Committees with specific terms of reference to focus on specific
areas. These include the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the
Risk Management Committee and the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The Board of
Directors and the Committees also take decisions by Resolutions passed through circulation
which are noted by the Board/respective Committees of the Board at their next meetings.
The Minutes and the gist of minutes of meetings of all Committees of the Board are circulated
to the Board of Directors for noting.

Owing to amendment to the SEBI Listing Regulations dated September 07, 2021, the Company
was classified as High Debt Listed Company, having listed NCD’s of more than Rs.500
Crore and the Chairman of the Board, also being related to Promoter Group. Accordingly,
to comply with the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on March 22, 2022, approved the constitution Audit Committee, Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, Risk Management Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee. Pursuant to the resignation of Mr. Farokh Nariman Subedar, Director of the
Company and appointment of Mr. Sudip Mullick (DIN: 06942241) as Additional Director as
also Independent Director, the Board re-constituted the Committees of the Board as follows
with effect from March 31, 2023:

(a) Audit Committee
Composition of the Committee:

Sr. No. Name of Committee member Designation

1 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Chairperson
2 Mr. Prabhakar Panda Member
3 Mr. Sudip Mullick Member
4 Mr. Sanjay Dutt Member
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The composition of the Audit Committee is in line with the provisions of Section 177 of the
Act and the Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. All the Members have ability to
read and understand the financial statements and possess relevant finance and / or audit
experience. Further, the Committee had met 7 (Seven) times during the year under review.
The said meetings were held on May 10, 2022, May 28, 2022, June 15, 2022, August 10, 2022,
November 9, 2022, February 09, 2023 and February 10, 2023. The details of the presence of
Members are given herein below:

Name of Committee member Meeting Attendance
1 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar 7 out of 7
2 Mr. Prabhakar Panda 7 out of 7
3 Mr. Farokh Subedar 7 out of 7
(Resigned w.e.f. March 31, 2023)
4 Mr. Sudip Mullick NA

(Appointed as Member in Committee w.e.f.
March 31, 2023)

5 Mr. Sanjay Dutt NA
(Appointed as Member in Committee w.e.f.
March 31, 2023)

Terms of reference

The terms of reference shall be as per Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18 read along
with Part C of Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The previous AGM of the Company was held on September 14, 2022 and was attended by
Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar, Chairperson of the Audit Committee.

The Board has accepted all the recommendations made by the Audit Committee during the
year.

Besides the Members of the Committee, meetings of the Audit Committee are attended
by the Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary, the Statutory Auditors, the Head -
Internal Audit and other persons, as the Committee may consider appropriate.

(b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”)
Composition of the Committee:

Composition of the Risk Management Committee

Name of the Board member Designation in Committee
1 Mr. Sanjay Dutt Chairperson
2 Mr. Sudip Mullick Member
3 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Member

The terms of reference of the RMC shall be as specified in Regulation 21 read along with Part
D of Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations including functions related to cyber security
of the Company.

Further, the Committee had met 2 (Two) times during the year under review. The said
meetings were held on August 09, 2022 and January 20, 2023. The details of the presence
of Members are given herein below:
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Sr. No. Name of Committee member Meeting Attendance ‘
1 Mr. Sanjay Dutt 2 out of 2
2 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar 2 out of 2
3 Mr. Farokh Subedar 2 out of 2
(Resigned w.e.f. March 31, 2023)
4 Mr. Sudip Mullick NA
(Appointed as Member in Committee w.e.f.
March 31, 2023)

(d) Stakeholders Relationship Committee (“SRC”)

Composition of the Committee:

Composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Name of the Board member Designation in Committee
1 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Chairperson
2 Mr. Sanjay Dutt Member
3 Mr. Prabhakar Panda Member

The terms of reference of the SRC shall be to specifically look into various aspects of interest
of shareholders, debenture holders and other security holders and do such other acts as
prescribed under Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20 read along with Part D of Schedule
[l of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Further, the Committee had met 1 (One) time during the year under review. The said meeting
was held on February 09, 2023. The details of the presence of Members are given herein
below:

Sr. No. Name of Committee member Meeting Attendance

1 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar 1 out of 1
2 Mr. Sanjay Dutt 1 out of 1
3 Mr. Prabhakar Panda 1out of 1

During the financial year under review, the Company has neither received any investor
complaints nor any complaints received by the Company are pending or remained unresolved
for the year ended March 31, 2023. Further, Ms. Rashmi Jain, Company Secretary of the
Company has been designated as Compliance Officer of the Company.

Remuneration of Directors

a. Non-Executive Directors

The Company paid Sitting fees to the Non-Executive Directors (“NEDs”) and Independent
Directors (“IDs”) for attending meetings of the Board and the Committees of the Board.
The details of the same are, as under:




Name of the Director(s) Sitting Fees paid for attending Board/
Committee Meetings held during FY 2022-23

Mr. Banmali Agrawala
Designation: Chairman Rs. 2,00,000/-
DIN: 00120029

Mr. Sandhya Shailesh Kudtarkar
Designation: Independent Director Rs. 18,60,000/-
DIN: 00021947

Mr. Prabhakar Panda
Designation: Independent Director
DIN: 02860918

Rs. 15,20,000/-

Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal
Designation: Director

DIN: 00057333

(Resigned w.e.f. March 31, 2023)

Rs. 1,40,000/-

Mr. Farokh Subedar
Designation: Director

DIN: 00028428

(Resigned w.e.f. March 31, 2023)

Rs. 17,40,000/-

Mr. Sudip Mullick
Designation: Independent Director NA
DIN: 06942241

(Appointed w.e.f. March 29, 2023)

Mr. Ankur Dalwani

Designation: Director

DIN: 10091697

(Appointed w.e.f. March 29, 2023)

NA

The Remuneration Policy of the Company which, inter alia, lays down the criteria of making
payments to non-executive directors is available on the website of Company at https:/www.
tatarealty.in. None of the NEDs and IDs had any other pecuniary relationships or transactions
with the Company during the year under review, other than sitting fees and reimbursement of
expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the Board/Committee
of the Company.

b. Managing Director

Terms of appointment and remuneration of Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Managing Director are as
under

Particulars Details

Period of appointment April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2023
Period of re-appointment April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2028

Notice Period and Severance Fees | The Services of the Managing Director may be
terminated earlier by either party giving the other
Party three months’ notice of such termination or
the Company paying three months’ remuneration
and other pro-rated incentive / commission (at the
discretion of the Board), in lieu of such notice. There
is no separate provision for payment of Severance
fees.
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Stock Options NIL

Fixed component (a) Rs.49556712/-
Bonus/Incentive Remuneration Rs.37500000/-
for FY 2022-23 to be paid in FY

2023-24 (b)

Perquisites and allowances (c) NIL

Retirement benefits (d) Rs.2202192/-
Pension (e) NIL
Commission (f) NIL

Salary for FY 2022-23 Rs. 89258904*/-
(a+b+c+d+e+f)

*As per the approval of the shareholders, a part of the Managing Director’s remuneration is
being reimbursed from Tata Housing Development Company Limited (THDC).

General Body Meetings

(a) Annual General Meeting (AGM)

Financial Date Special
Year Resolutions
Passed
2019-20 |29/09/2020 | 01:30 p.m. | Through Video Conferencing To approve
(VC) / Other Audio Visual Means issuance of Non
(OAVM). The deemed venue for Convertible
the 13th AGM was the registered Debentures on
office of the Company E Block, Private Placement
Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, |basis
Chinchpokli, Mumbai -
400033
2019-20 |21/07/2021 | 0500 pm. | Through Video Conferencing (VC) / | i- Payment of
Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM). | Remuneration to
The deemed venue for the 14th | Mr. Sanjay Dutt,
AGM was the registered office of | Managing Director
the Company E Block, Voltas Prem- | of the Company
ises, T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, | for the period
Mumbai - April 1, 2021 to
400033 March 31, 2023;
and
ii- To approve
issuance of
NonConvertible
Debentures
on Private
Placement basis
2019-20 [14/09/2022 [11.30 a.m. | Through Video Conferencing | i. Issuance of
(VC) / Other Audio Visual Means | NonConvertible
(OAVM). The deemed venue for|Debentures
the 15th AGM was the registered | on Private
office of the Company E Block, | Placement
Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, | basis
Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033
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(b) Extraordinary General Meeting:

Financial Date Special
Year Resolutions
Passed
2021-22 16/11/2021 0430 pm. | Through Video Conferencing (VC) To approve
/ Other Audio Visual Means sale of 0.001%
(OAVM). The deemed venue for the EGM | NonCumulative,
was the registered office of the Compa- | NonRedeemable,
ny E Block, Voltas Compulsorily and
Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Fully Convertible
Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033 Preference Shares,
(“CCPS”) held by the
Company of TRIL
Constructions Ltd
“TCL™)
21/12/2021 02:00 Through Video Conferencing (VC) i- To approve
p.m. / Other Audio Visual Means divestment/transfer
(OAVM). The deemed venue for the EGM | of 100%
was the registered office of the Company | stake/securities of
E Block, Voltas Durg Shivnath
Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Expressways Private
Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033 Limited
ii- To approve
divestment/transfer
of 100%
stake/securities of
TRIL Infopark
Limited
2022-23 15/06/2022 10.45 Through Video Conferencing (VC) i. Approve
a.m. / Other Audio Visual Means Issuance of
(OAVM). The deemed venue for the EGM | Non-Convertible
was the registered office of the Company | Debentures on
E Block, Voltas Private Placement
Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Basis.
Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033 ii. Appointment of
Mr. Prabhakar
Panda as an
Independent
Director
iii. Appointment of
Mrs. Sandhya
Kudtarkar as
an Independent
Director
2023-24 16/06/2023 11.00 Through Video Conferencing (VC) i. Approve re
a.m. / Other Audio Visual Means appointment of

(OAVM). The deemed venue for the EGM
was the registered office of the
Company E Block, Voltas Premises, T
B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai -
400033

r. Sanjay Dutt as
Managing Director

& Chief Executive
Officer of the
Company.

ii. Appointment of
Mr. Sudip Mullick as an
Independent Director
iii. Appointment of
Mr. Ankur Dalwani as
Director, liable to retire
by rotation Kudtarkar
as an Independent
Director
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(c) Whether any special resolution passed last year through postal ballot - details of voting
pattern - None.

(d) Person who conducted the postal ballot exercise - Not applicable.

(e) Whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot -
None.

(f) Procedure for postal ballot - Not applicable.

Means of Communication

The ‘Investor Relations’ section on the Company’s website (www.tatarealty.in) keeps the
investors updated on material developments in the Company by providing key and timely
information such as Financial Results, Annual Reports, Contact details of persons responsible
for resolving investor grievances, etc. The debenture holders can also send in their queries/
complaints at the designated email address at trilsec@tatarealty.in. Financial Results are
normally published in free press journal newspaper. During the year under review, there were
no presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts.

General shareholder information

(a) Annual General Meeting for FY 2023
Date: July 21, 2023
Time: 11:30 A.M. through audio visual means at
E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg,
Chichpokli, Mumbai - 400 033 (for purpose of recording location)

(b) Financial Year: April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023
(c) Dividend Payment: Not Applicable

(d) Listing on Stock Exchange and Listing Fees:

Name and Address of the Type of Securities Listed

Stock Exchange
BSE Limited
P. J. Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai - 400 001

Non-Convertible Debentures

Listing Fees as applicable have been paid for FY 2022-23 and 2023-24.
(e) Stock Codes/Symbol: Not Applicable*
(f) Market Price data - high, low during each month in last financial year - Not Applicable*

(g) Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex, CRISIL Index
etc. - Not Applicable*

(h) In case of securities are suspended from trading, the directors report shall explain the
reason thereof. - Not Applicable

(i) Details of the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company are, given below:
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Registrar and Transfer Agents

For Equity Shares For Non - Convertible Debentures
KFIN Technologies Limited Universal Capital Securities Private
Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Financial Limited
District, Nanakramguda, Gachibowli, Address: 21, Shakil Niwas, Opp. Satya
Hyderabad - 500 032 Saibaba Temple, Mahakali Caves Road,
Phone: 040-67162222, Fax: 040- Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 093
23001153 Tel :+91 (22) 2820 7203-05 / 2825 7641
Contact person: Mr. Gopala Krishna KV | F: +91 22 2820 7207
gopalakrishna.kvs@kfintech.com Email: ravi@unisec.in
Contact Person: Mr. Ravindra Utekar
Website: www.unisec.in

(i) Share Transfer System:

All the Equity shares of the Company are in dematerialized form as on March 31, 2023
and are freely transferable.

(k) Distribution of Equity shareholding as on March 31, 2023:
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited.

(I) Dematerialization of shares and liquidity:

All the Equity shares of the Company are in dematerialized form as on March 31, 2023.
Under the Depository System, the International Securities Identification Number (“ISIN”)
allotted to the Company’s equity shares is INE371K01016.

(m) Outstanding Global depository receipts or American depository receipts or warrants or
any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity: Not
Applicable

(n) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities:- Not Applicable
(o) Plant locations: - Not Applicable

(p) Address for correspondence:
Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
E Block, Voltas Premises,
T B Kadam Marg,
Chichpokli, Mumbai - 400 033

(a) List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions thereto during
the relevant financial year, for all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit
programme or any scheme or proposal: All the Equity shares of the Company are in
dematerialized form as on March 31,2023. Under the Depository System, the International
Securities Identification Number (“ISIN”) allotted to the Company’s equity shares is
INE371KO01016.

(r) Transfer of Unclaimed / Unpaid Amounts to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund: During the year under review, no amount was due for transfer to Investor Education
and Protection Fund.

*The equity shares of the Company are not listed on the stock exchanges and hence
certain details are not applicable to the Company.
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Other Disclosures:

(a) disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential
conflict with the interests of listed entity at large:

There were no material related party transactions during the year under review that
have a conflict with the interest of the Company.

(b) details of non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, strictures imposed on the listed
entity by stock exchange(s) or the board or any statutory authority, on any matter
related to capital markets, during the last three years: None

(c) details of establishment of vigil mechanism / whistle blower policy and affirmation that
no personnel has been denied access to the audit committee. The Company has a
Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism for directors
and employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour. No person has been
denied access to the Chairman as detailed in the Whistle Blower Policy. The said policy
has been uploaded on the website of the Company.

(d) details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory
requirements; The provisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) (“Listing Regulations”)
became applicable to the Company with effect from September 7, 2021 on a ‘comply
or explain’ basis until March 31, 2024 and on a mandatory basis thereafter, pursuant to
notification of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment)
Regulations, 2021 read with SEBI PR No. 6/2023 dated March 29, 2023. The Company
is in the process of taking necessary steps to comply with the requirements pertaining
the SEBI Listing Regulations which shall be mandatorily applicable with effect from
April 1, 2024.

(e) web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed; Following is
the web link, where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed at https://
www.tatarealty.in/investor-info.

(f) web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions; Following is the
web link, where policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed https:/
www.tatarealty.in/investor-info.

(9) disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities: Not Applicable

(h) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A): Not Applicable

(i) a certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on
the board of the company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed
or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or
any such statutory authority: The Company has obtained certificate from M/s. D. A.
Kamat & Co., Practising Company Secretaries, that none of the Directors on the Board
of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing
as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such
statutory authority. The same is reproduced at the end of this report and marked as
Annexure .

(j) where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board
which is mandatorily required, in the relevant financial year, the same to be disclosed
along with reasons thereof: None




(k) total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated
basis, to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of
which the statutory auditor is a part.

The particulars of payment of fees to Statutory Auditors is given below:

(Rs. in Crore)

Particulars Amount Amount

Audit Fees 1.46
Tax Audit Fees 0.5
Certification and other 0.5
Services 0.1
Total 1.57

() disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

a. number of complaints filed during the financial year: Nil
b. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: Nil
c. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: Nil

(m) disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of
loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount’: Nil

(n) Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity; including the date and place of
incorporation and the name and date of appointment of the statutory auditors of such
subsidiaries:

Name of Date and Place of Name and date of appointment of the
the Material Incorporation statutory auditors
Subsidiary
TRIL Infopark | Incorporated on March | The Members at the Annual General Meeting
Limited 20, 2008 at Chennai, | held on September 29, 2022 appointed M/s.
Tamil Nadu B SR & Co. LLP, as the Statutory Auditors of

the Company, to hold office for a period of
five years from the conclusion of this Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”) until conclusion of
the AGM of the Company to be held in the

year 2027.
TRIL IT4 Private |Incorporated on | The Members at the Annual General Meeting
Limited January 04, 2014 at|held on September 23, 2022, appointed M/s.

Mumbai, Maharashtra |B S R & Co. LLP, as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company, to hold office for a period
of five years from the conclusion of this
Eighth Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) until
conclusion of the Thirteenth AGM of the
Company to be held in the year 2027.
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TRIL Urban Transport
Private Limited

Incorporated on
8, 2007 at Delhi (The
Company was initially
incorporated as Pioneer
Infratech Private Limited
and the name was
changed to TRIL Urban
Transport Private Limited
with effect from May 25,
2011. The Company has
shifted its registered
office from the state
of Delhi to the state of
Maharashtra with effect
from September 14,
2016).

May

The Members at the Extraordinary General Meeting
(EGM) held on April 27, 2023, appointed M/s.
MKPS & Associates, as the Statutory Auditors of
the Company, from this EGM until the conclusion
of the ensuing 16th Annual General Meeting of
the Company to be held in the year 2023. (Casual
Vacancy)

TRIL Roads Private
Limited

Incorporated on
September 27, 2007 at
Mumbai, Maharashtra
(The Company was
initially incorporated
as Navinya Buildcon
Private Limited and
the name was changed
to TRIL Roads Private
Limited with effect from
December 18, 2009).

The Members at the Extraordinary General Meeting
(EGM) held on April 27, 2023, appointed M/s.
MKPS & Associates, as the Statutory Auditors of
the Company, from this EGM until the conclusion
of the ensuing 16th Annual General Meeting of
the Company to be held in the year 2023. (Casual
Vacancy)

Hampi Expressways
Private Limited

Incorporated
23, 2015 at
Maharashtra.

on April
Mumbai,

The Members at the Annual General Meeting
(AGM) held on September 21, 2022, appointed
M/s. MKPS & Associates, as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company, to hold office for a term of five
consecutive years from the conclusion of this
7th AGM until the conclusion of 12th AGM of the
Company to be held in the year 2027.

Uchit Expressways
Private Limited

Incorporated on October
10, 2016 at Mumbai,
Maharashtra.

The Members at the Annual General Meeting
(AGM) held on September 21, 2022, appointed
M/s. MKPS & Associates, as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company, to hold office for a term of five
consecutive years from the conclusion of this
6th AGM until the conclusion of 11th AGM of the
Company to be held in the year 2027.

Durg Shivnath
Expressways Private
Limited

Incorporated on August
13, 1997 at Chhattisgarh
(The Company was
initially incorporated
as SMS Shivnath
Infrastructure Limited
and the same was
converted into private
limited Company i.e. SMS
Shivnath Infrastructure
Private Limited with
effect from April 29, 2010.
Further, the name of the
Company was changed
to Durg Shivnath
Expressways Private
Limited with effect from
July 10, 2017).

The Members at the Annual General Meeting
(AGM) held on September 21, 2022, re-appointed
M/s. MKPS & Associates, as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company, to hold office for a further term
of five consecutive years from the conclusion of
this 25th AGM until the conclusion of 30th AGM of
the Company to be held in the year 2027.
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Pune IT City Metro |Incorporated on March | The Members at the Annual General Meeting
Rail Limited 13, 2019 at Pune, | (AGM) held on September 21, 2020, appointed
Maharashtra. M/s. Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants
LLP, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company,
to hold office for a term of five consecutive years
from the conclusion of this 1st AGM until the
conclusion of 6th AGM of the Company to be held
in the year 2025.

Non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report of subparas (2) to (10)

above, with reasons thereof shall be disclosed:

The provisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) (“Listing Regulations”) became applicable
to the Company with effect from September 7, 2021 on a ‘comply or explain’ basis until
March 31, 2024 and on a mandatory basis thereafter, pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read
with SEBI PR No. 6/2023 dated March 29, 2023. The Company is in the process of taking
necessary steps to comply with the requirements pertaining other regulations of the SEBI
Listing Regulations which shall be mandatorily applicable with effect from April 1, 2024.

The corporate governance report shall also disclose the extent to which the discretionary

requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule Il have been adopted:

i. The Company has appointed separate post of Chairman and the Managing Director, such
that Chairman is a Non-Executive Director and not related to the Managing Director.

ii. The Internal Auditor of the Company directly reports to Audit Committee of the Company
on certain matters of the Company.

The disclosures of the compliance with corporate governance requirements specified in
Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (a) to (i) of Regulation 62(1A) of SEBI Listing Regulations

shall be made in the section on corporate governance of the annual report.

The provisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) (“Listing Regulations”) became applicable
to the Company with effect from September 7, 2021 on a ‘comply or explain’ basis until
March 31, 2024 and on a mandatory basis thereafter, pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read
with SEBI PR No. 6/2023 dated March 29, 2023. The Company is in the process of taking
necessary steps to comply with the requirements pertaining other regulations of the SEBI
Listing Regulations which shall be mandatorily applicable with effect from April 1, 2024The
Company has provided the necessary explanation in the quarterly compliance report on
Corporate Governance submitted to the Stock Exchange under Regulation 27(2)(a) of SEBI
Listing Regulations for the quarters ended June 30, 2022, September 30, 2022, December
31, 2022 and March 31, 2023.

Declaration signed by the Managing Director stating that the members of board of directors
and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of

board of directors and senior management.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the Managing
Director. In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Non-Executive
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Directors and Independent Directors. These Codes are available on the Company’s website
(www.tatarealty.in). All the Directors on the Board and Senior Management Personnel of
the Company have affirmed compliance with the respective Codes. A declaration signed by
the Managing Director to this effect is reproduced at the end of this report and marked as
Annexure Il.

Compliance certificate from either the auditors or practicing Company secretaries regarding
compliance of conditions of corporate governance shall be annexed with the directors’

report.

The Company has obtained compliance certificate from the M/s. D. A. Kamat & Co., Practising
Company Secretaries, on corporate governance. The same is reproduced at the end of this
report and marked as Annexure lll.

Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account / unclaimed suspense account: Not

Applicable

By order of the Board of Directors

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Sd/-

Banmali Agrawala
Chairman

DIN: 00120029

Date: July 21, 2023
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure I1I

Declaration by the CEO on Code of Conduct as required by Schedule V of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

I, Sanjay Dutt, Managing Director and CEO of the Company hereby declare that all the
members of Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance
with Code of Conduct, as applicable to them, in respect of the financial year 2022-23.

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Sanjay Dutt
Managing Director and CEO
DIN : 05251670

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 21, 2023

TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300
E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai — 400 033 India.
Tel. 91 22 6661 4444 Fax: 91 22 6661 4452 email id: trilsec@tatarealty.in

Website: www.tatarealty.in 72
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BSR&Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants

14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing,
Nesco IT Paik 4, Nesco Center,

Western Express Highway,

Goregaon (East), Mumbai — 4000863, India
Telephone: +91 (22) 6257 1000

Fax: +21 (22) 6257 1010

- ndepsndent Auditors keport

To the Members of Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tata Really and Infrastructure Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), its associates and its joint ventures, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
Including & summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinien and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures as were audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its associates and joint ventures as at 31 March 2023, of its
consolidated profit and other comprehensive loss, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended.

_Basis for QOpinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143{10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilifies for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group, its associates and joint ventures in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have
" fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of reports of the other auditors referred to in
paragraph (b} of the "Other Matters” section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 1B(a) of the consolidated financial statements, which states that the Holding
Company had made a written representation in May 2022 to the Reserve Bank of India (RBIi’) requesting
that registration as an NBFC may not presently be insisted upon, based on ‘Principal business Tast’. The
RBI has not yet reverted on the matter.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Registered Office:

2 8 R & Go, (a partnership firm with Reg/stration No. BA31223) converted inte B S R & Co. LLP (2 14th Fleor, Central B Wing and North C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco
Limited Liability Parinarship with LLP Registration No. AAS-8181) with affect from Gelober 14, 2013 Cenler, Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbal - 400083
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BSR&Co.LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the consideration of
reperts of other auditors on separate financial statements of components audited by them, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment of certaiil Non-current assets -

See Note 4(a) , 4(c) , 7, 8, 9 of consolidated financial statements

The key audit maiter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Impairment assessment of certain

Non-current assets [Aqgresgate carrying value on
31 March 2023 : Rs. 8.842.87 Cr]

The Group has the following account balances as
disclosed in the consolidated balance sheet as at
March 31, 2023:

Particulars Amount (Rs in
Cr)
Investment property 1,022.79
Goodwill 211.72
Infangible  assets under | 7.89
development -Service
Congession Arrangements
intangible  assefs under | 3,503.21
Service Concession
Arrangements
Investmant accounted using | 4,097.26
Equity Method

The Group tests goodwill and intangible assets
under development for impairment annually. For
other non-current assets, the Group assesses at
each reporting date, whether there is any indication
that asset may be impaired. in such case, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount and compares it
to the carrying value of such assets.

The determination of the recoverable value of such
non-current assets involves significant judgements,
assumptions and estimates,

Our procedures includes the following:

Evaluated and tested the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of Holding Company's key
internal controls in relation to impairment

assessment of these non-current assets.

Assessed management's determination of
recoverable amount as higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use.

Evaluated the objectivity and
competence of the Group appointed
external independent valuer involved in
determination of fair value of non-current
assets

We assessed the identification of relevant
cash generating unit (CGU) to which such
non-current assets are allocated.

Tested the assumptions such as such as
market rent levels, toll revenues,
expenditure to be incurred, vacancy
factors, prevailing market yields, market
transactions and cash flows, which
included comparing these results with
externally derived data as well as our own
assessments based on our knowledge of
the client and the industry.

Obtained understanding of the forecasted
cash flows based on our knowledge of the
Holding Company and the markets in
which they operate.

Performed our own sensitivity analysis.
Assessed the effect of possible reductions
in market rent levels, toll revenues,
expenditure to be incurred, growth rates
anhd forecasted cash flows and their impact

Page 2 of 12
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BSR&Co. LLP

independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)

Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Considering the amounts, significant judgements, on the fair values.
assumptions and estimates involved, this is

considered as a key audit matter. * Assessed the comparabiity of the

forecasts with historical information.

* [nvolved our valuation specialists for
evaluating the key assumptions used in
valuation. Tested arithmetic accuracy of
the cash flow models prepared by the
Holding Company.

* Assessed Group's comparison of the
recoverable amount to the carrying value of
the non-current assets and its testing
of impairment provision.

* Performed analytical procedures by
evaluating inputs, assumptions and fair
values on a year-on-year basis and
obtained explanation for the variations.

* Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements,
including disclosures of key assumptions,
judgments and sensitivities as per
requirements of relevant Ind AS.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s annual report, but
does not include the financial statemenits and auditor's reports thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the audit reports of other
auditors., we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management‘s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consoiidatéd Financial

- Statements -

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including
its associates and joint ventures in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in india,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective
Management and Board of Directors of the companies includad in the Group and of its associates and
joint ventures are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriaté accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeneass of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from matetial misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group and of its associates and joint ventures are responsible for assessing
the ability of each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and joint
ventures are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company.

'Auditor’s Responsibitities for the A_udit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasconably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal controf relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Secticn 143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consoclidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associates and joint ventures to cease to
continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overali preseéntation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

»  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of such entities or
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business activities within the Group and its associates and joint ventures to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors
remain responsible for the direction, supetvision and performance of the audits carried out by them.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further
described in paragraph {b) of the section titled “Other Matters” in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, reiated
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matiers in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that @ matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

'. Other Matters

a. The consolidated financial statements of the Group and its associates and joint veniures for the year
ended 31 March 2022 were audited by the predecessor auditor who had expressed an unmodified
opinion on 15 June 2022.

b. We did not audit the financial statements of fourteen subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflects
total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 6,141 Crore as at 31 March 2023, total revenues
{before congolidation adjustments) of Rs. 832 Crore and net cash flows (before consolidation adjustments)
amounting to Rs. 22 Crore for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group's share of net profit (and other
comprehensive income) of Rs. 0.72 Crore for the year ended 31 March 2023, in respect of one associates
and two joint ventures, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial
statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been fumished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the c¢eonsolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, and our
report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Cther Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reports of the other auditors.

‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements _

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”} issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A’ a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
as were audited by other auditors, as noted in the “"Other Matters” paragraph, we report, to the extent
applicable, that:
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We have sought and cobtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements,

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors.

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of

- account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consclidated financial statements.

in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

The matter described in the Emphasis of Matter paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an
adverse effect on the functioning of the Holding Company.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 31 March 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint
venture companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, its
associate companies and joint venture companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on
31 March 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act,

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial conirols with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint
venture companies incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in "Annexure B",

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the repart of the other
auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, as noted
in the “Other Matters® paragraph:

a.

The consclidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at
31 March 2023 on the consolidated financial position of the Group, its associates and joint
ventures. Refer Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group, its associates and joint ventures did not have any material foreseeable losses on
long-term contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2023.

There are no amounts which are required to be transfetred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies, associate companies and
joint venture companies incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2023.

d (i) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, associate

companies and joint venture companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary
companies, associate companies and joint venture companies respectively that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the Note 62(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint venture companies to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint venture
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companies ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, associate
companies and joint venture companies incorporated in India whose financlal statements have
been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary
companies, associate companies and joint veniure companies respectively that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the Note 62(b} fo the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary
companies, associate companies and joint venture companies from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™}, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies, associate
companies and joint venture companies shall direcfly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™ or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(iiiy Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiary companies,
associate companies and joint venturs companies incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditors notice
that has caused us or cther auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and
(iiy of Rule 11(e), as provided under {) and (i} above, contain any material misstatement.

e. The Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint venture
companies incorporated in India have neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f.  As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Holding
Company or any of such subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint venture
companies only with effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reports
of the statutory auditors of such subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint venture
companies incorporated in India which were nof audited by us, the remuneration paid during the
current year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, asscciate companies and joint
venture companies to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The
remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, associate
companies and joint venture companies is not in excess of the limit laid down under Seciion 197 of
the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of
the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requiremients’ section of our report of even date)

{xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given fo us, there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 reports of the companies incorporated in India and included in the consolidated
financial statements.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248WAN-100022

N

Farhad Bamji

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 105234
Date: 25 May 2023 ICAI UDIN:23105234BGXDYC2644
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Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2A(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of cur report of even date)

In conjunction with our audit of the consclidated financial statements of Tata Realty and Infrastructure
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2023,
we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding
Company and such companies incorporated in India under the Act which are its subsidiary companies, its
associate companies and joint venture companies, as of that date.

Management’s and Board of_Directo'rs’ Responsi

The respective Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and

maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the respective Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

_Augditor's Respbnsibiiity _

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with referance to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit inveolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operaling effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financia! staternents, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
of the relevant subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint venture companies in terms of their
reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for cur audit opinion on the internal financia! controls with reference to financial statements.

- Meaning of Internal Fi_ﬁancia! Cohfi’o_ls with Reference fo Financial State_nient‘s' '_

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliahility of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statements for exdernal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
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policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
diractors of the company; and (3) provide reascnable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of infernal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statemenis fo future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of subsidiary companies, assoclate companies and joint venture
companies, as were audited by the other auditors, the Holding Company and such companies
incorporated in India which are its subsidiary companies, its associate companies and joint venture
companies, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by such companies
considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note.

Other Matter - '

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to fourteen
subsidiary companies, one associate and two joint venture companies, which are companies incorporated
in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not medified in respect of above matter.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248WANV-100022

INRCS

Farhad Bamiji

Fariner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 105234
Date: 25 May 2023 ICAI UDIN:23105234BGXDYC2644
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet ag at 31 Mareh 2023
{Curretiey: Indian rupees In crores)

Nute Asat 31 March 2023 As AL 31 March 2022
I ASSETS
1 Non-curront assets
(4} Property, plant and equipment 3ia} 12,14 3455
{b)  Capite! work-in-progress 5 .63 1.25
(v} Trvestment property 4 (8} 1,022.79 3.535.62
{d}  lavestment property under construction [ 0.24 268,70
(b (Goodwill 4{e) 2172 412,26
(] Other intangitle assels 8 124 13.20
(g} Right-of-use assets 4(k) 0.96 1,219,860
(h}  Tntangible assers under service concession arrangermeats L] 3,503.21 354491
(i} Intangible assets under development - service concession 1 7.80 o0
arrangements
) Investmen accounted using equity method 4 4,097.26 1,780,271
(k) Hfinancial pssels
{iy Other invesiments 10 - 257
(i) Oher financinl assets 1 1140 1278
() Deforced tax asgots (Net) 12 2143 67.21
{m} Non cuerent fax assets (Net) i3 A5.07 9735
{n) Ciher non-cortenl pssets H 2630 183.60
Totul Non-current assets BovLal 15,162,93
2 Current assels
(8} Tnventories 15 148908 202,03
(b) Finaucial assets
{i) Investments 19 7428 102,49
{if) Trade recelvables i 56.54 2144
(i) Cash and cnsh equivalents 7 70269 183,93
{i¥) Bank balances viher than (1il) above 18 93.98 61.54
(¥) Loans 0 335 -
{vi) Other flnencial assels 21 109.28 116,01
{6} Other current assels 2 67,64 43.32
Total Current agsets £,260.74 TH0.86
“Total Assets 10,258.64 11,803.70
. EQUEEY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
{a)  Equity shate capital 23 4,131 161731
B Other equity 1 2,154,67 (761.18)
Equity altributable to owners T4271,9% 856,13
(h)(i) Non-coutroling interests ] A4y 2.00
‘Totat Equity 427150 858.13
2 Now-cureent Habltises
() Finaycial labRities
{i} Berrowings 25 RXSER o) &067.82
(i) Lonse liabiltios L8 FRH]
(i) Other Hnuncial Rabilides 2% TEAS R46.57
(b} Provisions 21 #17.58 91,95
{c) Deferred tax knbilitles (Nety 28 29109 21437
i) Other non-cuivent liokilitiea '] 3.03 A2
Tolal Non-cwrent llabilities 3,550.82 7,409.23
3 Curreut Dabilities
{4) Foaneial liabilides .
(i) Borrowings k] 1,014,63 3,26587
{ii) Lease linbilities 013 0.1
{if(a) Total outstanding dnes of misio and smal eotorprises 3 1A .34
{iti){h} Total ontstanding dues of eredivais ather than miceo and 3 G317 2.7
small anferpizes
{iv} Other financial Hisbifities RH 216,68 230.65
{8 Onher current liabiliries 33 1186 T0.62
{0} Provisions k2 447 8.0
{d}  Cument tax fighififies (Net} 35 i1.43 {7.81
Total Cuerent Linbililes 1,326.32 31643
Tobdd Equity and Lizbllities 1028848 15,893,190

The aceeinpauying uotes L o 63 fonn an integral part of these consolidated Hnancia statamants.

Tii terms of pur report of even Jate atinghetl

For 3 SR & Co, ELY For and onbehalfof the Board of Directors of
Lhartored Accomtants Faga Raakty and Infresirneiure Limited
Fiem's Regisiration No. 101 248WAW- 100022 CIN: UG LM TRLCISE 00
) . il .
e (o e
Farhad Bamji Ranmali Agraw; Sanjay Dutt
Patnir Chatrman Managing Direstor

DIN - 60420079 DM - 05251670

tog' 23U
_ﬁfgmgejﬂ[fdp No

Rashsal §b
Company Secretury
iembeship No: ACSE3978

Muinibal
Dated: 25 May, 2023

Mumbai
Dateil: 25 May, 223
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Tata Realty and Infragtructure Limited

Cansolidated Statament of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indian rapees in crores)

Note For the year ended 31 Tror the year ended 3
March 2023 Mnreh 2022
I TReveaue from operations it #6455 1,324.59
1) Other incore:
- Gain on remeasurenment of previously held equity interest 50 (by - 441,70
- Gain on loss of control in a subsidiaries 50 (a) 3,326.9% 15.01
~Oihers 37 99,14 36.37
[l 'Total income (X + I 4,360.11 LR17.67
IV Expenses
Clost of material consumed 0.73 0.34
Changes in Inventory of finished goods 3% 5277 45.10
Construction costs 39 7388 23047
Fanployes benelits sxpense 44 10491 9598
Finance costs 4] 534.00 638,62
Depreciation and amosiigation expanse 3 18800 303.33
Other expenges 42 2205 224684
T'otal expenses (1¥) 1,150.40 1,590.68
v Profit hefore tas and share of profit/ess) from Associates / Joint Ventures (¥11- 321631 21799
%)
VI Share of {loss) {net) from Assoclates and Joint Ventures hid (349.87) (46.70)
VIl Profit before tax (¥ + V1) 1,060.44 171.29
VII Tax Expenses: 33
Current tax (insluding pertaining to earlier yoars): 334.66 6.42
Defened tax;
- Deferred tax 11199 S198
- MAT Credit entitiement written off - 26,08
Total Tax Expeases (VIIG 46,45 88,38
TX  Profit for the yesr (VI -~ VITH) 241315 8231
X Qiker Comprehensive Income
A Items that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss
Remensutements of dofined benefi plan 0.448) {0.65)
Tneome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified i profit or loss 62 0.20
B Iteons that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Qiher Comprelensive Income for the year (642) (8.45)
XI  Total Comprehenstve Income for the year (iX +X) 241337 8146
Profit for the year attributable to:
Qurners of the Comgpany A6 §3.34
Non-controlling ltenest (248) {0.43)
Qther Comprehensive Income for the year atbribiutable tos
Owners of the Company 942 {045
Non-controlling nterest o -
Total Comprebensive [ncome for the yenr attributable tot
Owogrs of the Company 241585 £2.89
Mon-controlling Tnterest {248, {43
RNl Earaings per equity sharve t (Face Value per share Rs. 16 ench)
(1) Bosic (s, 43 1408 $.52
(2) Diluted {Rs.} - 1408 853
The aceompanying nodes 1o 65 form an imtegral part of these consolidated financiaf statenents.
Tn terms of eur reprt of even date aftached
For B SR & Co, LLE For and on bebalf of fie Board of Directers of
Chartared Accountants Tats Bealty and Infraseructure Limited
Finm's Registration Ne.: 10124 8W/W. 100022 CIN: LF701 C2MIT2 007 LC 168300

Favhad Bamji Banoall Agr
Parmer Chairmin

Sanjay Dutt

log28L% DIN - 00120929

Miumbai
Dased: 25 May, 2023

Managing Divector
DIN - 05251670

Rashmi J
Cempany Secretary

Membership No: ACS18978

Mugibai
Dated: 25 May, 2023
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A Cash fows from operating activities :
Profit before tax 2,860.44 171.2¢
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 181.00 303.33
Profit on sale of current investments in Mutual Funds (7.27) (4.60)
Mark to Market {gain) / loss an Derivative Contracts - (12.63)
Mark to Market gain on current investments in Mutual funds (0.87) (1.05)
Interest income (88.42) (13.34)
Finance costs 524,09 688.62
Gain on remeasurement of previously held equity interest - (441.70}
Gain on loss of control ir a subsidiaries (3,396.98) (15.01)
Share of loss from an associate and joint ventures 349.87 46,70
Provision for diminution in value of Investments - 18,01
(Gain}) / Loss on sale of property, plant and equipraent (0.31) 0.01
Operating Profit before chianges in working capital 421.55 739.63
‘Working capital adjustments:
(Increase} in Trade Receivables (35.10) . (2.09)
Decrease in Inventories 52,95 69.26
(Decrease) / Increase in Loans, Other Financial Assets and Other Non-Current Assets and Other (89.86) 110.00
Current Assets
(Decrease) / Tncrease in Trade payables (18.73) 21.74
(Decrease) / Increase in Other financial labilities, current and nen current liabilities and 762.44 (87.53)
provisions
Cash flows generated from operating activities 1,093,25 851.01
Tax (paid) net of refunds during the year (312.88) (12.48)
Net cash flows generated from operating activities 780.37 338.53
B Cash flows from jnvesting activities :
Acquisition for purchase and construction of property, plant and equipment {0.88) -
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.98 0,09
Acquisition for intangible assets / intangible assets under development (65.37) (191.21)
Acquisition for investment property / investment property under construction (4.34) (46.80)
Investment in joint ventures and associate (2,021.30) (555.00)
Redemption of equity shares of other investments - .04
Proceeds from sale of investments in mutual funds 1,882.26 1,806.94
Trivestments in mutpal fands (1,845.91) (1,604.33)
{Invesiment) / Redemption of fixed deposits under lien {net) (37.44) 29.20
Payment made for acquisition of a subsidiary - (110.58)
Proceeds on account of sale of subsidiaries resulting in loss of control 4,217.64 47.13
Interest received 86.37 12.31
Net cash flows generated from / (used in) investing activities 2,212.01 (672.22)
C Cash flows from financing activities ¢
Proceeds / {Repayment) from short term borrowings (net) (2,251.25) 1,162,08
Proceeds from long term borrowings 607.08 2,959.206
(Repayment) of long term borrowings (1,261.77) (3,341.33)
Pringipal payment of lease labilities 0.13) (G.11)
Proceeds from Rights Issue 1,000.00 -
Finance costs paid (d66.27) (950.29)
Net cash flows (used in) financing activities (2,372.34) (176.39)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and eash equivalents (A-+B+C) 620.04 (4.07y
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 183.93 181.96
Increase in cash and cash equivalents due to acquisition of a subsidiary - 6.05
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents dug to loss of control in a subsidiary (101.28) (.01
Cagh and cash equivalents at the end of year (refer note 17) 702.69 183.93
,r“";’z\“«*) Wi frao
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Consolidated statement of cash flows #s at 31 March 2023 {Continued)

(Cuzreney: Indian rupees in erores)

Notes:

1 Cash and Cash equivalents include the following :

Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Cash balinee G.17 0.17
Balance with scheduled banks:
- I eorrent gecounts 33.92 105.73
- in deposit accounts G68.60 78.03
702,62 183.93
Reconciltation of changes in Usbilities arlsing from financing activities
Particulars 1 April 2022 Fiuancing Acquisition / Non-Cash Changes 31 March 2023
Cash Flows (Dispesal) of (Aceruals and Ofher
Substdiardes Adjustments)
Short Terin Bonawings 2,158.26 (2,251.25) (13_66) 113.80 7.8
Long Term Borrowings 7,092.09 (654.69} (1,369.88) {112.80) 4,454.62
Lossw Linbilities 128 (.13 - - 1,15
Interest acerued but ot due 8244 (466.2T) - 448 66 64.83
Tutal 5,334.97 (3,372.34) {1,883.54) 448,660 452715
Purticalars 1 April 2021 Finaneing Acquisition / NoneCash Changes 31 March 2022
Cash Flows (Disposal) of {Accrials and Other
Subsidiaries Adjagtments)
Short Texm Borrowings VE7.50 1,162.08 356,32 (128.04) 2,158.26
Long Term Borrowings 7,260.00 (382,07 87.02 128,04 7,092,894
Lease Liabilities 1.34 01N - 128
Tnterest accrued but not due 219.7¢ {950.29) - 812.94 82,44
Total §,249.08 {170.39) 443,34 812.94 9,334.97

Note:

The Stateraent of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indireot method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard - 7 (‘Tad AS 7°) on Statewent of Cash fows.

The accompanying notes | to 65 form an integral part of these consolidated Hnanvin! statements,

Interms of our report of even date atiached

For B S 1L & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration 1o.: 10 1248WAN. 100022
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

1
1A

1B
(&)

)

Background and basis of preparation
Background

Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited (“the Patent Company” or ‘the Company™) s a wholly owned subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited. The Parent Company
along with its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, collectively referred to as the “the Group” is exclusively engaged in the business of real estate and
infrastructure development (including purchase, construction or sale of immovable property, project management consultaney services and investment advisory
services) . These business activities are mainly cerried out through Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) in the fonn of subsidiaries, joint venfures and associates. In
carrying out such activities through the 8PVs, the Pareni Company funds the 8PVs through a judicious mix of equity investments, loans or advances basis the
requireiment of each of the entities.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

These Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) &s per the Companies (Inckan Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and other relevant provisions of the Act and presented in the manner
sequired by Division II to Schedule ITT t the Act, after considering the naties of the Paront Company’s business described above.

These Ind AS financial statements were approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Dirsctors on 25 May 2023,

The Parent Company along with its subsidiaries, joint ventutes and associates, collectively reforred to as the “the Graup” romains exclusively engaged in principal
business of real estate and infrastructure development {including purchase, constuction er sele of immovable propetty, project managemens consultancy services
and investment advisory services). These busingss activities of the Group are mainly catried out through Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) in the form of
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. In carrying out such activities thiough the SPVs, the Parent Company funds the SPVs through & judicious mix of equity
investments, loans or advances basis the requirement of each of the entities,

'Considering ths nature of the business that the Parent Company is into, for the year ended March 31, 2023, while the Investments in SPVs constitute mors than
§0% of its total assets, however, the majority portion of its total income is generated from aperations. Therefore, the Parent Company would not fall within the
definition of & now-bavking financial company as per the provisions of Section 451 (f) of the RBI Act, 1934. The Parent Company expects this trend to continue in
future years also.

The Parent Company prepares its standalone financials in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), During the financial year ended 31 March
2022, e significant amount of intersst moome and unrealized gains was credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss on account of revalyation of the investments
(issued by SPVs) in compliance with Ind AS 109 requirements, This resulted in income fiom financiat assets exceeding by more than 50% of the gross income,
which was purely temporary in nature. The slowdewn in the economy due to adverse conditions and temporary low residential sales in its projects, coupled with non-
recutring fair valuation gains had resulted in skewed operating income, which in management's view was transient and temporary in nature.

Therefore, the Parent Company had made a written represeniation. in May 2022 to the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) secking clarifications and that registration as an
NBIC may not presently be insisted upon. This was based on ‘Principal business Test’ as per the RBY Press Release No, 1998- 9071260 dated 08.04.1999. The
Parent Company had further represented that it dess not intend to carry on the business as s NBFC and will undertake appropriate moasures fo increase its operating
income, RBI has not yet reverted on the matter.

Going Concern

‘The Parent Company is primarily engaged in development of Comumercial and Infrastructure projects to generate stable cash flows and capital appreciation over the
life of the assets through investments in vatious project Special Purpose Velricles {SPVs).

The Parent Company has incutred net loss of INR 146.17 crores during year ended 31 Mach 2023 (31 March 2022: net loss of INR 5.24 crores) and has a positive
net worth of INR 5,823.39 crores as at that date {31 March 2022 INR 3,896,28 crores). As at 31 March 2023, the Parent Company has a net cwrent Hability
position. of INR 115.22 crores (31 March 2022 INR. 2,711.89 crores) where the cutrent liabilities of INR 1,040.53 crores exceed the curment assels of INR 925.31
crores and inclyde inventories of INR 149.08 crores which dus to their nature may be realizable in periods beyond 1 year, Based on scheduled repayment of
borrowings, INR 900.00 crores (included in the current liabilities figure of INR 1,040.53 crores above} is dug for repayment within 12 montbs from the approval of
these consclidated financial statements,

Further, during the year ended 31 March 2023, the Patent Company has entered into joint ventute agroements with an investor whereby, it has divested a part of its
stake in certain assets and the proceeds of such divestment has been utilised to repay debt and have recognised gain. Accordingly, the overall debt (short-term and
long-term) has reduced from INR 4,080,00 crores as at 31 March 2022 to INR 1,525,00 crores as at 31 March 2023. Also, during the year, the Parent Company
has received additional equity of INR 1,000.00 crores from its ultimate holding company.

Management cash flow projection for next 12 menths indicates that the Parent Company will ircur operating losses, The Parent Company’s ability to mest its
obligations falling due in next 12 months depends on additional fimd raising from the market in the form of commercial papers and Non-convertitle Debentures
(NCDs) and continued financial support from the ultimate hekling company.

The Parent Company will raise finds through issuance of commercial papers / NCDs / term [oans ete. Accardingly, there will be adequate cash balance to mest its
debt and liabilities upte 31 March 2024 as and when they £l due for payinent in the normal course of business.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors have prepared these consolidated financial statemeénts on a going concern basis and therefore, the assets and liabilities ars
recorded on the basis that the Parent Company will be able to use or realize jts assets at least at the recorded amounts and discharge its Habilities in the vsual course
of business.




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currenoy: Indian rupees in crores)
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Basis of measurement

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair
value:

Certain financial assets and liabilities

Defined benefit plans —~ plan assets measured at fair value

Use of jndgements and estimates

In preparing these Consolidated financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, lisbilities, income and expenses, Actual results may differ from fhese estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on: an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively,

(i} Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting pelicies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recagnised in the conselidated financial
statements rainly periain o investments accounted for vsing the equity method: whether the Group has significant influsnce over an investes 2s fcluded in Note 9
of the financial statotnents,

Control
If the Group owns less than one-half of the voting power and it is able to control the compaty which inter-alia provides the Group with power to appoint majority of
the board of directors and power over relevant activities. Consequently, the Group consolidates its investment in such companies, (Refer Note No. 52(a))

If the Group owns more than one-half of the voting pewer but it does not have control over the Companies then the Group has joint control over the companies, In
other words, decisions about the relevant activities - i.e. those that significantly affect the returns of the arrangement - require the affinnative consent of the
Investors, Consequently, the Group has classified its interest in these companies as jointly controlled entity (Refer Note no. 52(b)).

(i) Assnmptions and estimation uncertainties .

Information abeut assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment during the year is included in the
following notes:

Note 3 to 8 — impairment test of non-financial assets: key asswmptions underlying recoverable amounts including the recoverability of expenditure on acquired
intangible assets {goodwill);

Note 3 to 8 — Usefidl life of Property, plant and equipment and othor intangibles assets;

Note 12 — recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carvied forward can be used;

Note 27 - recognitien and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assurmptions about the likelihood and magritude of an outflow of resources;

Note 55 —-measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuatial assumptions;

Note 50 — acquisition of subsidiary: fair value of the considetation transferred (inclnding contingent consideration) and fair value of the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed, measured on a provisional basis;

Note 52— deterinining the fair value of investments on the basis of significant vnobservable inputs; and

Note 52 — impairment of financial assets,

Measurement of fair values

The Group's accounting policies and disclosures require fhe measutement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and Liabilides. The Group has an
established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair valuos. The finance teum has overall tespensibility for overseeing all significant fair value
measurements, including Lavel 3 falr values, and reports directly to the CFO.

They regularly review siguificant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third parly information s nsed to measure fair values then he finance teain
assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuztions meet the requirements of Ind A8, including the level in the fair
value histarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair valuc of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable markel data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in
a fair value hierarchy based on the jnputs used in the valuation techniques as foliows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Levol | that are abservable for the asset or liability, cither divectly (i.0. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data funobservable inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a Tecurring basis, the Group determines whetler transfers have occurrad between levels in
the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value messurement ag a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

H' the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measarement is categorized
in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant io the entire measurement.

Farther information about the essumptions made in measuring the fair values is included in the following notes:
- Nole 4 - Investimert, property e
- Note 49 - loss of control in subsidairy

tesen Gt
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)
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Foreign currency trangactions

Foreign curtency transactions ae translated into the fmetional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions, Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulling from the settlement of such transactions and fiom the translation of monetary assets and Jiablities denominated in foreign cuirencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised In profit or loss,

Non-monetary items that ate measured based on historival cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchangs rate at the date of the ransaction. Non-monetary
items that are measured at fair value in a forelgn currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation
differcnces on asse(s and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. The gain or loss arising on wanslation of not-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in Lne with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or loss is recoguised in OCI or profit or loss are also recagnised in OCT or prefit or loss, respectively).

Current / Non Current Classification

The Group classifies an asset as current asset when;

« it expects {o realise the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal eperating cycle;

- it holds the nsset primarily for the purpose of trading;

- it expects to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- the asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a Hability for at lenst twelve months after the weporting
period.

All other assets are classified a8 non-current,

A Hability is classified as current when —

- it expects (o realise the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cyole;

- it holds the Hability primarily for the purposs of trading;

~ the liability is due to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting peried; or

- it does not have an unconditional right to defer settlemeni of the lability for at least twelve months after the reporting period, Terms of a liability that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instuments do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-gurrent,

The operating eycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, The Group’s normal operating cycle
is twelve months,

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has contrel. The group controls an entity when the group is exposed to, or bas tights to, variable retarns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ebility to affect those retarns through its power fo direct the relevant activities of the entity, Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group, They are deconsolidated from the date that control eeases, Changes in the Group's inferest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of contol ate accounted for as equity transactions.

The group combines the financial statements of the parent and #s subsidiaries line by line adding topether like items of assels, liabilities, equity, income and
expenses. Entergroup transactions, balances and unrealised gains on ransactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also elimnated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transforred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensurg
consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit and loss, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and balance sheet respectively.

Joint arrangements

Under End AS 111 Joint Arrangements, invesiments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or jeint ventures. The classification depends on the
contractual rights and obligations of each investor, rather tham {he legal structure of the joint arrangement. The group has only joint ventures.

Joint ventures

Joint ventures are entities over which the group has joint conirel along with anotlier entity, Inferests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method, after
iitially being recognised at cost in the consolidated balance sheet. The investment is initially rccognized at cost, and the carrying amount Is increased or decreased
to recognize the investor's share of the profit or loss of the investes after the acquisition date until the date on which joint control ceases.

Assaciates

Associates are entitics over which the group has significant influsnce but not control. Investments in assoclates are accounted for using the equity methed of
accounting, The imvestment js initially recognized at cost, and the carrying amount js increased or decreased 1o recognize the investor’s share of the profit ar loss of
the investes after the acquisition dale until the date on which significant influence ceases,

Loss of Controt

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that de not result in 3 loss of centrol are accounted for as equity ttansactions, When the Group loses control over a
subsidiary, it derecagnises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss. Any intorest refained in the former subsidiary is measwured at fiir value when control is lost.

Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM). Chief operating
decision meker’s fimction is te allocate the resonrces of the entity and aceess the performance of the eperating scgment of the Group.

The Managing Direcior assesses the financial performance and position of the Group and makes strategic decisions and is identified as being the chief operating
decision maker for the Group. Refer note 46 for segment information preserted.
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Revenue Recognition

Revenue from Operations:

Revenue on sale of completed property

The Group earns revenue from sale of completed property (residential and commereial),

The Group recognises revenue when it determines the satisfaction of performance obligations at a point in time. Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of
promised products to customer in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Group expects to receive in exchange for those products, the Group retains
neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually assoclated with the ownership nor effective control over the completed property sokl and it is
probable that the sconomic benefit and it Is probable that the consideration to which the Group will be entitled to on transfer of coatrol of promised produets to
customer will flow to the Group, the consideration can be measured reliably and substantial consideration has been received by the entity.

In artangements for sale of units the Group has applied the guidance in IND AS 113, on “Revenue from contract with custemer”, by applying the revenue
recogpition criteria for each distinct performance obligation, The arrangements with customers generally meet the criteria for considering sale of units as distinet
performance obligations, For allocating the transaction price, the Group has measured the revenue in respeet of each performance obligation of a centract at its
relative standalone selling price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is the best evidence of its standalone selling price. The
transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the contract includes a significant financing component. Any congideration payable to
the customer is adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the cusiomer,

Revenue recognition under service concession arrangements

Intangible assets resulting from the application of Appendix C of Ind AS 1135 are recorded in the financial statements as intangible assets. The Group eccounts for
such intangible asset (being rights over infrastructure} {along with the present value of commitied payments towards concession arrangement to the grantor at the
appointed date e.g. Negative Grant, premiwn ete.) in accordance with the provisions of IND AS 38 and is amortized based on projected traffic count or revenue, as
detailed in Note 2.07, taking into account the estimated period of commercial operation of infrastructure which generally coincides with the concession period, and
are amortized, generally ot a straight-line basis, over the contract term. Refer Note 8 thereon.

Under the intangible asset model, revenue nchdes;
revenue recorded on & completion basis for assets and infrastcture under construction (in accordance with TND AS 115);
toll charges collected from users {refer point (v) below)

Rendering of services
Asset management fees, Project management consultancy fees, parking fees, maintenance income and utility income are recognized in accordance with terms of
agreement with customers.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised as part of revenue from operations in profit or loss on a straight-ling basis over the tern of the lease, Lease
incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, over the term of the lease. Rental income from sub-leasing is also recognised in a
similar manner and included under other income.

Toll Revenue
Toll collection from users of the infrastructure factlity constructed by the Company under {he Service Concession Arrangement is recognised in the period of
collection of toll / user fee which coincides with the usage of the infrastructure facitity, Income from sale of smart cards is recognised on cash basis,

Claims

Claims raised with the concession granting authority towards reimbursement for costs incurred due to delay in handing over of unencumbered land fo the Company
for construction or other delays attributable solely to the concession granting authority are recoghised when there is a reasonable certainty that there will be inflow
of economic benetits to the concerned Company. The elaims when recognised as such are reduced from the earrying amount of the itangible asset under
development to the extent the claims relate to costs earlier included as a part of the carrying amount of these assets. Further, these claims are credited to Profit and
Loss to the extent they relate to costs earlier charged off. The claims are presented separately as a financial asset. In case where the claim is estimaied to be received
over a perfod of thme and the time value of monsy is materfal, these claims are measured at a discounted amount at the time of recognition, The unwinding of the
discount is recognised as an interest income.

Other Income:

Interest and dividend:

Dividand is recognized as reyenues when the right to receive payment has been established. For all debt instruments meagurad either at amortised cost or 4t fair value
through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR), EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash payments or receipts over the expeeted life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
or to the amortised cost of a financial Liability.

Rendering of International Convention Centre Services:

Revenue from rendering of Tnternational Convention Centre Services is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Reverme
includes room revenue, food and beverage sale and banquet services which is recognized once the rooms are oceupied, food and beverages are sold and banquet
services have been provided as per the contract with the customer respectively,

Government grants
Grants from the govesnment related to assets are initially recognised as deferred fncome at thelr fair vaiue where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will

‘bé'recgived and the group will comply with ali attached conditions, they are then recognized in profit or loss as other income on a systematic basts over the useful
Jlli’e; of ﬂle ssel

//?’!-;. ,f’ a1 HngirﬂntS\th j c%mpensate the Group for expenses incuarred are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the periods in which the expenseq are recogmsed

Qitlons for receiving the grant are met after fhe related expenses have been recognised, in which case, the gmnt 1s
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105 Property, plant and equipment

®

(i)

(i

2.05

{v)

2406

@

i)

L1
th

Recogltion and measurement

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment aie measured at cost less accurmulated depreciation and any aceumulated
impainnent losses,

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

a)}  its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

b}  any costs direcily atiributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of opermling in the manner intended by
management,

c)  the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring lhe site on which it is located, the obligation for which an entity incurs
either when the item is acquired

Income and expenses related to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the item to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management, are recognised in profit or Joss.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment bave different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components} of
property, plant and equipment, Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if'it is probable that the fiture economic benefits associated with the expenditure will fiow to the Group and the cost of
the itsm can be measured reliably.

Transition to Ind AS

The cost property, plant and squipment at 1 April 2016, the Group’s date of transition to Ind AS, was determined with reference to its carrying value recognised as
per the previous GAAP {deemed cost), as at the date of trangition to Ind AS.

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation

Depreciable amomt for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, ks its estimated residnal value.

Depreciation is provided using the straiglit line method in the matmer and at the rates preseribed by Part 'C' of Schedule 11 of the Act. Depicciation Is charged ona
monthly pro-rata basis for assets purchased or sold during the year,

In the following cases, the useful life is less than the corresponding usefizl life prescribed inPart 'C* of Schedule II of the Act, based oninternal technical evaluation,
taking into account the natuwre of the assets, the estimated usage of the asset, the opemting conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated
teclmological changes etc.:

Plant and Machinery 8-15 years
Furniture and Fixtures 6-10 years
Office equipments 3-6 years
Electrical Fittings 10-15 years
Computers 3-4 years
Motor Vehicles 5-7 years
Building 5-32 years

Teasshold improvements are amorlissd over the lease period,
Bepreciation methods, usefil lives and residual valuss are reviewsd at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate,
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing procesds with carying amount, These are included #n1 profit or Joss within sther gaing/ (Josses).

Investment property

Recognition, measurement and derecognition

Property that is hold for long-term rental income or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not cceupied by the group and is not held for sale in the ordinary
course of buginess, is classified as investment property. Investment property is measured initially at its vost, including related transaction costs and where applicable
barrowing costs, Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost less accutnulated depreciation and accumulated impatrment losses, if any.

Investment property is derceognised either when it has been disposed of or when it is peruanently withdrawn from use and no fiture economic benefit is expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal of investiment property {calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount
of the item) s recognised in profit or Joss.

Subsequent Expenditure;

Subsequent expsnditare is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amowunt ordy when it is probable that firture sconomic benefits associaled with the sxpendinre will flow
to the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and mainlenance cosis ars expensed when incurred. When part of an Investiment
praperty is replaced, the carying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
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Depreciation

The Bstimated vseful life in years is as follows:

Building 25-60 years®

Plant and Machinery 10 yeats*

Office equipments 10 years *
Electrical Fittings 10 years

Leasehold Land over the leass peried
Computers 3-4 years

*For this class of assets, based on technical svafuation and internal assessment of usage pattern, the management believes that the useful lifs 23 adopted best
tepresents the period over which the mansgement expects to use these assels. Hence, the usefull life of these assets are lower from the useful lives as prescribed
under Part C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Any pain or loss on disposal of an investiment property i3 recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss.

The Fair Values of Investment property is disclosed in Note 6. Such Fair Values are determined after considering valuation by an independent valuer who holds a
recognized and relevant professional qualification and experience in respect of the investment property being valued

Transition to Ind AS
The cost of investment property at 1 April 2016, the Group’s date of transition to Ind AS, was determined with reference to its catrying value recognised as per the
previous GAAP (deemed cost), as at the date of transition to Ind AS.

Investment propexty under constraction
Property that is being constructed For fiture use as investment property is accounted tor as investtuent property under construstion until constraction or development
is complate, All costs which ate directly atteibutable to construction of the investment property are capitalized.

Entangible assets

a} Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets, Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for Impairment annually. It is carried at cost less
acewrmilated impainment losses. Gaing and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing, The allocation is made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expacted to benefit from the business combination in wlich the goodwill arose, The units or groups of units are identified at the Jowast level
at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes, which in our case are the operating segments,

b) Service concession intangible assets

(i) Passenger ropeway facility .

Intangible agsets comprise a right to charge wsers for passenger ropeway facility. The cost of intangible assets acquired in exchange of monetary or non-monetary
assels is measured at fair value unless {a) the exchange transaction lacks commercial substance or (b) the fair value of neither the asset received nor the asset given
up is reliably measurable, If acquired assct cannot be measured at fair value, its cost is measured at the carrying amount of {hs asset given up, The fair valuo of the
asset is measured with reference to the fair value of construction services provided.

{ii) Tolt collectivn right

Toll collection rights representing right to receive fees from users of facility are obtained in consideration for rendering construction, operation and maintenance
services in relation to building and maintenance of the project on Build, Operate and Transfor basis. The consideration teceived in a setvice concession arrangement
is measured at fair value upon initial recognition, i.¢. construction cost, Subsequent to initial recognition the intangible asset is measured at cost, which includes
capitalised borrowing costs, less aceurnulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Syhsequent expenditure is capitelized only when it increases the future sconomic benelits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.

(iii} Amortization of service concession intangible assots

The intangible riglts relating to these infrastructure assets, which are recognized in the form of right to charge users of the infrastructure assst are amorlized by
taking the proportion of acteal traffic count for the period over total projected traffic count from project to cost of intangible assets; i.e. proportion of actual traffic
for the period over tofal projected traffic count from the intangible assets expocted io be earned over the balance concession perlod as estimated by the management,

However with respect to toll road assets constructed and in operation as at March 31, 2016, the amortization of such intangible rights are based on actual revenus
earned compared to fotal projected revenue from the project over the balance concession period to cost intangible assets, instead of affic count. Total projected
revenne / traffic count is reviewed at the end of each financial year and i adjusted to reflect any chtanges in the estimates which lead to the actual collection at the
end of the concession period as permitted by transitional provisions of Ind A8

¢) Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets comprise application software purchased, which are not an integral part of the related hardware, and are amortized on a written down value
basis over a period of ten vears, which in Mavagement’s estimate ropresents the period during which the economic benefits will be derived from their use.

Subsequent expenditare is capitalized only when it increases the fature economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which il relates
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Notes to the consolidated tinancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
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2,08 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting dats, the Group reviews the carrying amounis of Its non-financial assets (other tham investment property, inventories, contract assets and deferred
tax assets} to deterinine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverble amount is estimated, For
impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continving use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or CGUs, Goodwill arising from a busitess combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expested to benafit from the
synergies of the combination, The recoverable amount of an individval asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal. Value
in uge Is based on the estimated fiture oash flows, discounted to their present vaiue using a pro-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU, An impainuent loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the camrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to
reduce the carryitg amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for fmpnirment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Such assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable, Management perfodically assesses using, extertial and internal sources, whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired.

Impairment of Toll Collection Rights:

[mpajrment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its valve in use. The fair value less costs of disposal caloulation is based on avallable data for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset, The value in use caloulation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are dertived from the budgst generally covering a
petiod of the concession agreements using long terms growth rates aod do not Includs restructuring activities that the Group is not vet commiitted to or significant
firture investmenits that will enhance the asset’s performance being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF mode as well
as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation puposes. Farther, the Group considers favourable arbitration awards towards its
claim from various authorities in the impairment as period as permitted by transitional provisions of Ind ASunits as distinct perf

2.09 Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the asguisition, constructicn or production of & qualifying asset are capitalised daring the period
of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income eatned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted fom the borowing costs
eligibie for capitalisation,

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period i which they are incurred,

2.10 Income-tax
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Income tax expense comprises curtent and deferred lax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates ftems recognised directly in equity or in
oCI

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in
respect of previous years. It is measured vsing tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Management perfodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returng with respect to situations in which applicable fax rogulation is subject to interpretation. It estzblishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities,

Current tax assets and lizbilities are oflset only it} the Group;
a)  has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amovnts; and
b)  intends elther to softle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recoguised in respect of temporaty differences beiween the carrying amounis of assets and Jiabilitles for tinancial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation pusposes. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they aise from the fnitial recognition of goodwill Deferred income fax is also not
accounted for If it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transactien other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (fx loss).

Defeired tax assets are recognised for unused {ax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary difforences to the extent that it is probable that fiture taxable
prafiis will be available against which they can be wsed. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at ench reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
prabable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future txable profits improves. Unrecognised deferred (ax
assets are reassessed at cach toporting date and recoguised to the extent that It has become prabable that filture taxable profits will be available against which they
can be used. '

Deforred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporaty differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacied
at the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the defetred income tax liability is settled,

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments In subsidiaries, branches and
associates and interest in joint arrangements where fhe group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseceble future,
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Deferred tax assets ana not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of Investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates
and interest in joint amangements where it i not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and Liabilities are offset only ift

a)  the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

b)  the deferred tax assets and the defemred tax linbilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity but they intend to
settle current tax Habilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously

Business combinations

"The acquisition methed of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets ave acquired, when
the acquired set of activities and assets meets the definition of a business and control is transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary comprises the;

fair values of the assets transferred;

libilities incwired to the former owners of the acquired business;

squiiy interests izsued by the group; and

Fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration armrangement.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent labilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proporticnate share of the acquired entity’s net ilentifiable essats, Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred except if related
to the issue of debt or squity seeuritiss.

The excess of the

+ considecation transferred;

+ amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and

- Acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill, If
those amounts are less than the falr value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as capital reserve provided thers is clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase, In
other casss, the bargain purchase gain is recognised direetly in equity as capital reserve.

- Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the firure are discounted to their present value as at the date of exchange.
The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing coukd be obtained from an independent financier under
comnparable terms and conditicns.

+ Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a fnancial liability. Amonnts classified as a financial lability are subsequently remeasured to fair valus
with clanges in fair value recognised in prodit or loss.

- If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying valug of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquirs is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such remeasvrement are recognised in profit or loss or other comprebensive income, as
appropriate,

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpese of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at cali with financiat institutions, other
shori-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value,

Inventories

Direct expenses like land cost, development rights, site labour cost, material used for project construction, cost of berrowing, project management consultancy,
costs for moving the plant and machinery to the site and general expenses incwred specifically for the respective project like insurance, design and technical
assistance, and construction overheads are taken as the cost of the project work in progress and cost of unsold flats,

Material at site comptise of building matetial, components, stores and spares.

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value, cost is detesmined on weighted average basis. Net realizable valuc is the estimated selling price in the
ordiniaty course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

A financiel instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity mstrument of another eatity. Financial
instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign currency fbreign exchange forward conteacts, interest rate swaps and corrency options; and embedded
derivatives in the host coniract, Financial instruments {.. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contragtual pravisions of the instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial instroments (other than financial instruments at fair valus through profit or loss) are added te or deducted from the fair value of the financial
instruments, as appropriate, on initial recognition, Transaction costs directly atitibuable to the acquisition of financial instruments assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or peried as permitted by transitional pr
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Financial assets

Subsequent Measurement

All rscognised financial assets are subsequently measured at ameriized cost using effective interest method except for financial assets carried at fair value through
Profit and Loss (FYTPL) or fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCD), on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset,

Initial recogultion and measurement
Trade receivables and debt seourties {ssued are initally recognised when ﬂley are criginated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable withous a significant financing component) or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for
an item not at FYTPL, transaction costs that are directly atftributable to its acquisition or issue, A trade receivable without a significant financing component is
initially meastred at the transaction price. Financial assets ars not reclassified subsequent to their intial recognition unless the Group changes in Business model for
managing financial assets, i which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting pericd following the change in the business
mode..

Debt instruments

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost and is not designated as FVTPL if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b} Contractual terms of the asset give 1ise on specified dates to cash Hows that are solely payments of priceipal and interest (SPPI) on the principsl amount
outstanding,

After Initia] measwrement, sucl financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the affective interest rate {EIR) method, Amortised cost is
celeulated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR ameortisation is Included o finance income
in the profit or loss.

Liquity Knvestment in Joint Venture and Associates
The group subsequently measutes all equity investments in commpanies other than equity investiments In, joint ventures and associates at fair value,

Equity Investment (Other that investment in Joint Venture and Associates)
All equity investments falling within the scope of Ind-AS 109 are mandatorily measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) with all fair valoe changes
recognizad in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not Leld for trading, the Group has an itrevocable option of designating certain equity instruments ag FYOCIL
Option of designating instruments as FVOCT is done on an instrument-by-instrument basis, The classification rnade on initial recognition is itrevocable, If the Group
decides to classify an equity instrument as FVQOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument are recognized in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).
Amounts from GCI are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss, even on sale of investment.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial assst or part of a Group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecegnised (ie. removed from the
Group’s balance sheet) when;

The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a *pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transfierred nor retained substantially alt the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred contro! ef the asset.

When the Group has transforred its rights ¢ receive cash dows fiom an asset or bas entered inte 4 pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership, When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s contimuing invelvement. In that case, the Group also
recoghises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are mcasured on a basis that reflects the righis and obligations that the Group has
retained,

Contiming involvement that takes the form of a guarantes over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the agset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Empairment of fienncial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss {ECL) modsl for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial
assefs and credit risk exposure;

a)  Financial assets that are debl instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g,, leans, debt securities, deposits, and bank balance;

b)  Lease receivables; and

¢)  Trade receivables,

The Group follows ‘simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowarce on:

a)  Trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component; and

b)  Alllease receivables resulting from transactions.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at cach reporting date, right fromm its initial recognition.

For recognition of impainment less on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition, If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if oredit risk has increased

“signifi antly, hfetlme ECL is vsed. If, m a subgequent pemod credlt quailty of the instrument nnpmves such that there is no longer a significant incroase in credit
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Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial lisbility is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a
derivative cr it is designated as such on initial recognition, Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest
expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss, Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss,

Derivatives

Derivatives are inisially measured at fair value, Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised
in profit or loss.

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instnunents to hedge the varability in cash flows assoclated with highly probable forecast transactions arising
from changes in foreign exchange rates and interest rates and certain derivatives and non-derivative financial liabitities as hedges of foreign exchange risk on a net
investment in a foreign operation.

At inception of designated hedging relationships, the Group documents the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Group also
documents the economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including whether the changes in cash flows of the hedged item and
hedging instrument are expected to offset each other.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized. Amoriised cost is calenlated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss,

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Compound Financial Instruments

The fair value of the liability portion of an opticnally convertible bonds i determined using a market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bonds. This
amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption of the bonds. The remainder of the proceeds is
attributzble to the equity portion of the compound instrument. This is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of income tax effects, and not
subsequently remeasured.

Where flie terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor fo extinguish all or part of the liability {debt for equity
swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or Joss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of
the equity instruments lssued,

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing Hability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recogmition of a new liability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recogmised in the
statemenit of profit or loss,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to setfle on a net basis or realise the asset and setile the liability simultaneously. The legelly enforceable right must not be
contingent on futare events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the group or the
counterparty.

Employce benefits

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the relaled service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employse and the obligation can be estimated reliably,

Compensated absences

The liabilities for earned Yeave and sick leave ate nog expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
related service, They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up fo the end
of the reporting period using the projected unit eredit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yigkls at the end of the reporting period that have terms
approximating to the texms of the related obligation. Re-measurements as a result of experience adjusiments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in
profit or loss, The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer the seitlement for at
least twelve months after the reporting date.
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Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is & post-employment benefit plan where the Group’s legal or constructive obligation is limited to the amount that it contributes to a
separate logal entity. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided. Prepaid contiibutions are recognised
ag an asset to the extent that a cash refind or a reduction in fiture payments is available, The Group makes specified meathly contiibutions towards Governmant
administered provident find scheme.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Groap’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is
calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount
and deducting the fair value of any plan assets,

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit methed, When the caleulation results in a
potential asset for the Group, the recognised asset is Himited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any futare refunds from the plan or
redustions in future contributicns fo the plan. To caleulate the present value of economic benefits, consideration {3 given to any applicable minimum fimding
requirements. These defined benefit plans expese the Group to actuarial risks, such as longevity rislk, infsrest rate risk and market (investment) risk

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit Liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the
nsset ceiling (if aiy, excluding interest), are recognised Immediately in other comprehensive mcome (OCI). Net interest expense {income) on the net defined liability
(assets) is computed by applying the discoumt rate, used to measure the net defined liability (asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial year
after taking into account any changes as a resull of contribution and benefit payments dwing the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined
benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

‘When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of 2 defined benefit plan when the settlement ocours,

Other long-term employee benefits
The Group's net obligation in reapect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefil that employees have earned in return for their servics in the
current and prior periods, That benefit is discounted to determine its present value, Re-measurerent are recognised in profit or loss in the peried in which they arise,

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as : Investrnent risk, terest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk:

(i) Investment risk : The presenit value of the defined benefit plan lability is caloulated using the discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at
the end of the reporting period on govermment bends. For other defined benefit plans, the discourt rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the
reporting petiod on high quality corporate bonds when there is a deep market for such bonds; if the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan
deficit. Currently, for the plan in Indin, it has a relatively balanced mix of investinents in government securities and other debt instruments. Further.

(i) Interest risk : A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will bs partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan's
debt investmuents,

(iii) Longevity visk : The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both
during and after their employment. An increase in the life expsctaney of the plan participants will fncrease the plan's Hability.

(iv) Salary risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan lability is caloulated by reference to the fture salaries of plan pasticipants, An increase in the Salary
of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Provisious

Provislons are recognised whert the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as & resalt of a past event, it is probable that an ouillow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the ameunt of the cbligation. Expeeted future opsrating
lesses are not provided for,

Long-term provisions are determined by discounting the expected fiuhwe cash flows speeific to the liabdity, The wmwinding of the disceunt is recognised as fnance
cost.

Provisions are measured at the present valuc of management’s bast estimate of the expenditure required to settls the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pro-tax rate that refiects current market assessments of the tinie vakie of money and the risks
specific to the lability. The increase in the provision dus to the passage of time is recognised a3 fterest expense.

Contingent Liabilities

A disclosure for a contingent Lability is mmade when thers is a possible obligation er a present obligation that may, but will probably not, require an outflow of
respurces, Information on contingent Habilities is disclosed in the notes to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying econemic
benefil is remote. A contingent asset is not recognised byt disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Earnings per share

Basic earings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average pumber of equity shares outstanding during the vear, The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the events for bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to existing
sharsholders, share split and reverse sharg split (vonsolidation of shares),

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (ess) afier tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any
attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equily shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share
and the weighted average muniber of equity shares which could have been {zsued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares
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2.18 Leases

Grounp as a Lessee

The Group applies a single recoguition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises
lease finbililies to make lease payments and right-cf-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to contro! the use of an identified asset fora period of
time in exchange for consideration

() Right of tse Asset

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease. Right-oftuse assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease Yabilitiss. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
Tecognised, initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.

The riglt-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-
of-use asset or the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfors ownesship of the underlying asset to the Group by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right
of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option,

The right-of-use assets ars also subjsct to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies of Impainment of non-financial assets.

{ii) Lease Liabilitles

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease labilitles measyred at e present value of lease payments 1o be made over the lease tern, The
lease pryments include fixed payments less any lease mcentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid imder residual value guarantees. The lease paymenls also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to ferminate.

Variable lease payments fhat do not depend on an index or a tate are recognised as expenses in the petfod in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
oceours,

In caleulating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrewing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the acoretion of intevest and reduced for
the lease payments made, In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease torm, a change in the
lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the canrying amount of the right-ofuse asset, ot is recorded in profit or
foss if' the carrying amount of the right-of-nse asset has been reduced to zero.

(lil} Shoxt term leases and leases of low value of assets

The Group applies the shori-term lease recognition exemption to fts short-jorm leases of machinety and equipment, It also applies the lease of low value assets
tecognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
o1l a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Gronp as a Lessor _

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental
income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the teass terms. Initiol direct costs incuired in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as reatal income. Contingent rents are recognised as revome in the
petiod in which they are earned.

2.19 Receut pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as
issued from time ‘o time. On Mazch 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Tadian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from Aprl 1, 2023, as below. Other amendments included n the notification doss not bave any
significant impact on the financial statemenis.

Iml AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting poicies rather than their significant eccounting policies. Accounting policy information,
together with other information, is material when it can teasonably be expested to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statoments. The
Compasy does not expeot this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statoments,

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations, The amendments narrowed the
scope of the recogaition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so thai it no lenger applies to transactions that, on initial
recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Company does not expeet this amendment to have any sigoificant impact in its
financial statements,

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Aecounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and acconnting estimates. The definition of a change in acoounting estimates has been
replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates ate “monetary amounts in financial stafemenis that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial staterents to be measured in a way that involves
measurement uncextainty. The Company does not expect ihis amendment to have any significant impact in its financial siatements,

———
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'Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indian rupees in croves}

Note 4 (a)
Investment Property
Partlculars Frackold I Lengehold | Beiklings | Computers]  Formifure Qiflce Electrieal Plant and Total
land and fixfurss | equipment flitings Machinery
Cost / Beemed Cost
At31 March 2021 25.68 36.91 2.542.48 Q.01 1.83 11.68 163,75 354,02 3,136.36
Add: Additions for the year - - 295.93 0.98 48,36 9.93 17.00 60.54 432,74
Add: On account of acquisition of a subsidiary (Refer Note - - 934,26 - 0.07 - 454 237 991.64
50
Less: Disposals for the year - n - " - - - - -
At31 March 2022 25.68 36.91 1,822.68 0.99 50.26 21.61 185.69 416.93 4,560.73
Add: Additions for the year 042 - - - - 0.04 - 0.59 1.04
Less: Disposals for the year - - - - - - - - -
Less: On account of loss of control of investment in (10.29) . {2,807.94) (0.98) (49.93) {21.47) {180.17) {391.40) (3,462.18)
subsidlaries (refer note 50)
AL March 2023 15.81 36.91 1,014.73 0.01 0.33 0.18 5.52 26.12 1,099.61
Accomualated Depreciation aad impairnent
AL March 2021 4.67 22,03 58391 - 0.22 4.67 6923 170,15 854.90
Add: Depreciation for the year “ - 11776 0.09 2,38 4.00 16.21 39.78 180.22
Less: Disposals for the year - - - - - - - - -
At 31 March 2422 4.67 2203 701.67 .09 2,60 8.67 8546 209.93 1,03512
Add; Depreciation for the year - 0.55 4920 0.07 L78 2,69 4.39 11.99 H.66
Less: Disposals for the year - - - - - - - - -
Less: On aceount of loss of control of investment in - - (709,19} ©17 4.20) (11,15) {88.55) (213.70) (1,02897)
subsidtacies {refer note 5¢)
At 31 March 2023 4.67 22.58 41.68 - 0.17 0.20 129 §.22 76.81
Net Carrying Amonnt as at 31 March 2022 21,01 14.88 3,121.00 0.90 47.66 12,94 100,23 207.00 3,525.62
Net Carrying Amount as at 31 March 2023 11.14 14.34 973.05 0.01 0,16 (0,02} 4.22 19.90 1,022.7%
i) Amounts recognised in profit and loss for Investment property
Partlculars 31 Mareh 31 Merch
2023 2022
Rental lncome 168.03 573.03
Ditect operating expenses from property that generated rental income 040 21126
Direct operating cxpenses from property that did not generate rental income - 49.3]

i) Leasing arrangements
The Group has legsed properties under non-cancellable operating lesses in the capacity of a lessor. Refer Note 478 for fiture minimumn lease payments in respect of these propeties till the expiry oflock in
period. There are no firther contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment propesty or for repairs, maintenance or enhancements.

Investment propeity comprises a sunber of commercial propertiss that are leased to (hivd partics, Each of the leases entered are nomally for a periad of § to 10 years. Subsequent tenewals ars negotiated with
the lessee or as per the terms of initial agreement are antomaticelly renewed. No contingent renis are charged.

iif) Mensurement of falr values

The fair value of Investment property are determined after considering valuation by an aceredited independent vatuer who holds a recogaised and relevant professional qualification and experience in respect
of the investment property being valued. A valuetion model in accordance with that recommended by the Intemationa] Valuation Standards Committee has been applied for valuations performed by
independent valuer. The independent valuer is a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies {Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017,

The fair value measurement for all of the investment property has been categorised as a Level 3 fair value based on the inpu's to the vaiuation technirme used,

iv) Valuation technique:

2. Valuation of some subject property has been done by Sales Comparison Method ender Market Approach. A comparison is made for the purpose of valuation with similar properties that heve recently been
sold in the market and thus have a transaction price. The sales comparison approacl: is the prefered approach when sales data are available, Comparable properties ave selected for similavity to the subject
property considering aiifibutes like age, size, shape, quality of construction, building features, condition, design, genlry, etc. Their sale prices ars then adjusted for their difference from the subject property.
Finally a market valug for the subject property is estimated from the adjusted sales price of the comparable properties.

b. The Group also hus followed discounted cash flows {'DCF') technique for some prapetlies which considers the present value of net cash flows io be generated from the property, using risk-adjusted discount
rates faldng nto account the expeoted rental growth rate, vacant periods, ocoupancy rate, ledss incontive costs such as seni-fice periods and other costs not paid by tenants

¢, In ¢ase of a valvation of a large tand parcel, where the development potential is realised over a petiod of lime (i.c. time value of money comes into the picturs) and also where there are no or few immediate
similar properties (1.0, comparable) available for comparison, DCF method considering relevant potential developments of the project is used.

Reconcllialipn of fair valpe
Tie following is the reconclilation in the fair values as of 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023:

Pariiculars Amount
Opening balance as of 1 April 2021 5,622,34
Add: Additions for the year 3174
Add: On account of acquisition of a subsidiary (Refer Note 1,001.04
50 (b

Add: Increase in Fair value 886,68
Clostng balanee as of 31 March 2022 7,561.80 !
Add: Addiions for the year 1.04
Less: On account of disposal of investments in subsidiaries {6,427.48)
resulting in loss of conirol {refer note 58)

Adds Inorease in Fair value 113.85

Clostag bulance as of 31 March 2023 1,249.21
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(Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 4 (h)
Right-of-use assets

Particulars L.easehold land Office Total

Premises

Cost
At 31 March 2021 1,412.79 1.51 1,414.30
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
At 31 March 2022 141279 1.51 1,414.30
Less; On account of loss of contrel of investment in {1,412.79} - (1,412.75)
subsidiaries (refet note 50)
At 31 March 2023 - L.51 1.51
Accumupalated Depreciation
At 31 March 2021 180.06 0.21 180,27
Add: Depreciation for the yoar 1426 Q.17 14.43
At 31 March 2022 194.32 0.38 194.70
Add: Depreciation for the year 3.87 0,17 4.04
Less: On account of loss of contrel of investment in (198.19) - (198.19)
subsidiaries (refer note 50)
At 31 March 2023 - 0.55 Q.55
Net Carrying Amount as at 31 March 2022 1,258.47 113 1,219.60
Net Carrying Amount as at 31 Mareh 2023 - 396 0.96

Note 4 (¢)
Goodwill

Goodwill acquired on business combination is allocated, at acquisition to the cash generating units {CGUSs) that are expected to benefit from that business combination. The
carrying amount of Goodwill has been allocated as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2023 | 31 Maxrch
2022
Goodwill in respect of:
TRIL Infopark Limited - 190.54
TRIL IT4 Private Limited (Refer Note 50 (b)) 211.72 21172
21,72 402.26 |

n aceordance with TND AS 36 Tmpairment of Assets” the Group performed impairment teating of Goodwill assigned to the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) as at March 31, 2023, The Group is
engaged in the business of real estate and infrastructare development (including purchase, construction or sale of immovable property, project management consultancy setvices and
investiment advisory services) for which recoverable amount is determined for investment property at each reporting date i.e individual CGUSs. The Company follows discounted cashflows
techinique which considers the present value of net cashflows to be generated from the property taking into account the expected rental growth rate,vacant period, occupancy rate, lease
incentive costs such as rent free periods and ofher costs not paid by tenants. The expected net cashflows are discounted nsing risk-adjusted discount rates of 12.08% and a lease escalation rate
ranging from 12% to 15% . Among other factors, the discount rate ostimation considers the quality of a building and its location, tenani credit quality and lease terms, The estimated fair value
of the CGU was higher than its respective carrying amount, hence impairment provision recorded during the current year is T Nil (March 31, 2022 - X Nil). Management believes that any
reasorably possible change in the key assumptions such as estimated lease ront, rent growth pa , sccupancy, capitalisation rate and discount rate on which recoverable amount is based would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount to excesd the aggregate recoverable ameunt of the Goodwill,
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in crores}

Note 8
Other Intangible assets
Particulars Software Service Concession Total

Arrangemenis

{refer foot note

below)

Cost / Beemed Cost
At 31 Maveh 2021 4.47 1,964.05 1,968.52
Add: Additions for the year 13.56 1,850,39 1,903.95
Less: Disposals for the year - - -
At 31 March 2022 13.03 3,854.44 3,87247
Add: Additions for the year 112 62.37 63.49
Less: Disposals for the year (0.09) (1.66) (1.75)
Less: On account of foss of control of investment in (14.05) - (14,05)
subsidiaries (refer note 50)
At 31 March 2023 5.01 3,915.15 3,920.17
Aceumulated Amortisation and impairment
At 31 March 2021 144 205,01 208.45
Add: Amortization for the year 1.39 104,52 105,91
Less: Disposals for the year - - -
At 31 March 2022 4.83 300,53 314.36
Add: Amortization for the year 131 102.42 103.73
Less: Disposals for the year (0.47) u 0.47)
Less: Om account of Joss of control of investment in (1.90) - {1.90)
stbsidiaries (refer note 30)
At 31 March 2023 3.76 411,96 415.72
Net Carrying Amount as at 31 March 2022 13.20 3,544.91 3,558.11
Net Carrying Amount as at 31 Maveh 2023 1.25 3,503.20 3,504.44
Service concession agrecments
Name of entity Deseription of the avr Signlficant terms of the arrange:

Tnternational Infrabuild Ps, Ltd.

As per the Concession Agreement {CA) the Company is required to build
and eperate Mult{ Level Car Farking and colleet Parking fees from
Vehicles and User fees for Publio Convenience Facilities. The CA also
specifies that the Company is required to built and operate of the total
area of comunercial Infragiructure and an area of 5% i.e 466 sq.m shall be
reserved for Auto Shewroom/Auta Workshop,

Period of concession: 33 years (2017-2030)

Investment grant from concession grantor : Nil

Investment and renowal obligations : Nil

Basis upon which re-pricing o re-negotiation is determined : Inflation
Premium payable to grantor :Rs, 2,66 ors plus escalation increase

Hampi Expressways Private Limited

Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis,
augmentation of the existing road from km 299.90 to kun 418,750
(approximately 120,18 km) on the Hospet-Chitradurga section of
National Highway No.13 (New National Highway No,50)

Period of concession: 26 yoars (2016 - 2041)

Remuneration : Toll Fee Collection from Road Users

Inyestment prant from concession grantor : Nil

Investment and renewal obligations : Nil

Basis upon which re-pricing or re-negotiation is determined « Inflation
Premium payable to grantor 1Rs, 18,13 crs plug escalation increase

Uchit Bxpressway Privale Lid,

Six Lening of Chittorgarh-Udaipur Section of NH-76 from Design
Chainage Km 214.§70 to Km 308.370 in the State of Rajasthan (Length
93,500 K} on DBFQT {Toll} Mode under NHDP Phase V {Package -
o)

Period of concession: 29 Years (2017-2046)

Remuneration : Toll Fee Collection from Road Users

Investment grant from concession granter ; NIL

Investment and renewsl obligations : NiL

Basis upon which re-pricing or re-nsgotiation is detenmined : NA
Premium payable to grantor : Rs. 25 ors plas escalation increase

Durg Shivnath Expressways Private Limited

Talt collections from the users and operation and maintenance of total
streteh of 18.5 kms al Ni:-6, Durg Bypass as agreed between the
Company and National Highways Anthority of Indla (NHAL) on Build,
Operate and Transter {BOT] basis

1) Period of Concession: 32 Years and 6 months (2007-2030)

2) Remuneration: Toll Fee Collection from Road Users

3} Investment Grant frem Cenpession Granjor —NIL

43 Basis upon which re-pricing or re-negotiation is determined — Toll Tariff
will be revised 1st April of every year considering WPI

3) Premium payable t¢ Grantor — NIL

Dharamshala Ropeway Limited

Apreement entered with The Department of Tourism & Civil Aviation,
Himachal Pradesh (* Authority”} for the construction of Passenger
Ropeway connecting Dharamshaia to Me lecdganj, Length of 1777
Meters under DBFOT Model {Design, Build, Finance, Operate and
‘Transfer Model), referred to as "Passenger Ropeway Facility".

Period of concession: 40 Years from the appoiniment date (2020-2060)
Remuneration : Collection on Ropeway tickets

Investiment grant from coneession grantor : NIL

Investment and renewal obligations : Nit

Basis upon which re-pricing or re-negotiation is determined : AS per
concession agreement

Premium payable ko grantor: Rs, 1 or plus escalation Increase

Matheran Ropeway Private Limited

Development of a Ropeway projeot in Matheran, Maharashira of approx.
4500 Meters connecting Bhutivali Village to Madhavji Point at
Matheran, on Degign, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBIFOT)
basis. The Project would have all elements of sustainability snd would be
noise freg, electricity driven, Eco-fiiendly and non-polluting; It is
estimated that the Project would save ~ 1000 tonne of carbon dioxide

emissions,

The Company has signed an Agrecment with The Matheran Giristhan Nagav
Parishad, Matheran on 20th May 2003 for a pericd of 99 years, The Company
has agreed to pay compensation squal to 5% of its net profits of each year to
Matheran Giristhan Nagar Parishad, Matheran.
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in crores}

Note 5

Capital work-in-progress (Refer Note 58 for ageing)
Project consultancy and techuical charges

Others

" Movement in Capital work-in-progress

Opening Balance

Add: Additions

Less: Capitalisation to investment property / property, plant and equipmient
Closing Balance

Note 6

Investment property under construction
Land

Project Development Expenses

Finance Costs (including unwinding of interest)
Construction Cost to Contractor

Movement in Investment property under construction

Opening Balance

Add: Additions

Less: Adjustment on loss of control in subsidiaries

Less: Capitalisation to investment property / property, plant and equipment

Closing Balance

Note 7

As at
31 March 2023

Asat
31 March 2022

Intangible assets under development under Service Concession Arrangements (Refer Note 59)

Construction Cost to Contractor
Other Expenses

Movement in Investment properiy under construction

Opening Balance

Add: Additions

Less: Capitalisation to investment property / property, plant and equipment

Closing Bzlance

.63 0.63
- 0.62
0.63 125
1.25 0.62
- 0.63
0.62 -
0.63 125
- 11.40
- 251.14
- 5.58
0.24 0.24
0.24 268.76
268,76 848.75
.00 .
168,52 193.67
- 386.32
0.24 268,76
7.75 7.00
0.14 -
7,89 7,00
7,00 1,732.15
0.89 165.24
- 1,890.39
7.89 7.60




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 9

L Investment accounted using Equity Method:

A. Investment in Joint Ventures:

Unquoted equity shares, fully paid-up

2,386,711 (2022: 2,386,711) equity shares of Pune Solapur Expressways
Private Limited, of Rs.10 each fully paid up.

3,256 (2022: 3,236} equity shares of INR 100 each in Tndustrial Minerals and
Chemicals Company Private Liited (Refer Foot Note 1 befow)

19,987,400 (2022: 19,987,400) equity shares of INR 10 each in Mikado
Realiors Private Limited (Refer Foot Note 1 below) (Net of Provision for
Tmpairment of Rs. Nil (2022: Rs, 18.01 crotes) based on fair valuation)

839,899,999 (2022: 244,199,999) equity shares of INR 10 each in Pune IT City
Metro Rail Limited

38,079,459 (2022: Nil} equity shares of INR 10 each in Infopark Properties
Limnited

2,058,247 (2022: Nil) equity shares of INR 10 each in Arrow Infta Estates
Private Limited

2,183,554 (2022: Nil) equity shares of INR 10 each in Gurgaon Realtech
Limited

6,078,093 (2022: Nil) equity shares of INR 10 each in Gurgacn Construciwell
Private Limidted

B. Investment in Associates:

Unquoted equity shares, fully paid-up

24,400,000 {2022: 24,400,000} equity shares of INR 10 each in TRIL Constructions
Limited

12,151,200 (2022: 12,151,200} 0.001% Compuisory Convertible Preference shares in
TRIL Constructions Limited

550,817,119 (2022: 368,335,368) equity shares of INR 10 each in Tata
Housing Development Cempany Limited
(4)

II, Investments carried at Amortised Cost
Investment in debentures of Joint Ventures:

Ungquoted Debentures
7,089 (2022: Nil) Non-convertible Debentures of INR 10 Lacs each in Infopark

Properties Limited
11,174 (2022: Nil) Non-convertible Debentures of INR 10 Lacs each in Mikado
Realtors Private Limited
19,015,686 (2022: Nil) Unquoted 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible
Debentures of INR 10 each in Arrow Infra Estates Private Limited
20,322,110 (2022: Nil} Unquoted 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible
Debentures of INR 10 each in Gurgaon Realtech Limited

49,782,372 (2022: Nil} Unquoted 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible
Debentures of INR 10 each in Gurgaon Constructwell Private Limited

11,787,460 (2022: 11,787,460) Unquoted Compulsorily Convertible
Debentures of INR 100 each in Industrial Minerals and Chemicals Company
Private Limited

®)

(A+B)

Note:
(i} Aggregate Carrying Value of Unguoted Investments {Net)
(it) Aggrogate amourtt of impairment in value of Investments

Foot Notes:

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

5837 30,05
218.13 218.81
152,68 181.45
801.63 234.34
309.81 -

25,60 -

64.28 -

TAT5 -

2427 2440

12.15 12.15

1,299.40 960.70
3,041.07 1,662.40
762,10
92.38 .
18.68 -
20,90 -
44.26 -
117.87 117.87
1,056.19 117.87
4,097.26 1,780.27
4,097.26 1,780.27

102,57 102.57

1. The Group has provided non disposal undertakings to the lenders / investors of its joint ventures for the minimum shareholding that

the Company needs to maintain until the finat settlement date of the loan,




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the conselidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Cutrency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 10
Other Investments (non-current)

Investments carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Investment in Equity Shares of Other Companies fully Paid-up
Unquoted equity shares, fully paid-up

Nil (2022: 136,500) equity shares of Vagarai Windfarms Limited *
Nit (2022: 2,380,000} equity Shares of Perinyx Neap Private Limited*
MNil (2022: 45,578} equity shares of Bchanda Urja Private Limited *
19,000,000 (2022; 19,000,000} equity shares of Taj Air Limited

Note:
(i) Aggregate Carrying Value of Unguoted Investments (Net)
(ii) Agpregate amount of impairinent in value of Investments

Asat
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

0.14
238
0.05

2.57

257

* The said investments represent investments in equity shatres of the above mentioned entities pursuant to the requirement under the
Electricity Act, in connection with the power purchase amrangement that the Group has in place with these parties. As per the terns of
these mvestments, the Group is not entitled to any other returns or benefits and will be entitled to receive the amount invested eguivalent

to the face value of the equity shares upon expiry of such agreements,

Note 11

Other financial assets (mon-current)

Unsecured, considered good

Fixed deposit having maturity more than 12 months under Hen*
Lease rental receivable

Security Deposits

* Fixed Deposits created against Bank Guarantees and hence, under lien

Note 12
Deferred tax assets (Net) (refer note 54}

Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Total - Net Deferred Tax Assets

754 0.0
0.06 2.08
3.80 10.69
11.40 12.78
6429 68,00
(37.27) (0.79)
27.03 7,21
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 13

Non carrent tax assets (Net)
Advance tax
Fess: Provision for lax

Note 14
Other non-current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

Capitai advances

Balance with Government Authorities
Prepaid expenses

Lease equalisation reserve

Note 13

Inventories

(valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is less)
Finished goods

Consumables stores and spares

Note 16 :
Trade receivables (Refer Note 61)
- From related parties
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, credit impaired
Less : Allowance for credit impaired Trade Receivables
~ From others
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, credit impaired *
Lesg : Allowance for eredit impaired Trade Receivables *

Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
221.29 20191
{166.22) (104.56)
55.07 97.35
0.86 19.45
14.48 11.77
2.48 i7.14
8.48 137.24
26.30 185.60
149,08 201.85
- 0.18
14908 202,03
- 028
54.79 546
“ 3.06
- (3.06)
- 14.04
1.75 1.66
5.70 320
{5.70) (3.20)
56.54 21.44

* Previous year inchides unsecured, eredit impaired Trade receivables / provision thereon aggregating INR 2.02 crores on acquisition of

a subsidiary,

Note 17
Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks
- cugrent accounts
- deposits with original maturity less than three months
Cagh on hand

Note 18
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Term deposits with original maturity more than ihree months but less than
twelve months

Term deposits with original maturity more than three months but Iess than twelve
months under lien*

* Fixed Deposits created against Bank Guarantees and hence, under lien

33.92 105.73
668.60¢ 78.03
0.17 Q.17
702.69 183.93
74.30 59.30
24.68 224
98.98 61.54




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency: Indian rupees int crores)

Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Note 19
Investments (current)
Quoted Investments
Investment in mutual funds, fair valued through Profit and Loss
Units Held: 211,133,831 (FY 2022 : 304,988.725) of Face value of Rs 1,000 7428 102.49
(NAV - Rs. 3518.3452 per unit (2022 : 3360.4521 per unit)} each in quoted
investment named TATA Liquid Fund - Regular Plan - Growith
74.28 192,49
Note:
(i) Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments (Net) 74.28 102.49
(ii) Aggregate Carrying Value of Quoted Investments (Net) 74,28 102.49
{iii) Aggregate amount of impairment in valus of Investments - -
Note 20
Loans
(Unsecured, considered good)
Inter corporate deposits to related parties 225 -
(Umsecured, credit impaired)
Tmter corporate deposits to other parties 517 517
Less : Loss Allowance for doubtful loans ICAL)] (5.17)
2.25 -
Note 21
Other financial assets (curvent)
{Unsecured, considered good}
Interest accrued on deposits 4.01 1.96
Claims Receivable from NHAI (utility shifting) 7.33 9.90
Contractually recoverable expeneses from related partics 71.07 7.29
Unbilled revenue - 8.96
Claim Receivable from NIHAT (Refer foot note below) 42.61 42.61
Security deposits 0.74 0.71
Advances recoverable from others ) 4752 44,68
109,28 116.11

Foot Note:

(a) Claim Receivable from Nationat Highway Authority of India ("NHAT") pertains to claims towards change in law as per clause 41.1
of Service Concession Agreement entered by Hampi Expressways Private Limited with NHAJ, These are back to back claims made by
Contractor for Engineering, Procurement and Construction work ("EPC") and as per clause 24.2 of EPC agresment and the same are
payable to the EPC Contractor only to the extent such claims are recognised by NHAI as change in law and payments are released. To
the extent such claims are not accepted by NHAI the same shall accordingly not be payable to EPC contractor and accordingly
cotresponding liability shall reduce (alse Refer Note 32).

(b) Advance recoverable from others pertains to advance made to the EPC contractor towards change in law as per Service Concession
Agreement entered by Uchit Expressways Private Limited with NHAL Whilst these are back to back claims made with the NHAL such
claims have not yet been recognised by NHAI as change in law payments. Hence, the advance recoverable from the EPC Contractor
have been disclosed seperately.

Note 22
Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

Advance to vendors 127 2.73
Balances with Govermment and other authorities 8.06 13.37
Prepaid expenses 5.85 11.50
Lease equalisation reserve 8.09 10.31
Capital advances 42,19 -

Others 1.58 5.81

67.04 43.32




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Noftes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Cutrency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 24
Other equity

Reserves and surplus
Securities premium

Capital reserve

Retained earnings

Defined benefit plan adjustment

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1,257.69 757.69
49,11 46,11
847.11 (1,569.16)
0.76 1.18
2,154.67 (761.18)

Note: Debenture redemption reserve ("DRR") has not been created as per Section 71 of the Companies Act, 2013 due to losses incurred

post issuance of debentures,

Securities premiuim
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Tssue of equity shares during the vear

Capital reserve
Balance at the beginning and end of the year

Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year
Net profit for the year attributable to owners

Defined benefit plan adjustment

Balancs at the beginning of the year

Remeaswements of defined benefit plan

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

757.69 757.69
500,00 -
1,257.69 757.6%
4911 49.11
49.11 49.11
(1,569.16) (1,652.50}
2,416.27 83.34
847.11 (1,569.16)
1.18 1.63
(0.44) {0.65)
0.02 .20
0.76 1.18
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Curtrency: Indian rupees in crores)

Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2622
Non-controlling Interests
Balance at the beginning of the year 2.00 55.02
Eess: Reduction due to loss of controi in a subsidiary {Refer Note 50 (a)) - (52.59)
Loss for the year (2.48) (0.43)
’ (0.48) 2.00

Natare and purpose of the reserves:

Securities preminm

1) Securities premium is used to record the pramiura on issue of shares. This reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as
issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

2) During FY 2015-16 100,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 each at a promium of INR 10 each were issued on cotversion of certain
convertible preference shares.

3) 0.01% Compulsorily convertible debentures were compulsorily convertible into equity shares by 25 August 2016 or before at the
option of investor, Doring the Financial year 2016-17 (on 24 August 2016), these debentures were converted into 192,307,692 Equity
shares of INR 10 each at a premium of INR 3 each.

4) During the FY 2020-21, 60,00,00,000 Equity shares of INR 10 each were allatted from share application money pending allotment at
a premium of INR 10 each.

5} During the current year, 50,00,00,006 Equity shares of INR 10 each were issued and allotted at a premiwm of INR 10 each.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve of INR 49.1} crores was created to record excess of net assets taken over pursuant to scheme of merger sanctioned by
the Bombay High Court in the year 2015-16 between Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited, Mara Builder Private Limited and TRIF
Real Hstate and Development Limited.

Retained Earnings
Retained Earnings are the profits of the Group earned till date net of appropriations.

Defined Benefit Obligaiions
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations pertaining to post employement benefits,

Note 25

Non Current Borrowings

Secured

Term Loans:
~From banks and financial institutions 2,650.97 4.714.55
(Net of Current matuvities of long term borrowings from Batiks and financial
imstituitions of Rs. 40.26 crores (2022: Rs. 80.26 crores)

-From others 239,00 239.37
Unsecured
Non convertible debentures: 625,00 1,023.33

(Net of Cwrent maturities of long term borrowings from non convertible
debentures of Rs. 899.37 crores (2022: Rs. 944.91 crores)

Term Loans: .
-From banks and finaneial institutions - 90.57

3,514.97 6,067.82
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Notes te the conselidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Cwrrency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 26

Other financial liabilities (non-current)
Financial Hability for premium payment at fair value
Security deposits from customers

Liability towards purchase of shares

Retention money payable

Note 27
Provisions
Provision for employee benefits:
- Gratuity (refer note 55)
« Compensated absences (refer note 55)
Provision for:
- Construction cost
- Major Maintenance of Other Assets
- Major Maintenance of Roads #

Asat

31 March 2023

Asat
31 March 2022

699.54 692.63
23.48 1403.42
- 3.10
0,13 042
723.15 836,57
5.12 3,75
5.00 6.03
28.51 28.51
335 449
75.60 47.17
117.58 91.95

# As per the best estimate of the management, provision is been made, towards cost of major maintenance of the roads in terms of the

agreement entered into with National Highways Authority of India.

Movement in Major Maintenance of Roads:

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Balance at the beginning of the year 53.05 54,39
Add: Provision for the year 3181 2782
Less: Utilisation / Settlement (9.26) (29.16}
Closing balance:
- Long-term Provision 75,60 4717
- Short-terin Provision - 5.88
Movement in Major Maintenance of Other Assets:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 449 1.83
Add: Provision for the year 3.00 2.66
Less: Reduction on account of loss of control in subsidiary (refer note 50) (4.14) -
Closing balance:

- Long=term Provision 3.35 4.49

Movement in Provision for Construetion Cost:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 28.51 12.81
Add: Provision for the year - 1570
Closing balance:

- Long-term Provision 28.51 2851

Note 28

Deferred tax (liabilities) (Net)

Deferred Tax Assets 31.26 93.05
Deferred Tax Liabilities (322.34) (36742)
Total - Net Deferred Tax Liabilities (291.08) (27437)
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Note 29
Other non=-carrent liabilities
Uneamed rent 3,03 37.37
3.03 3737

*The unearned rent relates to difference pl present value of lease related security deposits received and actual amount received and is
released to the statement of profit or loss on straight line basis over the tenure of lease,

Note 30
Current Borrowings (Refer footnote to Note 25)

Unsecured

Short Term Loan

- From Banks - 2%0.00

Commercial papers
- From Muytual funds (Net of unexpired discount of Rs, Nil crores (2022: - 1,796.83
Rs. 23,17 crores)#
Bank Overdraft - Repayable on demand - 43.29
Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings

- Term Loans From Banks - 27.14
- Non-convertible debentures 899,37 944 .91
- From banks and finaneial instituitions 40.26 80.26

Others:

- Inter Corporate Deposits from Related Parties 6.00 -

- Loans frotm Others * 1.00 1.00
Interest acerued but not due on borrowings 64,83 82.44
Interest Payable to Others 0.17 -

1,011,63 3,265.87
Note:

# The said botrowing represents Commercial papet issned to mutual funds at a discount rate ranging from 4.75% - 6.00% per annum
(2022: 3.80% - 5.00% per annum), and the same are repayable within one year at the agreed upon full face value.

* Borrowing outstanding as on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 is interest bearing equivalent to net FD interest rate, which shall be
due and repayable after satisfaction of tranche 1 conditions such as approval from relevant authorities to construct road from Bhivpuri
to ropeway base station, EIA Clearance as required vnder the Environment Impact Assessment Notification, 2006, approval of ROW
from District Collector and Forest Conservator and otber conditions as mentioned in Share Holding Agreement. The Group estimates

that these conditions will be satisfied by March 2024,

Conin de.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 31
Trade payables (Refer Note §2)

Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 48)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises

Note 32

Curreit - Other financial liabiltties

Security deposits from customers

Capital creditors

Financial liability for premiwm payment at fair value
Payable - Claim to EPC (Refer foot note to Note 21)
Cther financta! liabilities

Note 33 :

Other current liabilities

Advances from customers

Statutory dues

Corpus Fund collection

Compensation on delayed possession payable
Unearned rent

Security Deposit from Customers

Other current liabilities

Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
0.55 0.34
63.77 82.71
64.32 83.05
13.37 116.1%
96.44 7019
54,54 48.53
42.61 42.61
9.70 3.13
216.66 280.65
2.96 31.86
14.711 1446
5.64 5.05
0.11 0.11
2,35 16.96
- 0.53
1.89 1.65
27,66 70.62

*The unearned rent relates to difference pf present value of lease related security deposits received and actual amount received and is

released to the statement of profit or loss on sraight line basis over the tenure of lease.

Note 34

Provisions

Provision for employee bencefits:

- Gratuity {refer note 55} 1.49 0.77
- Compensated absences (refer note 55) 20 1.65
Provisions for:
- Major Maintenance of Road {refer footnote to Note No. 27) - 5.88
- Contingencies 0.57 -
447 8.30
Movement in Provision for contingencies:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Add; Provision for the year 0.97 -
Closing balance:

- Short-terim Provision 0.97 -

Note 35

Current tax liabilities (Net)

Provision for Tax 342.73 89.95

Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source (331.30) (72.14)

11.43 17.81
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 23

Equity share capital ‘
Authorised share capital

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

8,00,00,00,000 {2022: 8,00,00,0¢,000) equity shares of INR 10 each 8,000,00 8,000,00
Issned, subseribed and paid-up .
2,11,73,07,698 (2022: [,61,73,07,692) equity shares of INR 10 each 2,117.31 1,617.31

2,117.31 1,617.31
Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
LEquity shares 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Number of shaves Amount Number of shares Amount

At beginning of the year 1,61,73,07,692 1,617.31 1,61,73,07,692 1,617.31
Issued during the year # 50,00,00,006 500,00 - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 2,11,73,07,698 2,117.31 1,61,73,07,692 1,617.31

#During the current year, 50,00,00,006 Equity shares of INR 10 each were allotted af a premium of INR 10 each on rights basis.

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR. 10 per share, Each holder of equity shares is entitied to one vote per share. The
Company declares and pays dividends, if any, in Indian rupees, The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, In the event of liquidation of the Compaty, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to
receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution wiil be in proportion to the number of equity

shares held by the shareholkders, There are no shares issued for a consideration other than cash.

Shares of the Company held by the Holding company*

31 March 2623 31 March 2022
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Baquity shares of INR. 10 each, fully paid-up
Tata Sons Private Limited and its nominees 2,11,73,07,698 1,817.31 1,61,73,07,692 1,617.31
Details of shareholding more than 5% in the Company
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number of shares] % Holding Number of shares % Holding
Equity shates of INR 10 each, fully paid-up
Tata Sons Private Limited and its nominees 2,11,73,07,698 100% 1,61,73,07,692 100%,

Details of shareholding of promoters and percentage of change during the year™

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Number of shares| % Holding

Number of shares

% Holding

Equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid-up

Tata Sons Private Limited and its nominees 2,11,73,07,608 100%

1,61,73,07,692

100%,

*Foot Note:

There has been no change in percentage of promoters shareholding during the current year as well as in the previous year,
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consoclidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
~ (Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Note 36
Revenue from operations

Disaggregation of Revenue is as follows:

(A) Sales of products
Sale of residential flats 85.65 73.81
(B) Sale of services
Construction revenue {Refer Note 50) 74.83 24023
Toll revenue 429.85 324.16
Lease rentals 168.03 573.03
Project management consultancy fees 45.04 -
Asgset Management Charges Income 14.00 0.72
Maintenance and other receipts 25,95 70.53
Uhility income 9.83 27.37
Parking fees income . 3.25 10.26
Room revenue 435 2.35
Sale of Food and beverages 3.00 1.29
Sale of scrap 0.16 0.17
Revenue from other services 0.61 0.67
864.55 1,324.59
Naote 37
Other income
Interest income under the effective interest method _
- on Tixed deposits with banks 27.66 7.59
- on Inter corporate deposits / non convertible debentures 59.52 575
Interest income on income tax refund 1.24 3.14
Other non operating income:
Profit on sale of current investments in Mutual Funds 7.27 4.60
Mark to Market gain on current investment in Mutual funds 0.87 1.05
Profit on sale of Property Plant and equipment 0.33 -
Foreign exchange (Forward Contract Gain) . - 0.12
Fair value gain on derivatives (net) - 12.63
Other income from residential projects 0.19 0.46
Sundry Liabilities/ Provision written off 1.37 -
Miscellaneous income 0.73 1.03
99.18 36.37
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Tata Realty and Infrastroctare Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 38

Changes in inventory of finished goods

Finished Goods

Expenditure incurved during the year:

Opening stock of Inventories - Finished Goods

Less - pursuant to loss of control in a subsidiary (Refer Note 50 (a))
Addition during the year

Other expenses

Less: Closing Stock of Inventories - Finished goods
Changes in inventory of finished goods

Note 39
Construction costs for Toll Roads (Refer note 51)

Note 40

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contributions to provident and other funds
Staff welfare

Gratuity expenses (refer note 55)
Compensated absences (refer note 55)

Less: capitalised to investment property under construction
Less: capitalised to intangible assets under development

Note 41

Finance costs

Interest costs on financial liabilities measured using amortised Costs;
- on term loans and NCD's from Banks and Financial Institutions

- on cash credit and overdrafts from Banks

- on commercial paper from Mutual Funds

Mark-to-market loss on forward contract

Finance charges

Unwinding of interest expense

Iess: capitalised to investment property under construction
less: capitalised to intangible assets under development

A+B

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
201.85 271.29
- (24.34)
201.85 246.95
201.85 246.95
149.08 201.85
52,77 45.10
73.95 23947
73.95 23947
95.60 87.39
2.81 3.34
4,04 3.02
1.58 2.63
0.88 1.13
104.91 97.51
- 0.34)
- (1.19)
104.91 95,98
414.27 551.36
0.45 0.61
2649 54.78
.12 0.13
0.22 0.05
7.11 3.07
7543 101.47
524.09 71147
- (12.79)
- (10.06)
52409 688.62
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Note 42
Other expenses
Power and fuel 16.24 30.32
Provision for diminution in velue of Investments (Refer Note 9) - 18.01
Repairs and maintenance
~ Building 0.07 0.62
- Plant and Machinery ‘ 0.69 0.21
- Proviston for Major Maintenance of Roads (Refer Note 27) 3181 27.82
- Provision for Major Maintenance of Others Assets 3.00 2.66
- Others 14.04 8.95
Project operating and maintenance charges 57.14 72.96
Advertisement and business promotion expenses 5.25 57
Legal and professional fees 20.79 19.62
Rates and taxes 11.83 8.70
Rent (Refer Note 47) 1.57 1.00
Travelling and conveyance 592 3.66
Bank charges 0.17 0.16
Telephone and communication expenses 0.34 0.27
Training and recruitment expenses 2,02 1.67
Loss allowance for Trade Receivables 0.17 : 0.82
Auditor's rethuneration (Refer foot note below) 1.57 1.76
Brokerage 2141 5.12
Arbitration Award paid - -
Insurance charges 6.09 5.29
Fees to NHAIL ' 1.14 1.08
Printing, courier and stationery 0.12 0.11
Directors sitting fees 0.55 0.27
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.02 0.01
Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility 0.46 1.45
Provision for contingencies 0.97 -
Miscellaneous expenses 9.57 8.59
212,95 226.84
Foot Note:
Auditer's remuneration include payments towards:
- for statutory audits 1.46 1.10
- for limited reviews / audits of condensed interim financial information 0.05 0.36
- for tax audits 0.05 0.18
- for other services 0.01 0.12
1.57 1.76
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Note 43
Earnings pet share
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Basic earnings per share
Profit after {ax atiributable to equity shareholders ’ A 2,416,277 83.34
Number of equity shares cutstanding at the beginning of the year 1,61,73,0r7,692 1,61,73,07,692
Equity shares fssued on 11 October2022 20,00,00,006 -
Equity shares issued on 27 March 2023 30,00,00,000 -
Numiber of equity shares outstanding at the snd of the year 2,11,73,07,698 1,61,73,07,692
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year {Basic) B 1,711,56,63,850 1,61,73,00,692
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (Diluted) C 1,71,56,63,859 1,61,73,07,692
Basic earnings per share of face value of Rs 10 each [D=A/B] 14.08 0.52
Diluted earuings per share
Diluted samings per share of faco value of INR 10 sach [E=A/C] 14.08 0,52
Note 44
Contingencies and commitments
() Contingent Ldabillties (Refer footnote}
Claims against the Group not aclnowledged as debts 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
- Diirect tax . 45.73 46.18
- Indireet tax 9.99 11.03
- Other Legal Clalms 18,71 20,62

Foot Note:
The Group doss not expect any outflow of econemic resources in respect of the above and therefore no provision {s made in respect thereof.

(i) Commitments
{a) Indemnity for representations and warranties for disiovestient in retail buginess - INR 10,00 crores {2022; INR 13.50 crores).

{b) Bank guarantee issued on behalf of the Parent Company and its Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures out of the overall non fund based limits of the Company -
TNR 84.90 crores (2022: INR 34.59 crores).

(o) The Parent Company has issusd letter of comnfort to banks in respect of loans availed by a fow of its subsidiaries and joint ventures :

Name of subsidiaries / foint ventures Nature of Comfort given

i |Mikado Realtors Pvt. Itd, Shortfall wndertaking to meet any shortfall during the tenure of fagilily

(e} The Parent Company has issued financial support letter to following subsidiaries on the busis of which fhe separate financials statements have been
prepared on going concern basis:

1) Acine Living Solutions Private Limited

2) MIA Inftastruciurs Private Limited .
3) Wellkept Facility Management Services Private Liméted (Previously known as TRIL Hospitality Private Limited)
4) TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private Limited

3) HV Farms Private Limited

) Tril Betigaluru Real Estate One Private Limited

7) TRIL Bengalury Consultants Private Limited

8) Tril Bengaluru Real Estate Three Private Limited

9} TRIL Reads Private Limited

10) TRIL Urban Transport Private Limited

11) Intetnational Infrabuild Private Limited

Note 45

Capital and other commitments

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of capital 4711 72.40
advances)
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Note 46
Segment reporting
A. Basis for segmentation
The Group has three reportable opetating segments, as described below, which are the Group's strategic business units, These busincss units offer different
products and services, and are managed separately because they requivs differant technelogy and marketing strategles.

The following summaty describes the operations in each of the Group's reportable cperating segments:
Reportable operating sepment

- Development of Residential property for outright sale,

- Real Estate

- Infrastructure

B. Information about reportable operating segmenis

Information regarding the results of each reportable operating segment is included below, Parformance {s measured based on ssgment profit (before tax), as
jnchuided in fhe internal management reports that are reviewed by the Group's CODM i.e Managing Director. Segment profit is used to measure performance as
managemet believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certaln sepments relative to other entities that operate within these
industries, Tnter-segment pricing s determined on an arm's length basis.
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Note 47
Lease arrangements

A Operating leases - as a lessee

a) The Group has taken various premises under cancollabls operating leases,

b) The Group has also tzken 2 commercial property and certain residential premises on non-cancellable operating leases, The future undiscountsd minimum lease
payments in respect of these properties as on 31 March 2023 is as follows: Thete are no lease commitiments.

Lease Payments 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Not later than cne year - .
Later than one year but not later than five years - -
Later than five years - R

Payments of Ieasa rentals during the year 157 1.0¢

o) There are no exceptional/estrictive covenants in the lease agreements.

B As alessor:

[{)] Operating Lease
The Group has leased some investinent properties. As on 31 March 2023, the future minimum lease undiscounted payments i respect of these properties till
the expiry of lock in period is as follows:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Not later than one year 65.29 482.78
Later than one year but not later than five years 79.82 1,073.13
Eater than five years 0.13 295,89
145.24 1,851.80
Lease Rental Income for the year 168,03 573.03

(ii)  Finance leases - Fit-ont and interior work

The Group’s leasing arrangement represents the fit-out or interior work completsd for the customers which have been classified under Ind AS 116 as Finance
lease. The lease terms are for the periods of five (o seven years where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee and are
received in advance on a monthly basis. The Group records dispesal of the property concerned and recognizes the subsequent interest in the finance lease, No
contingent rent i recefvable in this regard.

TFinance leases are receivable as follows:

Gross investment [n leasce 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Receivable within one year - 0.52
Recaivable between onz and five years - 2,62
Recolvable after five years - 0,23

- 347
Present value of minimam lease payments 31 Mazrch 2023 31 March 2022
Nof later than one year - 0.25
Later than one year but not later than 5 years - 1.82
Later than 5 years - 0.31

- 2.38
Unearned Lease inconie - 1.08
Note 48

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Micro and small enterprises uader the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) which came into force from 2 Octeber 2006
have been determined based on the information available with the Company and the required disclosures are piven below:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Principal amount remaining unpaid as at the year end (outstanding for less than 30 days )} * 0.55 0.34
Interest due thereon - -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer a3 per the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 - -
(MSMED Act, 2006)
The amounts of the payments made to micro and small suppliers boyond the appointed day dunng each - -
accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the petiod of delay in making payment (which have been paid but - -
beyond the appointed day during the year} but without adding the interest specified vnder MSMED Act, 2006.

The amount of interest acorued and resraining unpaid at the end of cach accounting year. - -
The, amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the - -
‘ylterpshd{l‘es as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
{” Nt = exper@ amder the MSMED Act, 2006
Q)V 65”‘1‘ 1“' \IU' 'A \ﬂnt of\}\'(t@rest acorged and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year - -
/ N"J[ i ’
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency: Indian rapees in crores)

Note 49

(a) Gain on account of loss of controf in TCG Entities in FY 2022-2023
Upto 20 May 2022, the Group held 100% ownership interest in the entities: Arrow Infracstate Private Limited ("Arrow"), Gurgaon Realtech Limited
("GRL")and Gurgaon Construct Well Private Limited ("GCWL} (also coliectively referred to as "TCG Entitieg” or "erstwhile subsidiaries"). Subsequently, the
Group disposed off 24.5% ownership interest in each of the TCG entties on 20 May 2022 which resulted in a loss of control on ascount of contractual
arrangements entered into with the JV partner in sccordance with the requirements of Ind AS 110 - Consolidated Financia! Statements, Further 24.5%
ownership interest In each of the TCG entities was sold on 15 December 2022, Cummlative consideration recieved for the sale of ownership interest in two
tranches amounted to Rs, 187.35 crores. The entity has recognised the residual stake held In the TCG entities at its fair valus on the date of loss of control as
disclosed in "Tnvestment accounted using equity method",

The detalls of such disposal ate as set out in the table below;

Particulars Arrow GRL GCWL
Cousideration received {n cash - Tranche | 14.89 30.44 43,26
Equity Investment retained in the erstwhile subsidiary at its fair value on the date off
1oss of confrol - Tranche 1 44,10 99,10 115,52
Other Investments retained in the erstwihile subsidiary being Compulsery convertible
Debentures at its fair value on the date of loss of conirol - Tranche 1 9.17 10.74 19.37
Other Investments retained in the erstwhile subsidiary being Optionally Convertible|
Debentures at its fair valge on the date of loss of control - Tranche 1 1864 1907 8.1

Total (4) 86.80 160,21 23195

Assets, liabilities and non-controlling Interest of the subsidiary derecognised at
their carrying amounts on the date of loss of control:
Property, Plant and Gquipment - 0.01 -
Investment Property 21322 254,26 1021
Inyesiment Property vnder construction - 3.12 265.86
Intangible Assets - . -
Non Current Investments - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 8.40 16.72 4.12
Other current assets 11.92 3512 0.05
Current lighilities (29.47) (35.30) (25.43)
Nen-Current Liabilities (198.77) (277.44) {0.74)
Total (B} 5,30 {3.50) 254.05
Profit on disposal = (A) - (B) 81.51 163.71 (22.10)

Particulars Arrow GRL GCWL
Consideration received in cash - Tranche 2 14.35 30.87 48,34

Total (A) 14.55 30.87 48,34

Fuir Value as on date of sale for 75.5% owaership interest held fn equity shares 44,10 99.10 115.52
Proportionate Fair Vaiue for 25.5% ownership interest hald in equity shares to be sold 1431 32.16 37.49
in (ranche 2
Total (B) 14,31 32.16 3749
Profit on disposal = (A) - (B) 0.24 (1.29) 10.85
Sumunary of Sale

Particulars Arrow GRL GCWL
Cumulative Consideration received on sale of stake in erstwhile suhsidiaries 29.44 6131 96.60
Cumulative Gain received on sale of steke in erstwhile subsidiaries disclosed
seperately in "Other Income” in the statement of profit and loss 81,75 162.42 (11.24}
Net Carrying Value of halance Equity Investment in the erstwhile subsidiary, post sale
of stakes in erstwhils subsidiaries, disclosed in "Investments accousted under Bquity
Method" as Investment in Joint ventures 2079 56,94 78.03

{1
pliat B
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(b) Gain on aceount of loss of controf In subsidiaries i.e TIL and IPL in FY 2022-2023

Upte 8 July 2022, the Group held 100% ownership interest in the entitiss: TRIL Infopark Limited {"TIL") and Infopark Properties Limited ('IPL") (hereinafter
collectively referred to as "erstwhile subsidiaries"). The Group sold its entire stake in ‘TIL to ifs subsidiary IPL for a cumulative consideration of Rs. 3,382.99
srores and recognised a gain thereon of INR 2,612.82 crores. Subsequent to the transfer of stake, TPL issued shares to external entities which resulted in 2 loss
of overall contrel by TRIL in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 110 - Consolidated Financial Statements. The entity had recognised the residual
stake held in TPL at its fair value on the date of Toss of control as disclosed in "Investroent accounted using equity method" and recognised a fair value gain of
INR 405,49 crores. On 29 March 2023, TRIL further reduced its equity fivestment in 1PL to 51% by selling part of its stake to the TV Partmer and recognised a

gain of INR 145,74 crores on sale thereen,

The details of such disposal are as set out in the table below:

Luoss of control
Particalars TIL Sale to IPL in IPL
Consideration received in cash 3,882.99 -
Equity Investment retained in the erstwhile subsidiary at its fair value o - 434,18
the date of loss of control - Tranche 1
: Total (A) 3,882.99 434,18
Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interest of the subsidiary
Property, Plant and Hquipment ) 0.64 -
Investment Property 1,955.15 -
Tivestment Property vuder construction 321 -
Intangible Assets 1,416.90 -
Non Current Investments 2.52 "
Cash and cash equivalents 67.69 4.33
Other current assets 160.48 425
Current linbilities (349.77) (570.63)
Non-Current Liabilities (1,986.66) 590.74
Total (B} 1,270.17 18.69
Profit on disposal =(A) - (B) 2,612.82 405,4%
Sale of Parfial
Particulars Stake ln XPL
Consideration received in cash 147.29
Total {A) 147.29
Fait Value as on date of sale for 51.18% ownership interest held in equity
shares 434.18
Proportionate Fair Value for 0.18% ownership interest held in equity 135
shares to be sold
Total (8) 1.55
Profit on disposal = (A) - (B) 145,74
Summary of Sale
Particulars Infopark IPL
Cumulative Consideration received on sale of stake 3,882.99 147.2¢
Cutnulative Gain received on sale of stake in esrtwhile subsidiaries 2,612.82 33122
disclosed seperately in "Other Income" in the statement of profit and loss
Net Carrying Value of balance Equity investment i the erstwhile - 432.62
‘Isubsidiary, post sale of stake in erstwhife subsidiaries, disclosed in)
"Inyestmenis accowrtted nder Bquity Method" as Investment @ Joint
venturos
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(¢} Gain on account of loss of control in a subsidiary i.e TCL in F'Y 2021-2022
Upto 16 November 2021, the Group had 67.50% ownership interest in TRIL Constructions Limited ("TCL" or "former subsidiary"), a subsidiary, On 17
November 2021, the Group disposed off 47.75% ownership interest in TCL, thereby losing control over TCL.

The details of such disposal are as set out in the table below:

Particulars INR. in crores

Consideration received in cash 47.13

Investiment retained in the former subsidiary at jts fair valwe on the date of loss of 36.55
control

Total (4) 83.68

Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interest of the subsidiary devecognised at
their carrying amounis on the date of loss of control:

Invesiment Property under construction . 193.67
Inventories 24.34
Cash and cash equivalents 0.01
QOther current assets 0.03
Current liabilities (341)
Non-Current Liabilities (93.37)
Non-Controlling interests (52,59)
Total (B) 68.67
Profit ou disposal = (A) - (B) 15,01

(d) Acquisition of a subsidiary e TRIL IT4 In FY 2021-2022

Upte 27 July 2021, the Group had assessed and classified its 79.90% equity interest in TRIL IT4 Private Limited (TRIL ET4) as a joint venture and had
accordingly accounted for its investiment in TRIL 174 using the Equity Method of accounting in the consolidated financial statements.

TRIL IT4 is engaged in the business of developing and leasing of commercial real estate properties, which qualifies as a business as defined in Ind AS 103, On
28 July 2021, the Group acquired the balance equity interest in TRIL IT4 to obtain 100% equity interest and control in TRIL IT4 for strategic purposes, The
goodwill acquired on acquisition of increase in stake of interest pertains to expected synergics on acequisition.

The details of such acquisition are as set out in the table below:

Pavttculars INR in crores
Consideration transferred in cash 110.58
The asquisition date fair value of the Group®s previously heid equity interest in TRIL 441.70
1T4 (Refer footnote below)
Total (A) 552.28

The amounts recognised in respect of the ideniifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assomed

Investment Property 991.64
Tnvestment Property under construction 940
Financial Assets (Investments in mutual funds) 4.10
Curreni Tax Asseis 22.19
Cash and Cash equivalents 6.05
Other Current Assets 23.85
Current Linbilities (407.70)
Financial Liabilities {Borrowings) (110.00)
Deferred Tax Liabilities (198.98)
Taotal (B) 340.55
Goodwill on acquisition = (A) - () 21173
Footnote:

The carrying value of the Group's previously held equity interest in TRIL IT4 (prior to acquisition of control over TRIL IT4} under the equity method of
accounting was INR NIL. Pursuant o the acquisition of control over TRIL IT4, the Group has remeasured its previously held equity interest in TRIL
IT4 at its acquisition date fair value. Such remeasurement has resultsd in a pain of INR 441.70 crores, which has been recognised in the Conselidated
Statement of Profit and Loss in accordance with the requiremenis of Ind AS 103 on "Business Combinhations",
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Note 50

Disclosures pursuant to IND AS 115 - Revenue from Contract with Consumers

[A] Disclosure in respect of Consteaction Contracts (vefer note 36)

For the Year For the Year
Partienlars ended ended
31 Mareh 2023 | 31 March 2022
gollltract revelne recognized as reveme 74,83 240.23
uring the year
For the Year For the Yoar
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Cumulative reverue recognized 2,792.71 2,903.34
Cumulative costs incurred 2,669.90 2,781.42
Cumulative margins sccounteg 122,81 121,93
Advances paid 42.53 16,28
Retention money payable 522 1,74

[B] Disclosure in respect of disaggregation of revenue hasis timing of revenue recognition

For the Year For the Year

Particulars ended ended

31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Revenue recognised at a point In time 523.62 402,45
Revenue recognised over a period of time 172.90 349.11
Total 696.52 751.56
Add: Revenue from Lease rentals 168.03 573.03
Total Revenue from Operations 864.55 1,324.59

[C]  Reconclliation of Revenue as per transaction price and contract price

During the vear, the revenue as per transaction price reconciles with the revenue as per conlract price,

[] Movement in Contract Balances - Advances from Customers

For the Year For the Year
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022

Opening Balance

~ Nou Current - 70.50

= Current 31.86 18.93
Add: Additional advances received - -
Less: Revenue recognised during the year (28.90) (57.57}
Closing Balance

- Non Cuarrent - -

- Current 2.96 31.86
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consofidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)
Nete 51
Interests in other entitles
{a) Subsidiaries
The Parent Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2023 are sel out below.

Place of of ownership interest
Name of cntity business 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Acme Living Solutions Private Limited India 100% 100%
Arrow Infiaestate Private Limited (ceased to be a Tndia - 100%
subsidiary w.e.f 20 May 2022) (Refer Note 51(d))
Guigacn Constructwell Private Limited (ceased tobe s India - 100%
subsidiary w.e.f 20 May 2022) (Refer Note 51(d))
Gurgaon Realtech Limited {ceased to be & subsidiary India - 100%
w.e.f. 20 May 2022) (Refer Note 51(d))
'TRIL Roads Private Limited India 100% 100%
TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private Limited India (100% 100%
TRIL Urban Transport Private Limited India 100% 100%
Wellkept Facility Management Services Private Limited India 100% 100%
TRIL Infopark Limited {ceased to be a subsidiary w.e.L. § India - 100%
Tuly 2022) (Refer Note 51(d))
Hampi Bxpressway Private Limited India 100% 100%
HV Farms Private Limited India 100% 100%
Intemational Tnfrabuild Private Limited (TIPLY* India 26% 26%
Dharamshala Ropeway Limited India FA% 74%
Uchit Expressways Private Limited India 100% 100%
Matheran Ropeways Private Limited India T0% 0%
Durg Shivnath Expressways Private Limited India 100% 100%
MIA Infrastructure Private Limited India 100% 100%
TRIL Bengaluru Real Estate One Private Limited India 100% 100%
TRIL Bengaluru Consultanis Private Limited India 100% 100%
TRIL Bengaluru Rea! Estate Three Private Limited India 100% 100%
TRIL IT4 Private Limlted (became 100% subsidiay India 100% 100%
w.e.f, 28 Tuly 20213 (Refer Note 50 {b))
Infopark Properties Limited (subsidiary w.e.f 3 India - 100%

December 2021 and ceased to be & subsidiary w.e.L 8
July 2022) (Refer Note 31(d))

*Significant judgement: consolidation of entitles with less than 50% voting interest
Althongh the Group owns less than one-half of the voting power of International Infrabuiid Private Limited {TTPL), it is able to control IIPL by virtue of an agreement with the other investors of EPL which inter-atia
provides the Group with power to appoint majority of the board of directors of LIPL end power over relevant activities. Consequently, the Gronp consolidates its investment in IIPL.

(b) Noo-controlling interests (NCI) .
Set out below is summarised financial information for each subsidiary that has non-controlling interests to the Group, The amounts disclosed for each subsidiary are before inter-company eliminations.

8 rised bal sheet
Dharamshala Ropeway TRIL Construgtions International Infralnatd Private Matheran Ropeways Private
Limited (26%) Limited * Limited (74%) Limited {30%)
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non-current assets 208.61 213.75 - - 47,04 45.44 24.30 16.96
Current assets 5.64 8.77 - - 6.66 4.49 1.20 8.30
Non-current liabilities (187.79) (176.80) - B (35.30) {38.22) - -
Current lighilities (20.15) (35,08) - - (12.67) (8.17) (1.25) {1.19}
‘Net assets 6.30 LL.64 - - 5.73 7.55 24.25 2408
MNet assets attributable to NCL (2.54) - - - - - 205 2.00
Dharamshala Repeway TRIL Censtructions International Infrabuild Private Matheran Ropeways Private
Particulars Limited (26%) Lhnited * Lindled {T4%) Limited (30%)

31 March 2023 31 Miarch 2022 31 March 2023 Till 17 Nov2021 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Swmnarised statement of profit and loss

Revenue 10.21 187.13 - - 12,92 921 0,37 0.34
{Loss)/Profit (9.60) {8.76) - (1.50) 018 (3.79) 018 0.23
0cl (0.18) 0.01 - - - - - -
Total comprehensive incormne 9,76) {8.74) - {1.50) 0.18 {3.79) .18 0.23
Profit/ (Loss) allocated to NCI (2.54) z2n - {0.45) 013 {2.80) 0.05 0.07
OCI allocated to NCI - - - - - - = -
Total comprehensive ineome aflocated to NCI (2.54) 227 - {0.4%) 013 {2.80) 0.05 0.07
Loss to NCI Restricted (2.54) (0.01) - {0.49) - - 0.05 0.07
Summarlsed cash flows

Cash flows from operating ectivities 4,35 (3.66) - 0.30) 4,75 0.60 0.10} (0,22)
Cash flows from investing activities (1.08) (45.31) - - 0.05 - 0.09 0.28%
Cash flows frown financing activities {2.58) 48,99 - 0.26 (2.00) 0.09) {0.01) (0.00)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cagh and eash equivaleats 0.69 002 - (0.04) 2.80 0.51 {0.02) 0.05

# ceased to be 2 subsidiary w.e.f 17 November 2021 (Refer Note 50 (a))




ETT REW TE U 58

QL'096 [DaTa FEVEC £9'108 IS8T 89°THL - - 18812 £I'81Z §59L Troe SO0 LE8E 213024 JUI0] PUE SHEDOSSE WY 150900 §0 JUNewE Suidie))
BET0S £6°00% - - £8'391 9TELY - - TH'ES T6'ER 208 20'8 - - aujea Swiluied uf papaion] [MpooD
TEB5E LE'S6F FEVEC £ 08 09°%1 (85777} (13531 - S8 VET ITPEL &8 9c8T SO0 LEBS SPOSET 39U 30 ey S dnour)
COTLOT 9TTET'T SELIE 6T'ER0°T E0°LT [(EE] {60°1¢27) - GETIL LETST 8'SF 1 LTSPL FI0% §L91T FREEE 1N
5081 SPTPYE LEG6T PLYOF £0eL SETLEL CEHLE - ST oA a1z §TT P08 LEETL SILIIQE]] JUaLm s
9F' 95T PTOSK'T 1T¥iv €5'LER £8°05L OF'LTL €1'8gl - - - 05°0L 0s0L S48 665 SIIRLGRT] JUATMS-TRN
16856 00 T8 s LV'TISF LT o0°ig 08°El - £6°6 o S £8°FC §TVT FTSFT PELIT $J3s5SE 1M
1L°6k8°T €695 T ZL0L8 60'FS6°T (3402 906 BLZST - IS°ELT 0E7ET 961 ¥oE6L 98'Z3L €TTIL S185E JURLINI-NON
YeES €L YR VoPL YatLl YerL YL YabL VN YabLl YotL Yabs'al Y ts'6l %0S Ya0S 153139 AMEISEAG 3T WRITA ]
T £20T T £20T 0T ford 114 £Z0T a1 14 20T €20t
QRERIE TEWIE TYHERIE HMEW I€  WIRI IE YR Ie IZ0T AN 8T WOUIRH IS B 1S £T07 YU T TT0T WHEIA 1€ €707 BEl [ HEN 1€ THE] TE
[T PRI NTAL
Amedmoyy yusudopasg prRjwEy [ERy PN 3JBAELY {6 MNoN PRY) Angdure)y sjEarwoy PjLEY JJBATL Y
Swmsnoy vy, O AW XY dung SACJFETY OPBIHIA PORNIT RBAU FIITHL DU S[EIUIA [BLISTPUY DI SUOSLILISIO.) TIHL. siemssordxy andejog aung

SIAMTRA JUT0] puk SIJEII0ESE 10] UONEMLIOIN] [ETOUBUY] PISLIBTRTENG {AL)

“OCTHE, 0T 25215 Amba o4£6° £ I97HES SA0qR PR 1940

OCHL ur oxels AAmbe v/ 46 [euonppe Sunuassidor $3101 (g Q0S YINT JO T sjeBarshe me 10y ameys 1od op L2 WNT 18 (L) perry Aueduwio)) yusmdopans Sursnoy 2lE] U1 qoBe ) YN JO sexeys Ambs 16 18F T8 [ UT NOUNSIATE [EUOIEPRE ue spew sey duod) syl wo ek sy Suway (o)

“A3nos paponuos Aol se seruedmos S5ei) UT J53350UT

11 patpsseo sey dnolry o “Aguanbasuo;) "SI0ISAAN JUp JO JUISUCO SALRULILITE ) exnba - usurSeire oyl Jo STmiaT sy j9e]Je AFTEsyTUSTS JET) 950 '0'T - SeNTATIIR JUEAS]AT AT JROQE SZOTSIIOP ‘SPIaM IO T "SKSOAIT N0 31] JJIM JIOHIATSE T2 76 SMIia A SSMRdmios a5a1) RAQ [0S
ol sey dnozgy sqy. “sewedmo)) U J3A0 [0.0UGS AART JOT 590D IE PN O COSPY A0 11 JUNJ PUE peinn -] AL Aueduio) S[EON) PUE S[ERULA [BHISApUT P 1Ag SIoN[eay opexiy 0 mod Sumon Sty Jo Few-ouo ueg 250w sume duosgy sqiyfnoqry suswrdpal weogrdty (i

JESUIdO[SAYD SMPNOSERTL PUE RIS [831 30 msmwdojaasp o Ur osTedxe pue a5papmot] s, (nels ag) SesOn GOy JISINSIATI SI3BIS ¥ 6T J] * 10studojeAsD aInjonseOul PUB aje)sa (B2 JO SSIUISTG ST UI PabeSus o1 S18I00sse PUB Sanuas Jmof aroqeaqi iy (T

pogew £mby  opEwosSY %bS S1 %Sl BIpEy {1707 12qUUsA0N §1 "M} PYIF] SUOGONGSTOT) "ITIL
POOW AIbE LTSSy ES'EE %y erpuy {(&m) "ou ajou ey paiir Auedroosy jusmdopaac] SESIOH BEL
POmew Qmby  AmiusA 10! - %I erpuy {ez0z A1 & Fo'm) peyny] sanwdorg symdomy
popotm by AMIURA Jurof - %I erpU] (Z20T Aty 6 Fom) o] spedoguf Iyl
pogewm Ambgy - amyURA JIIOF - 3t BIpT[ (2207 A=Al 1T J5™44) PERIEIIT SIBATI] [[PADNISI0] TOREML
porow Amby  amyma Fof - A BIpUy (2707 LB [T Fom) Pagrur [aelesy noeSmey
poem AmbE  AmmRA THOL - %1g srpuy (ZTOT REI 17 Fo'M) PANTLT AJLALI] HEISSRIU MOITY
pogew Ambi]  amyusA 0L YL 378 Erpuy POIMEY] [ 009 A1) [T 90
pogew fuby  amuuRs Juof Ykl %L BIpE] PoUEr ] 3ealld AwSdiuo)) S[EOTST) PUE S[EIPULA] [ELISTpU]
poqRw gmby  ammBA JWoL Yl YL EIpE] ({10} 0w @0u Tagayy) PYT A SIONEXY OPEA
((9) 05 210N 10399)
powm Amby  amuaA FOE - - wIpT] (1Z0T A LT Jo'M 9IIHIA YO ST PASEOTy} PN AT 71T THAL
poew Amby  amyaa jurof %06 %0¢ BIpU] pojw] ejearrd sfemssoxdxy mdefog sung
ST
TEN 1€ SSAUENYG
POgRTE dismoneEy TTOT VIBLY  J' Sk Jsalara] B
Igie se Ay digsaanso K0 30 dmep
digEaIEso 3o oy, LTI FUET R |

‘ssaursng fo eoed ediouud mogy osfe st monensISar 10 ToNRIGAI00T Jo ANTMeD SCY, “dNosn) iy o) [BLIefRL 918 “SI00AIp ory Jo nornde S0 I YIgM €707 TN [€ T8 S8 dnoIn o) J0 SARID0sse PO SaIuaA Jol S 318 Mo[aq 110 188

SAIRII0SSE POE SaIMTaA Jurel ur syssrequy (p}

CCOT-ZTOZT T SISATH wﬁ_ﬂﬂo.ﬁﬂdo:ﬂqn TIM. STQTDESTER O 938 81N,
Sjsa9)my Bup|e)uno-n0N M sTondRsTESY, (3}

(penuyasd) SSPQL Y10 O sps3.Ep)
(panuguod)} 1g ey

{£93013 T Soadng TeIpUy AVGILH))

£207 YPIRIA [ DRPYS 1234 1) 0] SJUSTIOE)S [EDUETL PHEPIOST0) 31 0) S310N]

POBI] AIMIANISEU] pue A)eay] BIB],

196



‘sAansod SOUIN) JIBID A TUIOT 1eU} UL SI955B 19U F0 ax2yS 5,dR0I0) 201 [ PAISPISUCS 10U SI PRI SIBIALLY +1 T, JO 3583 Wl Huh“ﬁwwn_u )

ool

N

(oL} {8865} - (eg'zz) - (sz'g) - (o) - (sre)
T0El o - - - - - - - - D0
(1165} (1yLve} - (gxzzn) - (s79) - (o7} - (618} {5501} / 3901d Jo aiuys 5,dno1ny
(9D {1T1eL) - (rgor?) - 08's) - {05'¢} - {e1°9} SWOTL SATTUAGAIAWOS [EI0L,
NW;mmu A.w.v.wv - - - - - - - - WL vﬁmﬁmﬁ_‘.m.aﬁauu Rivalg]
(ee6vz)  (Livae) - (perorD) - o8} - {0s'e) - {e1'9) SAOESY
73 Al wog 3poud JO STeqs LRy SIUMO 03 J[qEINqHTR 101 /(S50
- 05LS - yITE - - - - - - ssnadie 3 STOSUL
L9780 TE9LE - lite:13 - 100 - 99°81 - £9'el SISG0) OB
1519 05'T6T - OF 1L - 9T L - GTOX - L UORBSHHOUTS P uonemeidac
IT0Z0T  vOT095°E - VIS - 00 - x84 - 90T AEARY
VN % IS YN £ VN %IS YN VTS
T 0T 7T TZ0T T TZ0T - WL THWT 4114 S5O PO 11040l JO JEIWHEIS PISILIE WIMING
PIEW £ PIER IE waep1e  Ampgues qurpre Aewogyem CO0F TN Grugzgew  maenie Aepozpem
panmry PANUIIY 3)BALLE poray g
=0T, mwﬂhwnogﬁkaﬂc.«a {IPA RSO} :awwhﬁw PREWET YR ey ﬂu«.w.:ﬂw JJEALLY IEYSIBII U AOLTY
(ocse} {og'19)  (2¥'e) (15823 (zs91) (zTrs) - - (ov'0) {as"a} - e [y e8T amooa; aAseEadmos [£30) o areys s dnoxny
WL {0s7) (oo w00 - - - - - - - - we 0 130 30 2angs s dnorsy
(1e7z8) {oggsn)  (zve) (c6°87) (zs'91) (zzvs) - - (o¥'0) {g9-0) - {c10) ¥&6Zl 1592 (ssof) ; yyoad yo aregs sdnosny
(Leen)  Gzsw) (2o {Lo6e) (zeze) (8zes) 1£8 - Fs0) {Z60) [Cral}} {ro'0) i34 $9°98 STOOU 2ATSTSHRIAICD [BI0L,
IS0 86'9) (o0} €00 - - - - - - - - 00 100 ATIOIT] SATSURTRITT0s WY
mvuw.muh_mq(
(seser) et (gow) (6res) (e£7e) 8Tel) 1£8 - (#5°0) (o) [Cray] (r50) 28T £9°95 % AL WO 3303¢ 3O SIS DI SIMUMO O] SENGEIE 103 /(5507T)
- TPZE - - - Wz - - - wo - [G130)] - SLOT asuadxs Xe Stoau]
€4°50¢ 9T 89T 99T iR R LESY 1191 - - - - - Tigs LR 1807 S0UBULY
29 16 50'1 9T 957F €T (33 - - - 080 000 £5°ES SoLY TouEsIoUTe puk uonEexdac
WL BE'EIT  REUTO LOSETT  ¥LD we 1908 - - 6To - a0'¢ 90061 PTILE SMUBASY
WETEE  Y%00ER bl bl VoL VPl Y%bL VN Yok, Yatl, YpS'61 %FS 6T %08 %05
TTOL YIEW S50] PUE JJoad J6 JUIWIIEIS PASTIB NS
0T £T0T T70T STT zZ0T £T0T [ 4174 0z 1€ 9 1202 14 £70T
PIB TE IS IE T IE  PIEW I PRI PR IE TAOZ AL RE  WICW IE  WARIN EE  £Z07 'PIBI [§ J9qWPAON 8] £T0T PPN [€  HRATH FE QIS 1€
pepIun] PANEIY IIRALLY
Angdmio]) yusmdopoq paNeg T ey PRI BIEALLT {s MoN pY) Auedwey) sEatmagy PR ABAg
Bugsnoy MEL oapR D I sung SIOJEDY DPEHDAL PoHmITS1RAlL pTT TREL  PUR FRISUIE [RLSapiy PRHEUYT SUOTILNSUO) TRHL sdemssardy andejog aung
0FZ99'T  LOTHOE - 18°60€ - SLYL - 3THO - 0952 JAn1TSA Julol pue SHIEROSSE W IR JO Junomk Sudue])
0T'Z98 69°E69°T - 68°LEST - €851 - L - L£1e an[eA SUAITEY BT PAPURTL MPOCS
6EHI9 BELYE - (80°872'D) - 76'88 - 891 - x84 sJasKE 19U J0 SIEYS 5, EnosSy
6UEFST  ITL6E - (00'20F°T) - £CG1T - ZOEE - 0£'8 539558 19N
0TL06T  PTOILS - £LH01 - <o'il - 208 - PoET SAQIIRL] JWITI
STETL'E  TRILLS - 897EYC - - - YLEGT - TELOT SONIIQEL] JWATNI-BON
66'EITS  SLPLES - 6601T - ¥Zo - 6T'EP - 1LT1 SIBSSE TWSTM)
996567 0S'ILES - TWBLIE - FE9TL - SO'I6T - 91T SIA8SE WOLID-HON
VN WIS VN WIS VN WIS YN %IS 521y digsiausg afemadtay
0T £T0T e £T0T THT _ T £Z0T
PIBW IE  YIBIY IE P TS WM IE  ypaEp g Coor T M L THODREIRTE CTRSINLE e e IR TE
powrT PRNMICT 39EALL] paIIY
Tejoy, sopaadelg Heedoyny IPMIITLIISUGT) UDBETInCy PIHTT 2[5y EOESInSG BJEALLT JRISIEUT MOLIY

(parimnwo3) senIu3 13110 HE S)SaAdiug

(panuguon) 1¢ N0N
(se00m v seadnr uetpuy (£susrmy)

£T0T YHER [§ POPU2 1824 91 0] SINDTEI)E]S [ERIUEUJ PAJEPIOSUOD 35U 0F SIJON]

PATI S.Mydnyseyuy put Ayeoy wiey,

197



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial stateiments for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 52

Finmmelal Instenmesits — Falr values and risk management

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair vatues of financial assets and financiai labilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets
consisting of [nvestments, Trade receivables, Cash and cash equivalents, Leaso rent recelvable, Unbilled revenug, Deposit other than included in cash and cash equivalents, Secutity deposits and Other financlal assets and
Enancial lisbilities consisting of Non convertible debentures, Financial liability for premium payment, Borrowing from Banks and financia! institutions, Commercial paper issued to mutual funds, Interest- frze seourity
depasits from customers, Other financial liabilities and Trade payables which not measured at fair value as the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value,

A, Aecounting classification and fair values

Carrying amount Fair vatue
Lavel 2= Level 3~
31 Mareh 2023 FVIPL  TVIOCE  Amorfised Cost Totel Level 1- Quoted price  Siguificant - Sigaificant Totat
In petive markets observable unobservable
inputs inputs

Tinancial assets
Investments
-~ Bonds and debentures - - 1,056.1% 1,056.19 - - - "
Current investments in mutual funds 74.28 - - 74.28 7428 - - 14.28
Trade receivables - - 56.54 56.54 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 702,69 702,69 - - - -
Leasa rent receivable - - 0.06 0.06 - - - -
Unbilled revenye - - - - - - - -
Deposit other thag included in cash and cash equivalents - - 106.52 10652 - - - N
Seourity deposits - - 4,54 454 - - - -
Cthier financial assets - - 10147 101.47 - - - -

3,115.35 - 2,037.33 5,152.68 T4.28 - 3,041.07 3,115.35
Financlal linbtitles
Non convertible debentures - - 1,524.37 1,524.37 - - - -
Financial liability for premium payment - - 699.54 699.54 - - - -
Borrowlng firom Banks and financial institutions - - 2,930.23 2,930,23 - - - -
Commercial paper issued to mutual funds - - - - - - - -
Interesi- fres security deposits from customers - - 36.85 36.85 - - - -
Other financial liabilities - - 276.57 276.57 - - - -
Trade payables - - 64.32 64.32 - - - -

- - 553188 5,531,88 - - - -
Carrylng amount Fair valug
Level2- Level3-
31 March 2022 FYTPL  FVIOCI  Amortised Cost Totsl Leyel1-Quoted price  Slguifleant  Stgnificant Totat
in active markets abservable unohservable
inputs Inputs

{ Financizl assets
Investments
- Equity instruments in others (refer note 10} 2.57 - - 2.57 - - 2.57 157
- Bonds and debentures - - 117.87 117.87 - -
Current investments in mutual fonds 102.4% - 102.49 102,45 - - 102.49
Inter-corporate Deposils given to Related Parties - - - - - B - -
Trade receivables - - 2144 2144 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 183,93 18393 - - - -
Lease rent receivable - - 2.08 2.08 - - - -
Unbilled revenue - - 896 896 - - - -
Deposit other than included in cash and cash equivalents - - 61,55 61.55 - - - .
Security deposits - - 11.40 11.40 - - - -
Loang - - - B - - - -
Other ial assets - - 106.44 106.44 - - - -

1,766.46 - 513.67 2,28L13 10249 n 1,664.97 1,767.46
Financial hahititics
Mon convertible debentures - - 1,968.24 1,968.24 - - - .
Financiz! liability for premium payment - - 692,63 692,63 - - - -
Borrowing from Banks and financial institutions - - 5,441.89 5,441.89 - - - -
Commereial paper issued to mutual funds - - 1,796,83 1,796.33 - - - -
Interest- frea security deposits fram customers - - 256.61 256,61 - - - -
Other financial lighilities - - 25210 252,70 - - - -
Trade payables - - 83.05 83.05 - - - u

- - 11,535.24 10,535.24 - - - -

B. Measurement of fatr values

Finaneial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instraments:
A, Credit risk ;

B, Liquidity risk ; and

C. Market risk

Risk management frameworlc .

Ths Cempany's board of directors has overall respensibility for the estabBshment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framevwork. The Company manages market risk through a treasury departmant, which
evaluates and exercises independent control over the entire process of market tigk management, The treasury department recommends risk management objectives and policies, which are approved by Board of Directers. The
activities of this department inclade management of cash resources, borrowing strategies, and ensuring compliance with market risk limits and policies.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analysc the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor tisks and adherencs to limits. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, throngh its training and management standards and procedures, aims to meintain a disciplined
and constructive control environment in which a!l employees understand their roles and cbligations,

The Board oversees how management monitors compliance with the company's risk menagement policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the
Company. The Board Is assisted in its oversight role by interal audit, Internal audit undertakes botl: regnlar and ad hoc reviews of risk management conlrols and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Board.
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

A, Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and ariges principalty from the Group’s receivables from customers. Credit risk is managed
through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which
the Group grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Group establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and
impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables, loans and advances and
investment ( ECL Method).

Tiade and other receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also
has an influence on credit risk assessment. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and
continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Group grants credit terms in the normal course of
business. The carrying amounts of the financial assets represent the maximum expected credit exposure,

Cash & Cash Equivalents & Current Investments

The Group held cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 702.69 crores as on 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: INR 183.93 croses).
The cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances are held with bank which are highly rated based on ratings from
external agencies, The Group considers that its cash and cash equivalents and current investment have low credit risk based
on external credit ratings of the counterparties. Similarly investment in mutual funds are in quoted investments which are
highly rated by external credit rating agencies.

Credit risk for receivables pertaining to residential business
The risk for trade receivables pertaining to residential business is considered nil as the possession of the residential
property is transferred only after the receipt of payment from the cusiomer.

Summary of the Group's exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from trade receivables is as follows:

Particulars 31 Maveh 2023 31 March 2022
Unbilled 11.99 -
Past due 0-180 days 44.13 16.47
Past due 181-365 days - 4.03
Past due 366-730 days 0.01 0.63
Past due 731-1095 days - 0.31
Past due more than 1095 days 0.41 -
56.54 21.44
Movement in Expected Credit Loss on Loans and Trade Receivable
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening Balance (8.37) (0.36)
Add: Provision recognised (2.50) (8.01)
Closing Balance (10.87) 837
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

B, Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Group manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far a8
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilitles when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk
to the Group’s reputation,

The Group has obtained fund and nen-fund based working capital lines from various banks. Furthermore, the Group has aceess to funds from compulsory convertible and non-

convertible debentures from holding Group and other financial institution, The Group also constantly monitors funding options available in the debt and capital markets with

a view to maintaining financial flexibility,

Exposure to lquidity visk

The table below analyses the group's finarcial liabilitles into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for;

* all non dervative financial liabilities

* net and gross settled derivative financial instruments for which the contractual maturities are essential for the understanding of the timing of the undiscounted cash flows.

31 March 2023
Non-derivative financial liabilities

Carrying amount 1 year or less 1-2 yenrs 2-5 years More than 5 years
Non convertible debentures 1.524.37 900.00 625.00 - -
Financia! liability for premium payment 699.54 53,97 80.71 155,79 2,047.37
Interest- free security deposits fiom customers 36.85 13.37 - 23.48 -
Lease liabilities 1.15 0.26 0.26 0.84 0.18
Commercial paper issued to mufual fund - - - - -
Trade and other payables 6432 64,32 - - -
Borrowing from Banks and financial institutions 2.930.23 289.16 551.50 850,42 3,853.53
Other financial Liabilities 276,57 276.57 - M -
5,533.03 1,598.65 1,257.47 1,031.53 5,901.07
31 March 2022
Non-derivative financial liabilities Contractual eash flows
Carrying amount 1 year or less 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 years
Non convertible debentures 1,968.24 945.00 400.00 625,00 -
Financial liability for premium payment 692.63 51.29 7754 150.22 2,138.21
Bank Overdraft 43,29 43.29 - - -
Lease Liabilities 1.28 0.25 0.26 0.82 047
Interest- free security deposits from customers 256.61 116.19 - 14042 -
Commeteial paper issued to mutual fund 1,796.83 1,820.00 - -
Trade and other payables 83.05 83.05 - - -
Borrowing from Banks and financial institutions 5.441.89 440,60 235,83 586.01 4,179.45
Other financial liabilities 252,70 252,70 - - -
10,536.52 3,752.36 T13.63 1,502.47 6,318.13

Contractual cash flows
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Note 52 {(continued)

C. Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial insttument will fiuctuate because of
changes it market prices, Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and equity
price risk. However, the entity has assessed that the impact of currency risk and equity price risk is not significant.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
clanges in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in inferest rates relates borrowings
from financial institutions.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Group's interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Fixed-rate instruments

Financial assets 700,82 80.28
Financial Habilities 2,237.28 4,866,99

Variable-rate instruments
Financial liabilities 2,691.23 4,912.52

Interest rate sensitivity - fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, and the Group does not have any designate financial liabilities. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the
repotting date would not affect profit or loss.

Interest rate sensitivity - variable rate instruments

A. reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased /
decreased equity and profit or loss by amounts shown below, This analyses assumes that all other variables, in
particular, foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant, This calcudation also asswmes that the change occurs at
the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The period end
balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period, '

100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

As at '31 March 2023
Variable-rate instruments (PAT and Equity) 26.91 (26.91)
Cash flow scnsitivity (net) 26.91 (26.91)

100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

As at '31 March 2022
Variable-rate instruments (PAT and Equity) 49.13 {49.13)
Cash flow sensitivity (net} 49.13 (49.13)

(Note: The impact is indicated on the profit/loss and equity after tax basis}
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Note 53
Capital Management

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. It sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans which
include capital and other strategic investments.

The funding requirtement of the Group are met from fund and non-fund based working capital lines from varicus banks, Furthermore, the
Group has access to funds from compulsoty convertible and non-convertible debentores from holding Group and other financial institution.
The Group’s policy is to use short-term and long-term borrowings to meet anticipated funding requivements. Certain borrowings from banks
and financial institutions contain a loan covenant and a fisture breach of covenant may require the Group to repay loans earlier than agreed
upon,

The Group monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ to “adjusted equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as fotal
liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings and obligaticns under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted
equity comprises all components of equity other than amounts acewmulated in the hedging reserve,

As at 31 March  As at 31 March

2023 2022
Total borrowings 4.461.77 0,251.25
Less : Cash and cash equivalents 702.69 183.93
Adjusted net debt 3,759.08 9,067.32
Adjusted equity 4,271.50 858.13
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (in times) .88 10.57
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Note 54
Tax expense
{a) Amountis recognised in profit and loss

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Current tax expense (including prior years) 334,66 §.42
Total Current Tax (1) 334.66 542
MAT Credit entitlement of earlier years written off - 29,08
Deferred Tax Expense 111.99 51.08
Total Deferred Tax (1) 111,99 81.96
Tax expense for the year 446.65 88.38

(b) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive tncome

For the year Tax (expense) Net of tax For the year Tax (expense) Net of tax
Before fax Before tax
INR INR INR INR INR INE.
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 044 0.02 (0.42) (0.65) 0.20 (0.45)
{044) 0.02 (0,42} (0.65) 0.20 (0.45)

(c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Profit before tax 2,860.44 17829
Doemestic Tax Rates 25.17% 25.17%
Tax using domestic tax rates 719.92 3539
Tax effect of:

Currené-year losses and Profit taxable at different rates for which no deferred tax asset is recognised 830.62 41.38
Recognition of previously unrecogrised tax losses and utilisation thereen (42,49} 54.28
Non Deductible Expenses (117.86) -
Capital gains earned on sale of investments classified as FYOCI (325.00) -
Share of profit from Joint ventures and associates and other adjustments (88.05) -
MAT Credit entitlement of eatlier years written off (Refer note below) - 29.98
Others : 16.05 (1.86)
Subtotal 273.27 123.77
Total 446.65 38.38
Note:

The Parent entity of the Group bas decided to exercise the option to be taxed under the section 115BAA of the Income-Tax Act,1961 (the Act) with effect from the financial year
ended 31 March 2022, Therefore, the MAT credit entitlement of R8.29.93 crores, accounied in the books of account of parent entity will no longer be recoverable. Accordingly,
this amount has been written off.
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Note 54 Tax Txpense (continued)

A, Deferred Tax Assets

Particulars st Mavch, 2023 35t Mayeh, 2022
Deferred Tax Assets : 64.29 £8.00
Deferred Tax Liabilities . (37.270) 0.79)
Totai - Net Deferred Tax Assets ' 2783 67.21
Movement for FY 2022-2023

Recogulzed In
Profl or Loss/ . .
Particulars Opening Balznce | Reclassified from Recognized tn Othex Recogaized Laoss of Control Closing Balance
Deferred Tax Comprehensive Income | directly in Equity
Liahllity
Deferred Tax Assets relating to:
Provision for Employee Benefits & Others .02 0.09 -0.05 - - 0.05
Unabsorbed Depreciation carried forward 63.77 -1.32 - - - 64.25
Praperty, Plant and Equipinent and Right of Use Assaty 1.07 -1.07 - - -
Other Adjustments 113 -1.13 - - . .
68.00 -3.64 -0.06 - - 64,20
Deferred Tax (Liabilities) relating te:
I3eemed Investments portion of Convertible instruments and
unwinding thereen - -18,42 - - - -13.42
Financtal Assets 0,79 -16.83 - - - ~17.72
Other Adjustments - -1,14 - - - -1.14
-0.79 -36.48 - - - -37.27
Net Deferred Tax Assots 67.21 -40.13 -0.06 ) - - 27.63

Movemtent for FY 2021-2022

Recognized in

Profit or Loss /
Particulars Opening Bal R from cRenguzed. ln lO ther dir Recnlgngeﬂl Loss of Control Closing Balance
Deferred Tax p! ve Incottie ectly nEqulty | .
Liability
Deferred Tax Assets velating tes
Provision for Empleyee Benefits & Others - 0.02 - - - 0.02
Unabsorbed Depreciation carried forward 118.05 5228 - - - 6597
Carry Forward Losses 41.97 -41.97 - - - -
Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of Use Assels 18.38 -17.4 - - - 107
Other Adjustments .53 0.59 . - - - 1,13
’ 17895 -110.95 - - - 68.00
Deferred Tax (Liabiitles) relating to:
Timing Differences i fnterest income recognition - -0.79 - - - -0.79
- -0.79 - ' - - -0.79
Net Deferred Tax Asscls 178.93 ~111.74 - - - §7.21
B. Deferred Tax Llnbilltles
Particulars 31Isi March, 2023 35t March, 2022
Deferred Tax Assels 31.26 93,05
Deferred Tax Liabilities (322.34) (367.42)
Total - Net Deferred Tax (Tiabilities) (291.08) (274.37)
Maovement for FY 2022-2023
Recognized In
Profit or Loss / .
Partleulars Opentng Balance | Reclassified from Recognized In Other Recognized Loss of Control Closing Balance
Deferred Tax Comprehensive Income | directly In Equlty
Liabilidy
Deforred Tax Aysots rebating (o)
Provision for Bmployes Benefits & Others 2.82 0.56 0.10 - 0.0t 349
Deemed Investments portion of Convertible instroments and
wiwinding thereon - 10.43 - - - 10.43
Carry Forward Losses and Unabsorbed depreciation 89.84 9,14 - - -82.68 1630
Other Adjustments 0.40 0,65 - - - Lo4
93.05 20.73 0.10 - -82.67 3126
Deferred Tax (Liabilitles) relating to:
Fair Valvatlon of Financlal Instruments -189.27 -101,60 -0.01 - - -290.83
Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of Use Assets -165.71 <350 B - 137.75 -1i.46
Other Adjustments -12.45 12.45 - - - -
-367.42 -92.65 -0.01 - 13775 -322.34
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities <274.57 <7187 0.08 - 5508 -291.08
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Moventend for FY 2021-2022

Recopnized n
Profit or X088 /
Particulars Opening Balance | Reclassified from C;‘;’::i:ﬁ?;:: 10“ tc]::r:-le dh::::ynﬁfilg;iity Loss of Contrel Closing Balance
Deferred Tax
Linbility
Deferred Tax Assets velating to:
Provision for Bmployee Benefits & Others 5.85 -3.02 0.19 - - 2.82
Carry Forward Losses 92.12 -2,28 - - - 89,84
MAT Credit Entitlement 20,98 +29.98 - - - -
Qther Adjustments 5644 -56.04 - - - 0.40
184,18 -91.32 0.1% - - 93,05
Deferred Tax (Liabilities) relating to:
Fair Valuation of Financial Instruments -173.82 -15.46 2.01 - - -189.27
Property, Flant and Equipment and Right of Use Assets ~301.95 136.25 - - - 16571
Deemed Investments portion of Convertible instruments and
utrwinding thersoen «12.76 0.51 - -0.00 “ <1225
Other Adjustments - -0.19 - - - -0.19
-488.53 121.10 0.01 -0,00 - -367.41
Net Deferred Tax Liahllltles -304.35 29.78 0.20 -0.00 u 274,37

Note: Deferred tax assels have aor been recognised in Tespect of unabsorbed business losses, because it is not probable that future capital gains / taxable profit will b
can use the benefits thersfrom. The entity has not recognised deferred tax assets on unrecognised as shown below:

& available against which the respective entitles

As at 31st March, 2023 Within ene year | Greater than ane year, | Greater than five No explry date Closing balance
Unrecognised defarred tax assets less than five years years

Business losses 5.06 433.44 670,98 - 1,109.49
Unabsorbed depreclation - - - 120.18 120.18
Capital Loss. 10.10: - 210,19 - 220.29
Total 15.16 433.44 881.17 120.18, 1,449.95
As at 31st March, 2022 Within one year | @reater than oneyear, | Greater than five No axpiry date Closing balance
Unreccgnised deferred tax assets less than five years years

Buslness losses - 70.25 858.91 - 929,16/
Unabserbked depreciation - - - 117.96 117.98)
Capital Loss - 10.10) 189.42 - 199.52
Total - 80,34 1,048.33 117.96 1,246.63

Recouciliation of Deferred Tax Expense amount recognized in profit or loss and Other Comprehensive Encome

Partleulars R 1zedl In profit or loss Reeognized in Other Comprehensive Income [ Recognized direetly I equity

st March, 2023 st March, 2022 Jist March, 2023 31et March, 2022 315t March, 2023 J1st March, 2022
Deferved Tax Asseis (Net)
Net increase/ (decrease) in Deferred Tax Assets {40.13) {111.74) (0.06) - - -
Deferred Tux Liahilities (Net)
Net {increase) /decrease in Deferred Tax Liabilities (71.87) 20,78 008 0.20 - (0,00}
Deferred Tax (Expense) / Credit (Not} (111.99) (81.9@ .02 0.20 " (0.00)
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(Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 55
Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 on “Employee Benefits”

(i) The Group has adopted Ind AS 19 on “Employee Benefits” as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act") and other relevant provisions of the Act. -

(ii) Contribution to Provident fund
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Contribution te provident fund recognised as an expense under "Employee benefits expense™. 2.81 334
(iii) Deflned Benefit Plans
Gratuity

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on death or
resignation or retirement calculated as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 with no ceiling.

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
I Change in the defined benefit obligation
Liability at the beginning of the year 6.52 551
Interest Cost 042 0.35
Current Service Cost 1.16 222
Benefit Paid (1.07) 0.97)
Actuarial Loss on obligations 0.44 {0.65)
Liability (settled on account of loss of control in subsidiary) / acquired on acquisition (0.92) 0.06
Liability at the end of the year 6.61 6,52
I Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet
Liability at the end of the yvear 6.61 6,52
Fair Value of Plan Assets al the end of the year - -
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet . 6.61 6.52
OI Expenses Recognised in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income
Cwmrent Service Cost L1a 222
Interest Cost 0.42 035
Liability acquired on acquizition / (settled on Divestiture) - .06
Expense Recognised in statement of profit and loss 1.58 2.63
Net Actuarial Loss to Be Recognised 0,44 (0.65)
Expense Recognised in statement of other comprehensive income 0.44 (0.65)
IV  Balance Sheet Reconciliation .
Opening net liability 6.52 551
Expense as above 202 1.98
Employers confribution (paid) (1.01) (0.97)
Liability (settled on account of less of control in subsidiary) / acquired on acquisition (0.92) -
Amount recognised in Balance Sheet 6,61 6.52

RUH
Cenlial
T ok

Hasey

1

206



Tata Realty and Infrastrocture Limited
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(iv) Defined Benefit Plans (Continued)

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Gratuity (Continued}
¥ Actuarial Assumptions :
Discount Rate
Salary escalation
Mortality rates

such as supply and demand in the employment market.

7.25% - 7.45%
4.00% - 8.00%
100% of Tndian
Assured Lives
Mortality 2012-14

As at March 31, 2023, the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 3 years (FY 2022: 4 years)

6.10% - 7.05%
7.00% - 5.00%
100% of Indian Assured
Lives Mortality 2012-14

Attrition Rate for year ended 31 March 2023 : Diroctors - Nil, Age 21-30 years - 5%, Age 3140 years - 3%, Age 41-59 years 2%
Adttrition Rate for year ended 31 March 2022 : Directors - Nil, Age 21-30 years -~ 5%, Age 31-40 years - 3%, Age 41-59 years -2%

Estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factons,

The Group’s liability on account of gratuity is not funded and hence, the disclosures relating to the planned assets are not applicable.

VI Txperience Adjustments:
Defined Lenefit obligation
Plan assets
(Deficit)
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities
Experience adjustment on plan assets

31 March 2023

6.6%

(6.61)
(0.37)

31 March 2022

6,52
(6.52)
(0.65)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date, to a change to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding
othet assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obiigation by the amounts shown below:;

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount rate { -+ 0.50% movement) 1.7% -1.7% 2.4% -2.3%
Salary escalation ( -+ 0.50% movement) -1.6% 1.7% -2.2% 2.3%
Attrition Rate { -+ 50% movement) 9.4% -6.7% 16.9% 9.9%

4]

Other long term employment benefits

Compensated absences

The liability towards compensated absences for the year ended 31 March 2023 recognised in the Balance Sheet based on actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method amounted to INR 7.01 crores (2022: INR 7.68 crores) and the charge to the Statement of profit and loss

amounted to INR 0.88 crores (2022: TNR 1,13 crores),
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Note 56
Related Party Disclosures

Parent Company and Ultimate Holding Company:
Tata Sons Private Limited

Joint Venture

TRIL IT4 Private Limited (upto 27 July 2021)

Mikadoe Realtors Private Limited

Industrial Mineral and Chemicals Company Limited

Arrow Infraestate Private Limited (w.e.f. 20 May 2022)
Gurgaon Constructwell Private Limited (w.e.f. 21 May 2022)
Gurgaon Realtech Limited (w.e.f. 21 May 2022)

Infopark Properties Limited (w.e.f. ¢ July 2022)

Joint Venture of a Subsidiary

Pune Solapur Expressways Private Limited

A & T Road Construction Management and Operation Private Limited (upto 28 January 2022}
Pune IT City Metro Rail Limited

Associate;
Tata Housing Development Company Limited
TRIL Constructions Limited (w.e.f. 18 November 2021)

Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Fellow Subsidiaries:

Ewart Investments Limited

Tata Consultancy Services Limited

Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited
Tata AIA Life Insurance Company Limited
Tata Capital Financial Services Limited
Infinity Retail Lid.

Tata Asset Management Limited

Tata Housing Development Company Limited (upto 24 March 2021)
Tata Elxsi Ltd.

Tata Teleservice (Maharashtra) Limited

Tata Consulting Engineers Ltd

Tata Img Technclogies Private Limited

Tata Communications Limited

Tata Unistore Limited

Infiniti Retail Limited

Symergizers Sustainable Foundation

Other Group Companies:

Tata Chemicals Limited Associate of Parent Company

Titan Company Limited Associate of Parent Company

The Indian Hotels Company Limited Associate of Parent Company

Voltas Limited Associate of Parent Company

TRIL Infopatk Limited (w.e.f. 9 July 2022) Subsgidiary of Joint Venture (Infopark Properties Limited)
Promont Hilltop Private Limited Subsidiaty of Associates

Key Management Personnel

Sanjay Dutt Managing Director & CEO

Sanjay Sharma Chief Finaneial Officer (upto 30 November 2021)

Bhavesh Madeka Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 10 May 2022 upto 31 May 2022)
Aravind Maiya Chief Financial Officer {(w.e.f. 1 June 2022 upto 24 April 2023)
Sudhakar Shetty Company Secretary (upto 31 March 2022)

Rashmi Jain

The Company had a Chief Financial Officer during the year, till 24 April 2023. The Company is in the process of appointing a new Chj

Financial Officer,

Company Secretary (w.e.f. 1 April 2022)




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the conselidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Relatad party dlsclosures {Continued)

Related Party Transactions

For year For yaar
: ended ended
Sr. No. Party Name Nature of Transaction T farch 31 March
2023 2022
1 Tata Sons Private Limited a} Expenses
(Holding Company,) Consultant Fees 0.08 0.88
Deputation 0.68 -
b} Other Transactions
Recovary of Expenses ™ 0.00 0.11
c) Qutstanding Balances Recelvables
towards interest and deblt notes and advances 0.77 0.31
d) Outstanding Balances Payable
towards expanses - 0.05
2 |TRIL IT4 Prlvate Limited +|a) income
(Subsidiary we.f. 29 Juiy 2021} Asset Management Fees - 0.78
Interest on NCDs - 4.78
Project Managament Consultancy fees - -
b} Expenses
Reimbursement of expenses - ~
¢) Qutstanding Balances Receivables
towards interest and debit notes and advances - -
3  |Mikado Reeltors Private Limlted a) Income
(Jolnt Venture) Project Managament Consultancy feas - -
Asset Management Fees 0.1 -
b) Expenses
Recovery of Expenses 0.26 -
Investment In Non Convertible Debentures 111.74 -
¢} Outstanding Balances Receivables
tewards interest and debit notes and advances 0.03 2.056
4 |Industrlal Minerais and Chemicals Cempany Private Limited a} Income
{Joint Venture) Project Management Consultancy fees 948 -
b} Outstanding Balances Recelvables
Cther Recoverable 11.19 -
5 Pune Soiapur Expressways Private Limited a} Expenses
{Jaolnt Venture} Recovery of Expenses 0.32 -
d) Qutstanding Balances Payable
towards expenses 0.03 -
6 |Pune [T Clty Mstro Rall Limited a) Expenses
(Joint Venture) Success Feas Received 24.67 -
Recovery of Expensas 4,19 -
a) Other Transactions
Invesiments in Equity 585,70 145.40
b) Expenses
Reimbursemant of expenses - 4.88
¢) Outstanding Balances Receivables
towards Interest and debit notes and advances 32.28 4.24
d) Outstanding Balances Payatle
{owards expenses 0.42 -

i
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Notes to the consolldated flnanclal statements for the year endad 31 March 2023

{Currency: Indlan rupees in crores)
Ralated party disclosures (Continued)

Related Party Transactlons

For year For year
ended endad
Sr. No. Party N acti
r. No arly Name Nature of Transaction 31 March 31 Warch
2023 2022
7 |Arrow Infraestate Private Limited a} Income
{Joint Venture w.e.f 21 May 2022) Asset Management fees 0.59 -
Interest on OCD * 0.00 -
Rent 0.91 -
b) Expenses
Rent expenses 0.24 -
¢) Other Transactions
Recavery of Expsnses * 0.01 -
Redemption of Opticnally Convertible Debenture { OCDs) 18.64 -
Series A Compulsory Convertible Debenture { Series B CCDs) 9.51 -
d} Cutstanding Balances Receivables
Security Deposit Payable 0.07 -
Rent Receivable 0.10 -
e) Dutstanding Balances Payable
Rent 8.07 -
Sacurity Deposit Payable .31 -
8 |Gurgaon Constructwell Private Limited a) Income
{Joint Venture w.e.f 21 May 2022) Interest Income on OCDs * 0.00 -
¢} Other Transactlons
Recovary of Expenses * 0.1 -
Redempticn of Optlonally Cenvertible Debenture { OCDs) 48.81 -
Series B Compulsory Cenvertible Debenture [ Series B CCDs) 24,88 -
Development Management Fees 7.70 -
Sale of Land 039 -
9 |Gurgaon Realtech Limited a) Inceme
(Joint Venture w.e.f 21 May 2022) Asset Management fees 1.30 -
Interest on OCD * 0.00 -
Rent 0.19 -
b} Expenses
QOffice, commen arga maintenance charges 0.05 -
¢) Other Transactlons
Recovery of Expenses 0.46 -
Series B Compulsory Convertible Debenture ( Series B CGDs) 10.16 -
Redemption of Optienaily Conveartible Debenture { OCDs) 19.92 -
d} Outstanding Balances Receivables
Other Recoverable 0.04 -
Trade Receivable Q.02 -
Security Depost 0.01 -
e) Cutstanding Balances Payable
Trade Payable 0.01 -
Securlty Depost 0.06 -
10 |Infopark Properties Limited a) Income
{Joint Venture w.e.f 8 July 2022)) Interest on ICD * 0.17 -
b) Other Transactions
NCD Issued 708.90 -
a) Qutstanding Balances Receivables
Inter Corperate Depesit - Current - Unsecured 2,25 -
Interest Accrued but not due * 0.18 -
NCD 708.90 -
11 | TRIL Infopark Ltmited a) Income
(Joint Venture w.e.f 8 July 2022)) Project Management Cansuliancy fees
Asset Management faes 11.75 -
Income from Manpower Consultancy 318 -
) Other Transactions
Recovery of Expenses 2.68 -
Expenses incurred on behalf of company by related party 017 -
¢} Outstanding Balances Payable
Trade payable 0.06 -
¢} Ouistanding Balances Receivablas
Trade Regceivable 3.48 -
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Redated party disclosures (Contlnued)

Related Party Transactions
For yaar For year
ded onded
. No, N f en
Sr. No Party Name ature of Transactlon 31 March 31 March
2023 2022
12 [Promont Hilltep Private Limlted a} Expenses
(subsidlary of Associates} Interest on ICDs 0.27 B
b} Cther Transactions
Inter Corporate Deposit taken 8400 -
c) Outstanding Balances Payable
Inter Corporate Depesit - Current - Unsecured 6.00 -
Interast Accrued but not due 0.24 -
13 [Tata Housing Development Company Limited a) Income
{Assaoclates) Rent Ingcome 0,98 1.07
b} Expenses
Relmbursement of expenses - 4.97
Interest expenses on unsecured loans - 0.82
¢} Other Transactions
Recovery of Expensas 745 2.68
Unsecured loan repald - 20.00
Investments in Equity 500,00 800,00
Deposit - 0.06
d) OQutstanding Balances Receivables
towards interest and debit notes and advances 0.53 0.27
Trade Recsivable - 0.31
e) Outstanding Balances Payabie
towards advances/Daposlt from customers - 0.37
towards expanses - 2.88
14 | TRIL Constructions Limited a) Incoma
(Associate) interest on {CD - 1.18
b) Other Transactions
Inter Corporate Deposits glven - 0.28
Inter Corporate Deposits refund recelved - 18.38
¢} Ouistanding Balances Recelvables
Cther Recoverable 2.04 2.04
15 |Infinity Retail Limited a) Other Transactions
(Fellow Subsidiary) Purchase of property, plant and equipment 0.08 0.03
b} Qutstanding Balances Payable
Trade Payable 0.01 -
16 |Ewart Investments Limited a) Expenses
(Fellow Subsidiary) Reimbursement of expenses 1.44 oM
b} Other Transactions
Racovery of Expenses - 1.42
¢) Quistanding Balances Receivablas
towards deposits placed 2.40 240
17 |Tata AlA Life Insurance Company Limited a) Other Transactions
{Fallow Subsidiary) Recovery of Expenses 0.18 0.40
18 |Tata AlG General Insurance Limited a} Income
{Fellow Subsidiary) Rent Income 3.73 3.92
Claim Received 0.06 -
b) Expenses
Insurance cost 5,78 0.03
¢) Other Transactions
Recevary of Expenses - 2.88
d) Outstanding Balances Receivables
fowards deposits placsd 2.58 0.03
Trade Receivable .18 0.01
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consclidated flnanclal statements for the year ended 31 March 2623
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Related party disclesures (Continued)

Relatad Party Transactlons

For year For year
. ehded anded
8r. No, Party Name Nature of Transaction 31 iaroh 3 March
2023 2022
18 |Tata Communications Limited a} Inceme
{Fellow Subsidiary) Rent Iricome 0.58 0.40
b) Cther Transactions
Recovery of Expenses 018 0.28
) Qutstanding Balances Recelvables
Trade Recslvable 0.08 0.02
d) Outstanding Balances Payable
towards expenses 0.05 o
20 {Tata Censultancy Servicas Limited a) Income
{Fellow Subsidiary) Rent Income 48.36 74.77
k} Other Transactions
Purchase of property, plant and eguipment - 0.06
Recovery of Expenses 447 5.76
¢) Outstanding Balances Recslvables
Trade Recelvable B 6.78
towards deposlis placed f - 20.60
d} Qutstanding Balances Payahle
towards advances from customers 2080 2583
towards expensas 0.27 0.06
21 | Tata Consuiting Enginears Limitad a) Other Transactlons
(Fellow Subsidlary) Recovery of Expenses - 212
22 |Tata Teleservicas Maharashtra Limited a) Other Transactlons
(Fellow Subsidiary) Recovery of Expenses 0.18 017
b) Outstanding Balances Payable
towards expenses - 0.01
23 |Tata Capital Financlal Services Limited a) Expenses
{Fellow Subsidiary) Term loan Interest 0.62 -
b) Other Transactions
Term Loan Taken 95,00 -
Term Lean repaid 95.00 -
24 | Titan Company Limited a) Expenses
{Fellow Subsidiary) Gift Vaucher 0.20 -
Loan interest Pald 0.87 -
b) Other Transactions
ICD Taken 120,00 -
ICD repaid 120.00 -
b) Qutstanding Balances Payable
Trade Payable 0.02 -
25 |Voltas Limited a) Expenses
{Fellow Subsidiary) Rent . 249 -
b) Qutstanding Balances Raceivables
Security Deposit 0.53 -
26 |The Indlan Hotels Company lLimited a) Expenses
(Fellow Subsidiary) Service Expenses 0.45 -
27 {TATA 1MG Hzalthcare Solutions Pyt Ltd a) Expenses
{Fellow Subsidiary) Health Flan Subscription 0.02 -
28 {Tata Chemicals Limited a) Expenses
(Fellow Subsidiary) Recovery of Expenses * 0.00 -
29 {Tata Unistore Limited a) Expenses
{Fellow Subsldiary) Gift voucher * 0.00 -
30 {TATA Teleservicas Limiled a) Other Transactions
Recovery of Expenzes 0.25 -
i, k) Outstanding Balances Payable
AN, towards expenses 0.0 -
T : Y -
3 . KayiManage ﬂ!fg(sdnrﬁ Managerial remuneration 13.74 12.28
! iy 1

fod Teego 37 i, i

#- R‘_emunef'a‘l_ienfio:KMP doqs nofihclude provisions for encashable leave, gratulty and pramium pald for group health insuranes, as separate acturial valuation / premium paid
delallg‘é’f‘é&ﬁb{ Hidhlg.htsp recgvery of managerial remuneration from group companles 1s nof netled off for this disclosure.
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Noftes to the consolidated finaneial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 57

Additional information pursuant to paragraph 12,3 of Division 11 of Schedule 11 to the Companies Act 2013- *General instructions for the preparation of consolidated fnancial

statements’ of Division 11 of Schedule 111

Part A
March 2023
Net Assets Share In profit or loss Share In other comprehensiva | Share In total comprehensive
{Total Assets - Total Liabilities) incame Income

Nama of the entity

Asa % of Amount Asa %of Amount Asa % of Amount As a % of total Amount

consolidated net consolidated consolidated other comprehensive
assets proflt or loss comprehensiva Income

Parent
Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited 52.38% 5,823.59 27.95% [146.17) B7.94% 107327 132.46% 92710
Subsidiarles
Indlan
Acme Living Solutions Privata Limited 0.00% ({0.09) 0.00% " 0.00% - 0.00% -
TRIL Roads Prlvate Limited 517% 574.85 4.56% (23.87) 12.16% 14838 17.79% 124,53
TRIF Gurgacn Housing Projects Private Limited 0.00% {2.04) 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
TRIL Urban Transport Private Limited 6.55% 728.61 0.76% {3.99) -0.09% {1.06) -0.72% {5.04)
Wellkept Facility Management Services Private Limited 0,00% {0.02) 0.00% - 0.,00% - 0.00% -
Hampl Expressway Private Limited 1.89% 154.91 9.73% (50.38} 0.00% 001 -7.27% {50.87)
HV Farms Private Limited 0,10% 10.60 0.01% {0.03) £.00% . 0.00% {0.03)
international Infrabulld Private Limited 0.05% 573 -0.03% 018 0.00% - 0.03% 018
Dharamshala Ropeway Limited 0.06% 6.30 1.84% {9.60) -0.01% {0.16) -1.38% {9.78)
Uchlt Expressways Private Limited 1.12% 124286 6,39% (33.42) 0.00% 0402 -4.77% (32.40)
Durg Shivhath Expressways Pt Ltd 1.78% 197.64 -9.05% 47.35 0.00% {0.02) 6.76% 47.33
Matheran Ropeway Pyt Ltd 0.22% 24,25 -0,03% 018 0.00% - 0.03% 0,18
TRIL Bengaluru Real Estate One Private Limited 0.00% 0.41 0.00% {0.00) 0.00% - 0,00% {0.00)
TRIL Bengaluru Consultants Private Limitad 0,00% 0.04 0.00% 0,02 0.00% co02 0,01% 0.04
TRIL Bengaluru Rea! Estate Three Private Limited 0.00% {0.01) 0.00% {0.00) 0.00% - 0.00% {0.00)
TRIL IT4 Private Limited 3.83% 42574 -9.48% 49.80 0.00% 040 7.09% 49.60
MLA tnfrastructure Private Limited 0.00% (0:38) Q.01% {0.05) 0.00% - -0.01% {0.05)
Non-controlling Interests 0.00% {0.48} 047% {2.48) 0.00% - 0.00% -
Joint Ventures and Assoclate {investment as per equity method)
Indian
Pune Solapur Expressways Privata Limited 0.53% 58,37 -6.41% 28.32 0.00% - 4.05% 2832
TRIL Constructions Limited 0.33% 3642 0% {0.13) 0.00% -0.02% (0.13)
Mikado Realtars Pvt. Ltd, 1.37% 152.68 1037%  {54.22} 0.00% 775%  (54.22)
Indlustrial Minerals and Chemicals Company Private Limited 1,96% 218.13 0.13% {0.68) 0.00% -0.10% (0.68)
Pune IT City Metre Rail Limited 7.21% 801.63 5.53% (28.51} 0.00% - -4.13% {28.91)
Tata Houstng Development Company Limited 11.69%  1,299.40 30.84%  {161.30} 0.00% - -23.05%  [161.20}
Arrow Infraestate Private Limited (w.ef. 20 May 2022} 2.23% 25,60 2.80% {4.19) 0.00% - -0.60% 4,19}
Gurgaon Realtech Limlted {w.e.f. 20 May 2022) 0.58% 64.28 0.51% {2.87) 0.00% - -0.38% (2.67)
Gurgacn Constructwell Private Umited {w.e.f. 20 May 2022} 0.67% 74.75 0,63% {3.28) 0.00% - -0.47% (3.28)
Infapark Propertles Limited {w.e.f. 8 July 2022) 2.79% 30281 23.48%  (122.83) 0.00% -17.58%  (122.83}
Total 100.00%  11,116.83 100.00%  [523.05) 1000026 1,22048 100.00% 699.91
Adjustments arising out of consolidation (6,845.33}) 2,939,532 {1,22080) 1,715.94
Consolidated Net Assats / Comprehensive Income 4,271.50 2,416.27 {0.42) 2,415,85
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Tata Realty and Infrastructore Limited
Notes to the consolldated finanelal statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currengy: Indian ripees in crores)

Note 58
[A] Capital work-ln-progress (CWIP) ageing analysis

Partleulars Ay at 31 Merch 2023
Liess ¢hnn 1 1-2Years | 2-3 Years | Moxothen 3 Total
yoar Years
Froject in Propress - - - 0.63 0.53
Project Tanporarily suspended - - - - -
Pariiculars Asat 31 Mavch 2022
Lessthanl | I[-2¥ears | 2-3Years | Morechan 3 Total
year Years
Project in Progress 0.62 - - 0.63 1.25
Project Tempaorarily suspended - - - - -
Nots; There is no materal project whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its costs compared to its original plan. ’
[B] Investment Property Under Construwction (CWIE) agelng analysis
Particulars Ay at 31 March 2023
Lessthanl | 1-2Y¥ears | 2-3 Years | More than3 Total
year Yoors
Project in Progress - 0.09 - 014 2.23
Project Temporarily suspended - - - " -
Particulars As at 31 March 2022
Less than 1 1«2 ¥ears | 2-3Years | Morethan3 Total
year Years
Project in Progress 0.03 - 0.14 - 0.23
Project Temporarily suspended - - - - -
Note: There is no material project whose comnpletion is overdne or hag exceeded its costs compared to its orlginal plan,
Note 59 :
ible assets under devel ageing analysls
Particulrs Ans ot 3i March 2023
Less than 1 1+2Years | 2-3Yenrs | Move thau 3 Total
yean Years
Project in Progress 0.89 - 7.00 - 7.89
Profect Temporarily suspended - - - - -
Tarticuiars As ut 31 Mareh 2022
Lessthanl | E-2 Years | 2-3 Years | Morethao 3 Total
YEAr Years
Project in Progress - 7.00 - - 7.40
Project Temporarily suspended - - - - -
Note 60
Trade Receivable ageiog analysis (from tho due date of payment)
Particulars As at 31 Marel: 2023 Tatal
Unbilled Less than 6 | 6months-1 | [-2Vears | Z-3Years | Morpthen3
months Jear Years
{i) Undisputad - Considerad good 11.99 44,13 - 0.01 - 0.41 56,54
(i} Undisputed - Credit impaired - 0.34 1.00 - - 2.33 3.68
{iif} Disputed - Considered good - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed - Crexit impaired - - - - - 2.03 2,03
Partlcviars As at 31 March 2622 Total
Unbllled Lessthan 6 | ¢mantas-1 | 1-2Vears § Z«3 Years | Moretan3d
monshs Year Yem's
(i} Undispnted - Considered goed - 16.47 4.03 0,53 031 - 21.44
(ify Undisputed - Credit impaired - - - - - - -
(iti) Disputed - Considerad good - - - - - - -
{iv) Disputed - Credit impaired - - 0.79 0.39 1.99 3.09 6.26
Note 61
Trade Payable ageing analysis (Grom the due date of payment)
Particulars As at 3F March 2023
Unbifted Lesstbol | 1-2¥ems | 2-3 Years | More than 3 Total
YEnr. Yeors
) MSME 0.3 0.2 B .01 B 0.55
(ify Others 45.73 16.53 0.63 0.26 0.54 63.70
(it} Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues « Others - - - - 008 0.08
Particulary As at 31 Mareh 2022
Tnbilled Lesstkhanl | 1-2Years | 2-3 Years | Morpthan3 Total
yoar Years
- 0.32 0.01 - - 0.34
- 77.03 4.08 0.40 112 B2.63
- - - - 0.08 0.08
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Tata Realty and infrastruciure Limited

Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency; Indian rupees in erores)

Note 65
Other Statutory Information
(i) No company in the Groug has any Beaami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against them for holding any Benawmi property.

(i) No company in the Group has any transactions with companies struck off.

(iii} Mo company in the Group has any charges or satisfaction which iy yet to be registerod with Registrar of Companies ('BROLT) beyond the statutory perlod,

(v} No company in the Group has lraded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year,

{v) The Group bas not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank of financial instituition or any other lender.

(vi} The Group is in compliance with the number of layers preseribed under cliuse (37) of Section 2 of the Company Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on
rumber of layers) Rules, 2018 {as amended).

(vii) No company in the Group lss any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of acoounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the (ax assessnents uader the Income Tax Act, 1967 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961),

for BS R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of tha Board of Directors of
Chartered Acrountants Tata Reaity and Infrastructure Limited
Firrn's Registration Ne.: 101 248W/W-100022 GIN: U70102MH2007PLC 168300
¥
S [ ==
' “;rt‘;w\ﬁw@\:i ~ e
Farhad Bamji Bamnali Agralyala Sanjay Dutt
Partmer Chainnan, Managing Director
™ o 1052 31.1 DIN - 00120029 DIN - 05251670
Rashm®fy
Company Seoretary
Membership No: ACS18978
Muenbal Mumbai
Prated: 25 Muy, 2003 Dated: 25 May, 2023
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Sixteenth Annual General Meeting of the Members of Tata
Realty and Infrastructure Limited will be held on Friday, July 21, 2023 at 11:30 a.m. (IST)
at shorter notice through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means to transact the
following business:

Ordinary Business:
1. To receive, consider and adopt:

a) the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2023, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon; and

b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial
Year ended March 31, 2023, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To re-appoint Mr. Banmali Agrawala (DIN:00120029) as Director of the Company,
who is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

Special Business:
3. To approve alteration of Articles of Association of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 14 of the Companies Act,
2013 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and subject to approvals,
permissions and sanctions from the appropriate authority, if any, approval of the
Members be and is hereby accorded to insert the following article in existing set of
Articles of Association of the Company:

"Article 91(a) -

If it is provided by any Trust Deed securing or otherwise, in connection with any
issue of debentures of the Company or as provided under any regulation(s) of
Securities and Exchange Board of India, the Board of Directors of the Company shall
appoint the person nominated by the Debenture Trustee(s) in terms of clause (e) of

TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300
E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai — 400 033 India.
Tel. 91 22 6661 4444 Fax: 91 22 6661 4452 email id — trilsec@tatarealty.in

Website: www.tatarealty.in
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sub regulation (1) of regulation 15 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 (as amended from time to time) as a
Nominee Director of the Company at the earliest from the date of receipt of
nomination from the Debenture Trustee and within the time period as specified
under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021 and other applicable provisions or regulations and
modifications, including any amendments thereto.

A Nominee Director may be removed from office at any time by the person or
persons in whom for the time being is vested the power under which he/she was
appointed and another Director may be appointed in his/her place. The Nominee
Director shall not be liable to retire by rotation nor required to hold any qualification
shares.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to
take all the requisite, incidental, consequential steps to implement the above
resolution and to perform all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its
absolute discretion, deem necessary, any question, query, or doubt that may arise in
this regard, and to execute/publish all such notices, deeds, agreements, papers and
writings as may be necessary and required for giving effect to this resolution.”

. To approve Issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures on Private Placement
Basis:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in supersession of Resolution passed at the Annual General
Meeting of the Members held on September 14, 2022 and pursuant to the provisions
of Sections 23, 42 and 71 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force) (‘Act'’) and the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities)
Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Share Capital & Debentures) Rules, 2014, both as
amended from time to time, and subject to all other applicable Regulations, Rules,
Notifications, Circulars and Guidelines prescribed by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India ('SEBI'), as amended, including the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021, as amended, the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, if applicable and the
enabling provisions of the listing agreements entered / to be entered into with the
Stock Exchanges where the securities of the Company be listed (the 'Stock
Exchanges'), and subject to the applicable Regulations, Rules, Notifications, Circulars
and Guidelines prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI'), the Memorandum of
Association and the Articles of Association of the Company, and subject to such
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approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions as may be required from the
Government of India, SEBI, RBI, the Stock Exchanges or any regulatory or statutory
authority as may be required (the 'Appropriate Authority’) and subject to such
conditions and/or maodifications as may be prescribed or imposed by the Appropriate
Authority while granting such approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions, which
may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to
as the 'Board'’ which term shall be deemed to include any Committee(s)
constituted/to be constituted by the Board to exercise its powers including the
powers conferred by this Resolution), subject to the total borrowings of the
Company not exceeding the borrowing powers approved by the Members from time
to time under Section 180(1)(c) of the Act, consent of the Members of the Company
be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors for making offer(s) or invitations
to subscribe to rated, redeemable, cumulative/non-cumulative, listed/unlisted Non-
Convertible Debentures/Bonds (hereinafter collectively referred as NCDs) up to an
amount of Rs.6,000 Crore (Rupees Six Thousand Crore only) on private placement
basis to eligible entities, bodies corporate, companies, banks, financial institutions
and any other categories of investors (eligible investors) permitted to invest in the
NCDs under applicable laws, in one or more series/tranches, during a period of one
year from the date of passing of this Resolution on such terms and conditions as the
Board or any Committee authorized by the Board or any person(s) authorized by the
Board, may, from time to time, determine and consider proper and most beneficial
to the Company including as to when the said NCDs be issued, the consideration for
the issue, utilization of issue proceeds and all matters connected with or incidental
thereto and that the said borrowing is within the overall borrowing limits of the
Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution, the
Board be and is hereby authorized, on behalf of the Company, to determine the
terms of issue including the class of investors to whom the NCDs are to be issued,
time, the number of NCDs, tranches, issue price, tenor, interest rate,
premium/discount, listing (in India or overseas) and do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper, or desirable
and to settle any question, doubt that may arise in respect of the borrowings
aforesaid and to execute all documents and writing as may be necessary, proper,
desirable or expedient."
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5. Ratification of Cost Auditor's Remuneration:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the
Company hereby ratifies the remuneration up to Rs. 1,75,000/- (Rupees One Lakh
Seventy-Five Thousand Only) plus applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses
incurred in connection with the audit, payable to M/s. Kishore Bhatia & Associates,
Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No: 00294), who are appointed by Board as
Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records maintained by the Company,
for the financial year 2023-24.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and hereby authorised to
do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give
effect to this resolution.”

By order of the Board
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

;m\i i ;in

Company Secretary
(ICSI Membership No.: A18978)

CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300

Place: Mumbai

Date: July 21, 2023

Registered Office: E Block, Voltas Premises,

T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033
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NOTES:

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide its General Circular No. 20/2020
dated May 5, 2020 in relation to “Clarification on holding of annual general meeting
(AGM) through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM)” read
with General Circular No. 14/ 2020 dated April 8, 2020, General Circular No. 17/
2020 dated April 13, 2020, General Circular No.39/2020 dated December 31, 2020,
General Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, General Circular No. 2/2022
dated May 05, 2022 and 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 in relation to
“Clarification on passing of ordinary and special resolutions by companies under the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder” (collectively referred to as
“MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM")
through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common
venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and
MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM on Friday,
July 21, 2023 at 11:30 a.m. (IST). The deemed venue for the 16" AGM will be the
registered office of the Company E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Madrg,
Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033.

2. PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT, A MEMBER ENTITLED TO
ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO
ATTEND AND VOTE ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. SINCE THIS AGM IS BEING HELD PURSUANT
TO THE MCA CIRCULARS THROUGH VC OR OAVM, THE REQUIREMENT OF
PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS HAS BEEN DISPENSED WITH.
ACCORDINGLY, IN TERMS OF THE MCA CIRCULARS THE FACILITY FOR
APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES BY THE MEMBERS WILL NOT BE AVAILABLE
FOR THIS AGM AND HENCE THE PROXY FORM AND ATTENDANCE SLIP ARE
NOT ANNEXED TO THIS NOTICE.

3. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be
counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

4. Corporate members intending to attend through their authorised representative, to
attend the AGM are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG format) a certified
copy of its Board or governing body Resolution / Authorization to the Company,
authorising them to attend and vote through VC/OAVM on their behalf at the AGM.

5. As per the provisions of Clause 3.B.IV. of the General Circular No. 20/ 2020 dated
May 5, 2020, the matters of Special Business as appearing at Item No. 3, 4 and 5 of
the accompanying Notice, are considered to be unavoidable by the Board and hence,
forming part of this Notice.
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The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act setting out material
facts concerning the business under Item No. 3, 4 and 5 of the Notice is annexed
hereto. The relevant details, pursuant to Secretarial Standards on General Meetings
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of the Director
seeking re-appointment at this AGM are also annexed.

The Company shall provide the required link to attend the 16" AGM of the Company
at their registered email address / at the email address of the authorized
representative, as the case may be, before the meeting, which would facilitate the
Members/Authorized Representatives, as the case may be, to attend the AGM via VC
or OAVM. In case, any Members/Authorized Representatives, as the case may be,
need any assistance with using the technology, can contact the Company at
following email id: trilsec@tatarealty.in or call during the business hours at 022
6661 4444.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and 15
minutes after the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by clicking
on the invitation link which has been provided separately while circulation of notice.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the
Annual Report for the financial year 2022-23, is being sent by electronic mode to
those Members whose email addresses are registered with the
Company/Depositories.

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal
address, e-mail address, telephone/mobile numbers, PAN, registering of homination,
power of attorney registration, Bank Mandate details, etc., to their DPs in case the
shares are held in electronic form and to the Registrar at www.kfintech.com in case
the shares are held in physical form, quoting their folio no.

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is
available for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have
not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting
Form No. SH-13. If a Member desires to cancel the earlier nomination and record a
fresh nomination, he may submit the same in Form SH-14. Members are requested
to submit the said form to their DP in case the shares are held in electronic form and
to the RTA at www.kfintech.com in case the shares are held in physical form,
quoting your folio no.
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The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the MCA under the Act
requires the Company/Registrars and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) to record
additional details of Members, including their PAN details, e-mail address, bank
details for payment of dividend etc. Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to submit the filled in form to the Company at the registered office or to
the Registrar in physical mode, or in electronic mode at www.kfintech.com, as per
instructions mentioned in the form. Members holding shares in electronic form are
requested to submit the details to their respective DP only and not to the Company
or RTA.

To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered their email
addresses are requested to register the same with their Depository Participants
("DPs").

Members who wish to inspect the relevant documents referred to in the Notice can
send an email to_trilsec@tatarealty.in the conclusion of the Meeting. The Members
who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may raise the
same at the meeting or send them in advance (mentioning their name and folio
no./DP ID and Client ID), prior to the date of the AGM by email at
trilsec@tatarealty.in .

Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Act and Register of Contracts or arrangements
in which Directors are interested, if any maintained under Section 189 of the Act will
be available electronically for inspection by the members during the AGM. Members
who wish to inspect the same can send an email to _trilsec@tatarealty.in up to the
conclusion of the Meeting.

Since the Company is not required to conduct e-voting, the voting at the meeting
shall be conducted through show of hands, unless demand for a poll is made by any
member in accordance with Section 109 of the Act. In case of a poll on any
resolution at the AGM, members are requested to convey their vote at the following
designated Email ID — trilsec@tatarealty.in.
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17. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed to this
Notice.

By order of the Board
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Company Secretary
(ICSI Membership No.: A18978)

CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300
Place: Mumbai

Date: July 21, 2023

Registered Office: E Block, Voltas Premises,

T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013

As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the following explanatory
statement set out all material facts to the business mentioned under following Items of the
accompanying Notice.

Item No. 2:

The brief profile of Mr. Banmali Agrawala (DIN: 00120029) in terms of Secretarial Standard-
2 on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, is
provided in Annexure A.

Item No. 3:

As per SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non- Convertible Securities) (Amendment) Regulations,
2023 (“SEBI NCS Regulations™), the Debenture Trustee has been empowered to nominate
any person(s) as Nominee Director on the Board of the company. Further, the company
shall ensure that its Articles of Association require its Board of Directors to appoint the
person nominated by the debenture trustee(s) in terms of clause (e) of sub regulation (1) of
regulation 15 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustees)
Regulations, 1993 as a director on its Board of Directors.

Accordingly, as per SEBI NCS Regulations, the Company shall amend its Articles of
Association to comply with this provision, on or before September 30, 2023.

As the existing provision of Articles of Association does not meet the aforesaid requirement
of SEBI NCS Regulations, the Company is required to make suitable changes to the existing
provisions of Articles of Association by inserting the new Article 91a as mentioned in
resolution to comply with SEBI NCS Regulations.

Hence, it is required to modify Articles of Association of the Company to reflect the new
Article 91a, for which approval of members is required under the provisions of Section 14 of
the Act.

Drafts of altered Articles of Association are available for inspection at the Registered Office
of the Company during the office hours on all working days till the date of AGM.

The Directors recommend the resolution of the accompanying Notice, for the approval of
the Members of the Company by way of a special resolution.
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None of the Directors or Key Managerial personnel(s) of the Company or their respective
relatives is in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set
out in this Notice.

Item No. 4:

To meet the funding requirements of the Company, the Company has from time to time
issued NCDs, in one or more series / tranches on private placement basis in accordance
with the provisions of the Act.

In order to augment long term resources for financing, inter alia, refinancing of the existing
debt, ongoing working capital requirement and for general corporate purposes, the
Company may require further offering or inviting or subscription, from time to time, in one
or more tranches and/or series, whether secured or unsecured, cumulative or non-
cumulative, listed or unlisted, redeemable non-convertible debentures including but not
limited to bonds and/or other debt securities, denominated in Indian rupees ('NCDs') on
private placement basis. The pricing for any instrument which may be issued by the
Company on the basis of the Resolution set out at the Notice will be done by the Board
(which term includes a duly constituted Committee of the Board of Directors) in accordance
with applicable laws, including the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing
of Non Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 and other Regulations, as may be
applicable.

The provisions of Sections 23, 42 and 71 of the Act read with Rule 14 of the Companies
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 (the 'PAS Rules'), provide that a
Company shall not make a private placement of its securities unless the proposed offer of
securities or invitation to subscribe to the securities has been previously approved by the
Members of the Company by a Special Resolution. The third proviso to Rule 14(1) of the
PAS Rules provides that in case of an offer or invitation to subscribe to NCDs on private
placement basis, the Company can obtain prior approval by means of a Special Resolution
once a year for all offers or invitations for such NCDs during the year. Further, fourth
proviso to Rule 14(1) of PAS Rules provides that in case of offer or invitation of any
securities to qualified institutional buyers, it shall be sufficient if the company passes a
previous special resolution only in a year for all the allotments to such buyers during the
year.

In terms of the provisions of Rule 14(1) of the PAS rules, disclosures pertaining to NCDs are
as follows:
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Particulars of the offer including the date of passing of the Board
Resolution:

The Board resolution passed on July 21, 2023, for the issuance of NCDs and on a
private placement basis up to limit of up to Rs. 6,000 Crore.

Kinds of Securities offered and the price at which security is being offered:
Non-Convertible Debentures at such price as may be determined by the Board from
time to time.

Basis of justification for the price (including premium, if any) at which the
offer or invitation is being made:
As may be determined by the Board from time to time.

Name and address of valuer who performed valuation:
Not Applicable '

Amount which the company intends to raise by way of such securities:
Up to Rs. 6,000 Crore.

Material terms of raising such securities, proposed time schedule,
purposes or objects of offer, contribution being made by the promoters or
directors either as part of the offer or separately in furtherance of objects;
principal terms of assets charged as securities:

As may be determined by the Board, from time to time

The Shareholders had approved the issuance of NCDs amounting to Rs. 6,000 Crore
vide its resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting held on September 14,
2022. To streamline and for better operational convenience, it is proposed to seek
approval of members at every Annual General Meeting. The Board at its meeting
held on July 21, 2023, subject to the approval of members of the Company, had
approved the issuance of NCDs on a private placement basis, amounting to Rs.
6,000 Crore. This was within the overall borrowing limit of Rs. 6,000 Crore, pursuant
to the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of the Act.

The approval of the Members is being sought for issue of NCDs up to an amount of
Rs.6,000 Crore by way of a Special Resolution in compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Act read with the Rules made thereunder, from time to time, in the
manner as set in this Notice.

The Directors recommend the Resolution of the accompanying Notice, for the
approval of the Members of the Company by way of a Special Resolution.
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None of the Directors or Key Managerial personnel(s) of the Company or their
respective relatives is in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in
the Resolution set out in this Notice.

Item No. 5:

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on May 25, 2023,
approved the remuneration of M/s. Kishore Bhatia & Associates, Cost Accountants
(Firm Registration No: 00294), as Cost Auditors for auditing the cost records of the
Company for the financial year 2023-24 at a remuneration not exceeding
Rs.1,75,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Seventy-Five Thousand Only) plus applicable taxes
and out-of-pocket expenses.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the ratification for the remuneration payable to the
Cost Auditors for the Financial Year 2023-24 by way of an Ordinary Resolution is
being sought from the members as set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice
for approval of the Members.

None of the Directors and the key managerial personnel(s) or their relatives is
deemed to be concerned or interested in the aforesaid resolution.

By order of the Board
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

) L

/

Rashmi Jain
Company Secretary

(ICSI Membership No.: A18978

CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300

Place: Mumbai

Date: July 21, 2023

Registered Office: E Block, Voltas Premises,

T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033



v

TATA

Annexure A

Information pursuant to the Secretarial Standards in respect of Re-appointment

of the Director:

Particulars Mr. Banmali Agrawala (DIN: 00120029)

Designation Non-Executive Chairman

Age 60 years

Qualification Mr. Agrawala is a Mechanical Engineering graduate from
Mangalore University and an alumnus of the Advanced
Management Programme of Harvard Business School.

Experience Mr. Banmali Agrawala is the President, Infrastructure and Defence

& Aerospace, Tata Sons Private Limited. In his earlier role, he was
President and CEO of GE, South Asia, where he was responsible
for all of GE's operations in the South Asia region. Prior to GE, he
was Executive Director (BD & Strategy) and a member of the
Board of Tata Power.
A veteran in the Energy domain, Banmali has over 30 years of
global experience. He started his career with the Wartsila Group
where he spent over 20 years, both in India and in Finland. At the
time of leaving the Wartsila Group, he was the Managing Director
of Wartsila India Ltd, the Global head of the Bio Power Industries
and a member of the Global Power Plant Management Board.

Terms and Conditions
of Re-Appointment

To be re-appointed as Director, liable to retire by rotation

Company

Remuneration NIL Remuneration (Sitting fees would be payable to Mr. Agrawala for
(Proposed) attending the Meetings of the Company)

Remuneration Rs.2,00,000/-as sitting fees for attending the Board/Committee
(Drawn) meetings during FY 2022-23

Date of First March 24, 2018

Appointment

Shareholding in the | NIL
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Relationship with | None
other Directors

Number of Meetings | 7 out of 7
of the Board Attended
during the year

Other Directorships/ | Directorship:
Chairman/Membership
in committees of the 1. Tata Housing Development Company Limited
Board 2. Tata Electronics Private Limited

3. Tata Medical and Diagnostics Limited

4. Tata Advanced Systems Limited

Chairmanship/Membership of Committees of the Board:

Sr. Name of the Name of Chairman/
No. Company Committee Member
1 Tata Housing 1) Nomination & 1) Member
Development Remuneration 2) Chairman
Company Limited Committee
2) Securities
Allotment
Committee
2 Tata Advanced 1) Audit Committee | 1) Chairman
Systems Limited 2) Nomination & 2) Chairman
Remuneration
Committee
3 Tata Electronics 1) Treasury 1) Member
Private Limited Committee
CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300 By order of the Board
Place: Mumbai For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Date: July 21, 2023 ‘
Registered Office: \_/ » .
E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam o
Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033 p:ﬁs/"'”-a'“
Company Secretary

(ICSI Membership No.: A18978)
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